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China Lesso Group Holdings Limited is a leading large-scale industrial
group that manufactures building materials and interior decoration
products in mainland China. It is listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock name: China Lesso, stock code:
2128). China Lesso is one of the constituent stocks of the Hang Seng
Composite Index — MidCap and is covered by Hong Kong Stock
Exchange’s Stock Connect. The Group provides over 10,000 types of
quality products, including plastic piping system, sanitary ware
products, integrated kitchens, systems of doors and windows,
decorative plates, fire-fighting equipment, and sanitary materials, etc.
They are widely applied to fields such as interior decoration, water
supply, drainage, power supply and telecommunications, gas
transmission, agriculture, aquaculture, floor heating and fire services.
The Group is positioned as one of the manufacturers who offer the
most comprehensive range of building materials and interior
decoration products in China.

The Group has 25 advanced production bases in 16 provinces, namely
Guangdong, Guizhou, Sichuan, Hubei, Jiangsu, Anhui, Zhejiang,
Henan, Hebei, Jilin, Shaanxi, Xinjiang, Hainan, Yunnan, Shandong and
Hunan. The Group has established a nationwide sales network and has
also developed long-term strategic partnerships with 2,276
independent and exclusive first-tier distributors to provide quality and
comprehensive products as well as professional services for customers.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B #5478 22

Change
2019 2018 25
For the year ended 31 December BEZ12ANALEE
(RMB’000) (ARMT )
Revenue WA 26,344,523 23,733,517 11.0%
Gross profit EA 7,537,119 6,228,449 21.0%
Finance costs BB A 577,194 415,403 38.9%
EBITDA BR ST AT 2 5,555,866 4,409,098 26.0%
Profit before tax BRAL A& A 3,981,921 3,235,539 23.1%
Profit for the year FNm A 3,028,335 2,446,224 23.8%
Profit attributable to owners of the Company A &1HEH A FEIG & F 3,024,701 2,491,774 21.4%
At 31 December (RMB'000) R12A31B(AR®T )
Total assets BERR 40,784,797 34,636,277 17.8%
Cash and bank deposits e RBITER 7,604,221 6,451,791 17.9%
Total debts® Lz 13,537,099 11,731,058 15.4%
Net debt® ERFE" 5,932,878 5,279,267 12.4%
Total equity gy k] 17,094,396 15,072,865 13.4%
Share information (RMB) BRAER(ARE)
Earnings per share® FREFC
— Basic —E&RK 0.98 0.80 22.5%
- Diluted —#5E 0.98 0.80 22.5%
Dividend per share (HK cents) RS GBIL)
— Interim dividend —HHRE 12 10 20.0%
— Proposed final dividend — R KRB E 28 20 40.0%
- Total dividend —1BE 40 30 33.3%
Equity attributable to owners of the Company &R A A HEHE AREEEZRC
per share 5.34 477 12.0%
Financial ratios Bt =
Gearing Ratio (%) BEBAER%) 44.2 43.8
Net debt to equity® (%) (B FEE A AR tE K (%) 34.7 35.0
Interest cover® (times) FEBFIL = (1) 9.63 10.61
Note: PRS-
(a) Represented borrowings, lease liabilities and debt component of convertible loans. (a) EER - HEaERTRBRERELBG -
(b) Represented total debts less cash and bank deposits. (b) EEBEERIES RRITER -
(0) Details of the calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share of the (0) RARBRERRBERN 2 st Bl N R & B iR E

Company are set out in note 11 to consolidated financial statements. MiEETT ©

BARREA AEGERBRUARRE BREBITRME
of issued Shares at the end of the reporting period. B -

(d) Represented equity attributable to owners of the Company divided by the number (d)

(e) Represented net debt divided by total equity. (e) FE1ETS FRERR ARE 2R 4278 -

0} Represented EBITDA divided by finance costs. G} BB EBITEA BTG AR EKAK o

2 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI¥EE@ZERER AT



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEFHHE

For the year ended 31 December
BE12A31HLFE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

RESULTS ARBTR ARETRE AREBTT ARETT AREBTET
REVENUE KA 26,344,523 23,733,517 20,360,000 17,221,052 15,264,401
GROSS PROFIT EX 7,537,119 6,228,449 5,316,783 4,581,778 3,937,571

EXPENSES* e (3,459,637) (3,033,265)  (2,700,377)  (2,188,759)  (1,906,605)

FINANCE COSTS AlE R AR (577,194) (415,403) (229,309) (107,061) (87,323)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREE AT R A 3,981,921 3,235,539 2,954,586 2,424,792 2,064,671

Income tax expense FriS a2 (953,586) (789,315) (688,779) (511,088) (446,221)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R F 3,028,335 2,446,224 2,265,807 1,913,704 1,618,450

Profit attributable to: AT REfR R

Owners of the Company RARHEAA 3,024,701 2,491,774 2,293,055 1,922,027 1,621,117

Non-controlling interests FE42 )4 25 3,634 (45,550) (27,248) (8,323) (2,667)

3,028,335 2,446,224 2,265,807 1,913,704 1,618,450

At 31 December

M®12H31H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
FINANCIAL POSITION B # R ARETRT AR®TRT ARETT AREFTT ARETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EmENEE 23,053,463 19,752,950 15,825,153 12,136,602 8,416,831
Current assets RENEE 17,731,334 14,883,327 12,148,472 10,058,684 8,232,292
Total assets BERE 40,784,797 34,636,277 27,973,625 22,195,286 16,649,123
LIABILITIES =Fi
Non-current liabilities IERFEE 3,163,655 6,458,341 6,116,343 935,722 2,406,123
Current liabilities REIAE 20,526,746 13,105,071 8,073,791 9,721,892 4,377,548
Total liabilities afE®sE 23,690,401 19,563,412 14,190,134 10,657,614 6,783,671
NET CURRENT ASSETS/ REBEEFHE
(LIABILITIES) (am) (2,795,412) 1,778,256 4,074,681 336,792 3,854,744
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners PiNNEIEF SN
of the Company fEfh R 16,576,245 14,803,329 13,489,915 11,231,509 9,770,885
Non-controlling interests SR 518,151 269,536 293,576 306,163 94,567
Total equity e AR 17,094,396 15,072,865 13,783,491 11,537,672 9,865,452
# Represented the sum of selling and distribution expenses, administrative expenses ~ # FEEHE RO Y - ITIE A b 5 X A48T -

and other expenses.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRBES

China’s economic growth continued to slow down in 2019 amid global
instability. The central government adopted measures to cool the
country’s overheated property market under its principle that “houses
are for people to live in but not for speculation”, thus subjecting the
market to mounting downward pressure. China’s ongoing urbanisation
stimulates both economic growth and unlocks the huge potential of its
domestic demand. The Chinese government has invested in a number
of large-scale municipal engineering works and urban infrastructure
projects as it implements the policies on energy conservation and
environmental protection such as “Switching over from Coal to Gas”
and “Action Plan for Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”. Such
projects include the construction of infrastructure for using clean
energy for heating in various regions, sewage control planning in major
river basins, sewage and pollution control in rural areas and the plan
for seawater desalination works around islands. Furthermore, Chinese
companies have been cooperating with countries which are covered by
China’s "Belt and Road Initiative” in oil and gas projects. This can also
stimulate the demand for pipe fittings and pipe products.

As a leading large-scale industrial group that manufactures building
materials and interior decoration products in mainland China, China
Lesso capitalises on the Chinese government'’s favourable policies by
fully developing all of its business segments to meet the strong
demand of the market. Despite the downward pressure on the China’s
economy, the Group achieved sustainable growth in sales revenue and
profit and further improved its financial performances during the
reporting period with its leading industry position, strong brand and
excellent product quality. The Group's revenue increased by 11.0% to
RMB26,345 million in 2019 from RMB23,734 million in 2018. Gross profit
rose by 21.0% to RMB7,537 million, and profit attributable to owners of
the Company grew by 21.4% to RMB3,025 million. The Board proposed
a final dividend of HK28 cents per share for the year ended 31
December 2019.

In 2019, Southern China continued to contribute the majority of the
Group's revenue. The Group further developed the market of Southern
China, thus reinforcing its leading market position there. Meanwhile, it
actively expanded the market for plastic pipes in other regions of the
country and continued to optimise its product portfolio to increase its
market share and boost its overall business growth. The Group
continued to increase the levels of automatic production and smart
production. Through its effective strategy for procurement, the Group
reduced the pressure of the hike in prices of raw materials and
production costs, aiming to maximise the benefits of economies of
scale.
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During the reporting period, the central and provincial governments
resolutely adopted a number of regulatory policies to curb speculation
on properties under the principles that “houses are for people to live
in but not for speculation” and that “equal emphasis be placed on
both the markets for property rental and purchase”. As a result, the
real estate market cooled down consistently. According to the National
Bureau of Statistics of China, sales of commodity properties in terms of
gross floor area dropped by 0.1% in 2019 against the 1.3% growth in
2018. The coronavirus disease (the “COVID-19") outbreak in early 2020
almost brought economic activities to a standstill and also delivered a
blow to the real estate sector. The market expects the government to
relax the regulation of the property sector after the COVID-19
pandemic dies out in order to increase market liquidity and stimulate
economic growth. This will benefit the development of the industry of
building materials and interior decoration. The Group will continue to
enhance the competitiveness of its business of building materials and
interior decoration and optimise its product portfolio to meet
customers’ demand for quality products. The Group remains confident
about the future of this business segment and expects to attain synergy
between it and its other businesses in the long run.

In recent years, the Chinese government has pursued a series of
environmental policies. This has helped to foster the development of
the environmental protection industry. To capitalise on this trend, the
Group further developed its environmental protection business and
increased investment in technological innovation to enhance its own
research and development capability. Having established both the
upstream and downstream businesses of the pipe products and fittings
that cover the whole value chain of that industry, the Group is now
endeavouring to develop the business of treating hazardous and solid
wastes so as to create synergy between its environmental protection
business and plastic piping system business for the long term. The
Group will continue to work towards the goal of becoming a one-stop
environmental service provider in China, creating a green lifestyle for
residents and fulfilling its corporate social responsibility.

In respect of the business of specialty sales and marketing platform,
the Group aims to assist Chinese manufacturers in delivering building
materials, interior decoration products and other consumer products
to retailers and consumers around the globe directly, thus helping
them expand the market for their brands. The Group has 13 projects at
different stages of development in the United States, Canada,
Australia, Thailand, Myanmar, Indonesia, the United Arab Emirates and
other countries. We will strive to turn this business into a new growth
driver for the Group in the long term.

RBER - ETEETY ] MNFHELE | He
EAT  pREMABAEEZBAITHRER &
RIBHEEEHEDIE - BHETEFERE -
BREZ N - BREBEBRGREIE - 2019F 26
MmEMEEMEmAE TEK01% - HH 20184 1.3% Hy1E
& 2 2020 #) 20198 MK & & ([COVID-19]) &
BIRBFEBEEHLOER  REBSRBEE
RFEIE - MEFEMETEENETE - Ti5EH
COVID-19 KmiTaE R 1% - BN 2R YR E
RFRIENE - DUEINTISRE M - BEAEIER -
ERFTEMREREOER - XAEEBFER
FHRFEAMBLEREES  REEFPHEEEM
REERNBEE - AEEHZES D BHARKE
BIEAEEL  FEEFEEENRERRBE -

MER - PEBFRERDL —RIRBRERE
FRRREZNER -AKEIEEES - RIR
REZBME - BB RMAFHIRA - I5ER
TrE S c BBITENEMEHRZON
FTIHERERE AEBEANEEERCREREYR
BEEBEENER  HRERRREFREHE
BRERGEBHRRG FRE - AEREBEERK
APE-HARRREEEENERE N - RE
EERELE  BRERLCEHERT -
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BIEEMRXELEMBEERERAEEERTE
BIEEE  REMERRERER - AKED
RER -~ MEKR - BAFE - RE - @M EBE
[EPETE - fA BB A REERREF 13EER
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AEEREZRNS IERA -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRMES

To cope with the unfavourable macroeconomic environment in 2019,
the Group proactively diversified its product range and enhanced its
competitive advantage by leveraging its brand strength and its
extensive dealer network. In order to adapt to the ever-changing
market demand, the Group also devoted itself to developing the
business of specialty sales and marketing platform, seeking new growth
drivers of revenue and actively expanding both the domestic and
overseas markets. This has laid a solid foundation for the growth of
revenue and the enhancement of its profitability in the future. In
addition, China made steady progress in its plan for development and
this generated a robust demand for pipes and pipe fittings in the field
of infrastructure construction. To capture the opportunity, the Group
will actively expand the scope of applications of its plastic pipes and
pipe fittings, explore new opportunities on the market and achieve
long-lasting synergy among its businesses. Through strategic
cooperation with Guangdong Academy of Agricultural Sciences, the
Group will seek to develop more applications of pipes and pipe fittings
in agriculture. This can diversify its source of revenue and consolidate
its leading market position. The Group is confident about the prospect
of this business segment and expects it to perform steadily in the
future.

The COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020 can have a temporary impact on
the Chinese economy. The momentum of the Chinese economy will be
maintained in the medium and long term. It is expected that the
central government will launch a number of policies to stimulate the
economy. The Group will actively grasp the opportunities arising from
the government policies that favour the development of the industries.
It will expand its businesses of plastic pipe systems, building materials
and interior decoration and environmental protection, and strive for
synergy among the various business segments. All this can lead to
long-term growth. Looking ahead, the Group will continue to raise the
levels of automatic production and smart production and actively build
up its production bases so that its production capacity can be
increased to support business expansion. The Group will also continue
to increase investment in innovation, research and development as it
continues to improve product quality and consolidate its leading
position in the industry.
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Lesso Group is concerned about the havoc wreaked by the COVID-19
outbreak on society. As a corporate citizen, the Group has supported
hospitals across the country in their efforts to build facilities for fighting
against the pandemic. The Group has promptly allocated resources in
the form of a large amount of various pipe products required for the
construction of systems of pipelines for water supply and drainage at
emergency hospitals dedicated to the fight against the pandemic. In
addition, the Group has provided necessary construction materials for
the hospitals which are under reconstruction or expansion. The Group
gives full support to the people in all regions in their fight against the
disease.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude
to our management and all the staff members for their commitment
and dedication to the Group. In fulfilling its mission of “improving the
quality of urban life”, the Group will continue to provide the market
with high-quality and innovative building materials and interior
decoration products. At the same time, we will actively grasp the
opportunities arising from the state policies and infrastructure
construction to drive the Group's sustainable development for the long
term. We will endeavor to achieve better performance and create
greater value for customers, investors and Shareholders. China Lesso is
determined to scale new heights in the future!

Wong Luen Hei
Chairman of the Board
Hong Kong, 27 March 2020

COVID-19RBESHEMBEENL - EREER
R XE2BEZHERURER  A&EEETS
B o ARERERSHEERAIRMEZNEZRE
REBRHERFAFNSEAMEETEER W
RERMGIIKTIZRR - I AEERIRE
- FUEMERTHNBRERITERYE
ENXEEMARNEBRIE -

AAEBRRESFERLEHAEEEEE LR
BETRBE-FHERBEENE IMER - Rk
EZ(REMRESMELE]| OREES  NEEH
HERAMISRUELARANNENREER [
o TP ESRIC R B R R R E R R R R
Wl NHESAKEEBORBPAUIFHERR -
MBEESH  FRREENEBRER/TFR
KREELBRRAEEANEE  STFEBERK
KBEISE |

EFSTE
BHE
&HAB 202093 H27H

Annual Report 2019 4§ 7



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SEEZNEREEABRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei, aged 57, is the founder of the Group, the chairman
of the Company and was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 5 November 2009. He is also a director of various
companies within the Group. He is primarily responsible for the
Group's overall strategic planning and business management. Mr.
Wong has approximately 23 years of experience in plastic pipe
operations and management. He served as the chairman in Shunde
Liansu Industrial from December 1996 to April 1999 and was awarded
"Outstanding Private Entrepreneur of Shunde” by Shunde People’s
Government of Foshan in 2003. Mr. Wong has been a permanent
honorary president of Foshan Shunde Longjiang General Chamber of
Commerce since 2018. Mr. Wong is the spouse of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping
and the brother-in-law of Mr. Zuo Manlun. Mr. Wong is the founder of
a trust which holds the entire issued share capital of Xi Xi Development
and New Fortune, the controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Zuo Manlun, aged 47, is the chief executive of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of various
companies within the Group. He is primarily responsible for the
management of the daily business operations of the Group. Mr. Zuo
has approximately 20 years of experience in the plastic pipe industry.
Mr. Zuo joined the Group in December 1999 and has held various
positions in operation management since joining the Group. Mr. Zuo is
currently a non-executive director of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings
Limited (stock code: 98), which is listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Zuo
won several awards including “Outstanding Worker of the Plastic
Industry in the PRC” by China Plastics Processing Industry Association
in 2009 and was awarded as “Senior Plastic Product Engineer
(Technical Entrepreneur)” by the Guangdong Human Resources and
Social Security Department in 2019. Mr. Zuo is the brother-in-law of Mr.
Wong Luen Hei and the younger brother of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping.

Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, aged 53, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. She is also a director/supervisor of various companies within the
Group. She is primarily responsible for procurement control and
logistics management of the Group. Ms. Zuo has approximately 23
years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Ms. Zuo served as a
director of Shunde Liansu Industrial from December 1996. In 1999,
upon establishing the Group together with Mr. Wong Luen Hei, she
held various positions in procurement. Ms. Zuo is the spouse of Mr.
Wong Luen Hei and the elder sister of Mr. Zuo Manlun.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Lai Zhigiang, aged 53, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies within the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the production and technical management of
the Group. Mr. Lai has approximately 23 years of experience in the
plastic pipe industry and served as a workshop manager of Shunde
Liansu Industrial from December 1996 to November 1999. Mr. Lai
joined the Group in December 1999 and has held various positions in
production management since joining the Group.

Mr. Kong Zhaocong, aged 54, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of various
companies within the Group. Mr. Kong is primarily responsible for the
China’s sales of the Group and has approximately 26 years of
experience in the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Kong joined the Group in
December 1999 and has held various positions in production
management and sales since joining the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Kong served as a factory manager at Foshan City Dongjian
Plastic Materials Factory from March 1993 to January 1999 and served
as a manager in the production department of Shunde Liansu Industrial
from January 1999 to November 1999.

Mr. Chen Guonan, aged 52, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies within the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the management and production of certain
companies in the Group. Mr. Chen has approximately 30 years of
experience in the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Chen joined the Group in
December 1999 and has held various positions in production
management and engineering since joining the Group. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Chen was a manufacturing engineer in the technology
department at Guangdong Province Zhaoging Gaojiang Plastic
Products Co., Limited from July 1989 to July 1993. From July 1993 to
September 1999, he was a deputy factory manager at Foshan City
Dongjian Plastic Materials Factory. Mr. Chen served as a manager in
the production department of Shunde Liansu Industrial from
September 1999 to November 1999. Mr. Chen has been a deputy
secretary general of Plastic Pipe Special Committee of China Plastics
Processing Industry Association since 2005. Mr. Chen obtained a
bachelor’'s degree in polymer chemical from South China University of
Technology in July 1989.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EELEREEABRERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Dr. Lin Shaoquan, aged 44, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies within the Group. Dr.
Lin is primarily responsible for the research and development and
overseas sales of the Group. Dr. Lin has approximately 17 years of
experience in the plastic pipe industry. Dr. Lin joined the Group in July
2002 and has held various positions in research and development and
overseas sales since joining the Group. Over the years, Dr. Lin has won
various awards including “National May First Labour Medal” by All-
China Federation of Trade Unions in 2006. Dr. Lin received a doctorate
degree in polymer chemical and physics from Sun Yat-sen University in
June 2002.

Mr. Huang Guirong, aged 44, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of various
companies within the Group. Mr. Huang is primarily responsible for the
overall management of the factories and production facilities of the
Group and has approximately 23 years of experience in the plastic pipe
industry. Mr. Huang joined the Group in December 1999 and has held
various positions in production management since joining the Group.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang served as a deputy factory
manager at Foshan City Dongjian Plastic Materials Factory from 1996
until 1999 and served as a deputy manager of the plastic production
department of Shunde Liansu Industrial from June 1999 to November
1999. Mr. Huang completed a programme of marketing from Hubei
University of Technology from September 2001 to July 2005.

Mr. Luo Jianfeng, aged 48, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 2 April 2010. He is also a director/general manager/
supervisor of various companies within the Group. Mr. Luo has
approximately 27 years of experience in accounting and worked at
Shunde City Accounting Firm from July 1993 to March 1996,
Guangdong Dezheng Accounting Firm with Limited Liability from April
1996 to December 2001 and Guangdong Gongcheng Accounting Firm
from January 2002 to December 2007. Mr. Luo worked for Foshan City
Zhongzhengcheng Accounting Firm Co., Limited as a certified public
accountant from January 2008 to April 2016. Mr. Luo is currently an
executive director of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (stock code:
98), which is listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Luo is a member of The
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Luo obtained a
bachelor's degree in economics from Guangdong University of
Business Studies in June 1993.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Lin Dewei, aged 59, has been re-designated as an executive
director of the Company on 11 July 2018. Mr. Lin was appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010. Mr. Lin
has approximately 25 years of experience in the legal field and worked
as a part-time lawyer at various law firms in the PRC between 1995 and
2001. In 2001, Mr. Lin practised as a lawyer at Guangdong Everwin Law
Office and became a partner at the firm in 2004. Since 2013, Mr. Lin has
been practising as a lawyer at Guangdong Yogo Law Firm. Mr. Lin
obtained a bachelor’s degree in physics from South China University of
Technology in July 1982. Mr. Lin received a certificate of lawyer
qualification in the PRC in January 1990.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan, aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. Since 2002, Mr. Wong has been practising as a barrister of the
High Court in Hong Kong specialising in both civil and criminal
litigation. Mr. Wong is a member of The Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’'s degree in business
administration from Hawaii Pacific University in August 1997 and a
bachelor’s degree in law from City University of Hong Kong in
November 2001. Mr. Wong received a postgraduate certificate in laws
from City University of Hong Kong in July 2002.

Mr. Cheung Man Yu, aged 45, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 31 December 2012. Mr. Cheung
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in arts with major in accountancy from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Cheung has over 20 years
of experience in financial management and financial services. Mr.
Cheung served as the chief financial officer and company secretary of
Feiyu Technology International Company Ltd. (stock code: 1022), which
is listed on the Stock Exchange from August 2014 to September 2018.
Mr. Cheung was employed at the audit department of Ernst & Young,
an international accounting firm, from February 2000 to April 2004. Mr.
Cheung was a vice president or director at the respective investment
banking division of BNP Paribas Capital (Asia Pacific) Limited, UBS AG
and J.P. Morgan securities (Asia Pacific) Limited from April 2004 to
March 2011.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EELEREEABRERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Ms. Lan Fang, aged 44, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 January 2015. Ms. Lan has
been the President of Guangdong Construction and Decoration
Materials Association since March 2008 and the President of
Guangdong Construction and Decoration Design Association since
August 2014. Ms. Lan graduated from Guangdong University of
Technology with a college diploma in June 1996 and then pursued
further studies in the EMBA CEO training programme of Sun Yat-sen
University and the business management CEO training programme of
Tsinghua University. She worked as the chairman of the materials
committee of Guangzhou Architecture & Decoration Association from
February 1998 to October 2006. Ms. Lan has accumulated over 22 years
of experience with respect to the administration of social organisation
and in the industry of construction and decoration materials.

Dr. Tao Zhigang, aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 September 2015. Dr. Tao is
Professor of Economics and Strategy in the Faculty of Business and
Economics and the director of the Institute for China and Global
Development, the University of Hong Kong. Prior to joining the
University of Hong Kong in 1998, he taught at Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology from 1992 to 1998. Dr. Tao received his B.Sc.
in management science from Fudan University in 1986, and PhD in
economics from Princeton University in 1992. Dr. Tao is currently an
independent non-executive director of Huadian Fuxin Energy
Corporation Limited (stock code: 816), which is listed on the Stock
Exchange. Dr. Tao is senior fellow at Tsinghua University’s National
Center for Economic Research, senior fellow at Tsinghua University's
Center for China in the World Economy, and special-term professor at
Fudan University School of Management. He is also co-director of the
Asia-Pacific Competitiveness Program of Hong Kong Institute of
Economics and Business Strategy.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Cheng Dickson, aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 11 July 2018. Mr. Cheng is
currently the managing director and head of the investment banking
department of Shanggu Securities Limited. He acts as its responsible
officer and holds licences for types 1, 4 and 6 of regulated activities
under the SFO.

Prior thereto, Mr. Cheng worked in J.P. Morgan between August 1994
and February 1996. In December 1995, he was promoted to TCRM
professional in its global markets department. Between March 1996
and June 2000, Mr. Cheng worked in the securities lending department
of The Bank of New York, Hong Kong Branch. From July 2000 to
August 2002, Mr. Cheng worked as an assistant vice president in the
equity capital markets division of BOCI Asia Limited. In August 2002,
Mr. Cheng joined ICEA Capital Limited and worked in its investment
banking division until October 2005 when he was a senior vice
president. Mr. Cheng was an executive director at the respective
capital markets department in the investment banking division of
Mitsubishi UFJ Securities (HK) Capital, Limited and Mizuho Securities
Asia Limited from November 2005 to October 2016. Mr. Cheng has
more than 23 years of experience in investment banking industry. Mr.
Cheng obtained a bachelor’s degree in arts majoring in economics
from University of Toronto in June 1994 and a master of applied
finance degree majoring in corporate finance from Macquarie
University of Australia in November 2000.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EELEREEABRERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Guanggen, aged 38, is the chief financial officer of the Group
and is responsible for the Group’s overall financial and accounting
affairs. Mr. Liu joined the Group in November 2008. Prior to this, he
worked as a finance manager in The Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China, Shunde Branch from 2004 to 2006, and was a sub-branch
manager of The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Foshan
Shunde Haiginwan Sub-Branch from 2007 to 2008. Mr. Liu completed a
diploma in finance from Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics in September 2005, a program in laws at Guangdong
University of Business Studies from March 2007 to January 2010, as well
as obtaining a master degree in engineering from Chongqging
University upon the completion of courses for the master degree in
software engineering (specialised in financial informatisation) in June
2014. He is an associate member of the Association of International
Accountants.

Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel, aged 42, is the company secretary of the
Company. Mr. Kwan has more than 20 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and finance. Mr. Kwan joined the Group in June
2010 as secretary on a full time basis. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Kwan worked in CWCC Certified Public Accountants from March 2000
to November 2004, PricewaterhouseCoopers from November 2004 to
October 2007 and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from November 2007 to
September 2009. The latter two firms are amongst the biggest
international accounting firms. Mr. Kwan graduated with a bachelor’s
degree in Commerce from Deakin University of Australia in September
2000 and obtained a master degree in business administration from
University of South Australia in August 2012. He is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and member
of the CPA Australia.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

China Lesso is always committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance practices and business ethics of the Group. The
Board believes in good corporate governance practices and business
ethics which are essential for achieving sustainable development,
establishing investors’ confidence in the Company and safeguarding
and enhancing the interests of the Shareholders.

In pursuit of good and high standards of corporate governance
practices, the Board reviews the corporate governance practices of the
Company from time to time so as to meet the expectations of the
Shareholders for continual improvement, and fulfill its commitment of
pursuing excellent corporate governance. In the opinion of the
directors, the Company complied with all the applicable code
provisions of the Code during the year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code governing
securities transactions by directors of the Company. Having made
specific enquiry to the directors, all of them confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year. The Model Code is also applicable to other
specific senior management of the Company. The directors’ and chief
executive's interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on page 66.

BOARD

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 15 directors, including 10 executive
directors and 5 independent non-executive directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD (Continued)

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (Continued)

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”),
any director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing directors shall hold office only until the next annual general
meeting ("AGM") of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting. In addition, at every AGM of the Company,
not less than one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Apart from
retirement by rotation pursuant to the Articles, each non-executive
director has a term of within three years. Therefore, no director will
remain in office for a term of more than three years. For details relating
to any relationship among the members of the Board, including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship, please
refer to the sections headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” and “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of
the Directors’ Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

To segregate the management of the Board from the daily
management and business operations of the Group effectively, the
post of chairman and the chief executive are held by Mr. Wong Luen
Hei and Mr. Zuo Manlun, respectively. One of the important duties of
the chairman is to lead the Board to ensure the Board always acts in
the best interests of the Group. The chairman shall ensure the effective
operation of the Board and fully perform his/her duties and ensure all
important issues are discussed at Board meetings in a timely manner.
All directors will be consulted for any proposed items in the agenda.
The chairman has delegated the drafting of the agenda of each Board
meeting to the chief executive and the company secretary. With the
assistance of the chief executive and the company secretary, the
chairman aims to ensure all directors are adequately briefed on any
issues being put forward at a Board meeting and receive sufficient and

reliable information in a timely manner.
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BOARD (Continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors provide various expertise
and experiences, and maintain balance of interest to safeguard the
interests of the Group and the Shareholders. They participate in Board
meetings and committee meetings and make independent judgements
on issues related to the Group's strategies, performance, interest
conflicts and management process so as to ensure the interests of all
Shareholders are properly considered.

The Company has received annual confirmation made by each of the
independent non-executive directors under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules regarding their independence. The Company regarded all
independent non-executive directors are independent in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The Board shoulders the responsibility of providing effective,
responsible and reliable leadership to the Group. The Board exercises
its rights in management decision on the aspects of the Company'’s
development strategy, management structure, investment and
financing, planning, financial control and personnel in accordance with
the requirements of the Code.

The Company appointed Ernst & Young as the Company’s
independent auditor to review the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2019 and to audit the annual results for the year ended
31 December 2019. The directors of the Company acknowledge their
responsibility for preparing the consolidated financial statements
included in the annual report and the interim report. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019, the directors have selected and applied appropriate accounting
policies and have made prudent and reasonable judgements and
estimates in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.

The declaration of reporting responsibility issued by the external
auditor of the Company on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 76
to 85.

EE2 @)

BAFATES

BUFPTEFRESAERNFNESR - L
FNmEFE - AEEAEERRR 2 ME - BE
2HEBEEERNTLEEEHR  HIAMAEE
ZHEE  RB - NBEFREEEBIE 2 FEAED
BY A NEREEBERZNEESEEEE -

ARRBWE S B IERITESRIE LTHRASE
3G EBIEMEL N FERERE - AR F]
BIEETRANEIIBIERERBEIIENTEE S
BIATL o

EEERE
ExeRANAKRERHEAMKLAER
B -EFQEARAERBE B
BLmE FHE - MBEE AFES
AIMRETTREIRRERE -

HRE
B’
1R AR <T

d o mp
B ¥

RAREEIEBL KSR EHAMAERRRBL
BERRD - SLELE 20194 6 B30 B 1E /1A A 89 Hi
EEETEN MBEZE2019F12A31HIEF
EHMEFXEETEZ AR ESEAREEE
REFHREPRARENSBGEMEREOEL -
EHERHEEBE2019F12 A3 HILFELHEA BT
X ERCREBEEFSYBHREENRERER
AENERTECR RMEHFEA BN ARG -

ARBINEZBE AR REGRA M BRRIEL D
FE ¥R B AR TIE A S 76 = 85 B BB L R BAD IR

A

Annual Report 2019 4 $R 17



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PEERME

BOARD (Continued) Egg(ﬁ)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS EERBAE

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties ZFEBEBITHLEESRE B -
including:

(a)  to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on  (a) ZEREBHAATDEECSRERER

corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional (b) BMENEBEZEELRIRNEIEABNEII N
development of directors and senior management; BEEUR

() to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on  (¢) BHEREEARAGEETEEZLREERTEN
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; EOBRELER

(d) to review of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control  (d) #8287 B EBIZE $I & 45 9 AL
system;

(e) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and (e) %E - st REE@EAR EE&%?E’]T <F
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and ERIRARFME)
directors; and

(/) to review the Company’'s compliance with Appendix 14 to the () BEBEARQFEST EHHRAIMEE14(DESS
Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate TFRIRMESERE) 2B -

Governance Report).

The Board has performed the above activities during 2019. EZGR2019FHE DT LIRS -
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BOARD (Continued)

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board convened ten
meetings to review operating performance, funding requirement and
recent market conditions. The Board also considered and approved
the Group's overall strategy, audited annual results for the year ended
31 December 2018 and reviewed interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2019.

The chairman of the Board and the chairman of the audit committee,
the nomination committee and the remuneration committee, attended
the AGM of the Company held on 27 May 2019.

The table below sets out the attendance of all members of the Board
at the meetings held in 2019:

EEgm)

EEgeERBEREAE
HE2019F12A31BEFE  EF2dHATX
g% UEMEERE BT RkEKETMR -
EZTSNCEEMIERER 2 BERE  H2
2018 F 12 A3 HIEFENLEREFEENEE
2019F 6 A30 B IE AN AR KCEH R HIZSE -

BEETFENERZES  RIEZESRFMZ
EeNERHBHBEARARRN201945 827 HE
THRRBFERS -

TR 2019FEFTEEHRENLFEERBN -

Meetings attended/eligible to attend®
HEAB SERLEHRYE

Audit Nomination Remuneration

AGM® Committee Committee Committee
Directors RRAFEAG® ENZEE REZES FHZEEE
Executive directors HITES
Wong Luen Hei BHE 11 10/10 - 1/1 2/2
Zuo Manlun it ”n 10/10 - 1 172
Zuo Xiaoping EEH 0/1 9/10 - - -
Lai Zhigiang raEE 17 8/10 - - -
Kong Zhaocong KR n 9/10 - - -
Chen Guonan PRElR 17 10/10 - - -
Lin Shaoquan whe 1”1 10/10 - - -
Huang Guirong BFEE 1”1 10/10 - - -
Luo Jianfeng pegedlS 17 10/10 - - -
Lin Dewei iz 11 10/10 - - -
Independent non-executive directors B FHTES
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan TEx 17 7110 212 N 212
Cheung Man Yu RXF 11 9/10 212 - 1/2
Lan Fang Br 171 5/10 - 0/1 -
Tao Zhigang )] 171 9/10 2/2 11 2/2
Cheng Dickson e ”n 10/10 2/2 - -

Note: B 5E
(a) Directors may attend meetings in person, by phone or through other means of ~ (a) REERANRT  EFHURT  EREFIEME

video conference in accordance with the Articles.

(b) There was no other general meeting held in 2019.

LeBRREHERS -

(b)  R2019FR - HEEMRRAEGET -
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BOARD (Continued)

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Continued)

The Company gives proper notices of Board meetings to the directors
and the procedure of Board meetings is in compliance with the Articles
and the relevant rules and regulations. The agenda and the relevant
documents will be provided to all directors in a timely manner. The
chairman will give a proper briefing to all directors on items to be put
forward at a Board meeting. To ensure compliance with the procedure
of Board meetings and all applicable rules and regulations, all directors
may gain a full understanding of all relevant data in a timely manner
and may receive advice and services from the company secretary. The
minutes of Board meetings are kept by the company secretary and are
available for inspection by the directors and the auditor of the
Company.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

The directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company would provide a comprehensive induction package covering
the summary of the responsibilities and obligations of a director of a
Hong Kong listed company, the Company’s constitutional documents
and the Guides on Directors’ Duties issued by the Hong Kong
Companies Registry to each newly appointed director to ensure he/she
to have sufficient awareness of good corporate governance practices.

The company secretary reports from time to time the latest changes
and development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices
and other regulatory regime to the directors with written materials, as
well as organises seminars on the professional knowledge and latest
development of regulatory requirements related to director’s duties
and responsibilities.

In 2019, the Company invited Ernst & Young to give a seminar on the

topic of “Introduction to China’s Tax Regulatory Environment” to
Board members.
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BOARD (Continued)

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS (Continued)
Apart from the above training offered by the Company, based on the

training records provided to the Company by the directors, the

directors also participated in the following trainings during 2019:

Directors

Executive directors
Wong Luen Hei
Zuo Manlun
Zuo Xiaoping
Lai Zhigiang
Kong Zhaocong
Chen Guonan
Lin Shaoquan
Huang Guirong
Luo Jianfeng
Lin Dewei

Independent non-executive directors
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Cheung Man Yu

Lan Fang

Tao Zhigang

Cheng Dickson

=
BITES

"R
et
EXRF
FEER
FLIKER
PREIRE
oz

e xx
HFEHE

ageales
INE

BYFUITES
TEZx

KX T

[Pz

B 75 )

Mimsz

EEgm)

EERIIRZE @

BT B AR RRENIFIN  REBEESRA
NERHENIFIIE - R2019F EXTALH
AT -

Type of trainings
b ki)

AC
AC
AC
AC
AC
AC
AC
AC
AC
AC

AC
AC
AB,C
AB,C
AC

N

A:

ote:

delivering talks at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

reading information, newspapers, journals and materials relating to the

responsibilities of directors, economy, fiscal, financial, investments and business of

the Company

B
A EETERR/AEHESLRE
B ATHER/REHR/ TREEE

C MEABEERE @F R ME BREREAR
EHHEN - BE - PRER
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EEARE

BOARD (Continued)

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary reports to the Board so as to ensure
compliance with the procedures of the Board meeting and ensure the
Board is fully briefed on all legislations, regulations and corporate
governance development and has considered their opinions when
making a decision. The company secretary is also directly responsible
for the Group's compliance with its continuing obligations under the
Listing Rules, Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Buy-backs, Companies Ordinance, SFO and other applicable laws,
rules and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the company secretary has
received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training to
refresh his knowledge and skills.

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in the
discharge of their duties while holding office as the directors and
officers of the Company. The directors and officers shall not be
indemnified where there is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust
proven against them.

In accordance with the Articles, subject to the Cayman Island
Companies Law (2013 Revision, as amended from time to time), every
director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a director, auditor or other
officer of the Company in defending any proceedings, whether civil or
criminal, in which judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is
acquitted.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to certain committees
under its supervision, including the Company’s audit committee
("Audit Committee”), remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) and nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”)
(collectively known as “Board Committees”). Board Committees can
engage intermediaries to provide professional opinions and the
reasonable expenses incurred as a result are borne by the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four members, namely Dr. Tao
Zhigang (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Wong Kwok Ho
Jonathan, Mr. Cheung Man Yu and Mr. Cheng Dickson (all are
independent non-executive directors). The major responsibility of the
Audit Committee is to conduct independent and objective audit of the
truth and accuracy of the Group's economic operation and financial
activities, financial policies, financial procedures, risk management,
internal control, external audit, internal audit, financial information
reporting and financial data and assist the Board in discharging its
relevant duties.

The Audit Committee shall convene at least two meetings each year. In
2019, the Audit Committee convened two meetings. The attendance
record of the meetings is set out on a named basis on page 19.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during 2019:

o review of the annual report and the annual results announcement
for the year ended 31 December 2018, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

o review of Ernst & Young's confirmation of independence and its
report for the Audit Committee for the year ended 31 December
2018, with a recommendation to the Board for the re-
appointment of Ermnst & Young at the 2019 AGM,;

° review of continuing connected transactions;

o review of the Group internal audit reports;

EEXZET

EEgCHRERESDRTEEEBTETXZE
g ERARAzZERZER((EREEE])
Mz Ee((FMMEZE8e D URRERZEE (1R
*%ZEBg]) (MR EXLBe)) - EEXZ8e
AABEFNMHBRHEXER  MEENSE
ERBADAESE -

BREES

ERZEeRMNAKEAR BB IERITES
EMBL(ERZE8EEE)  TBRLE K
XFRENBAREE BEREZEENTIERE
ERAEBENEFET MM EEE - MBEE -
MR - RRERE - AEESH - SNEEEE A
MEF  MBEERS VMM BEIENEE LR
ETHILREBNEZ BB EEERITHAAR

ERZEQABTFELARAEEMNX - K2019
FoOEZZEERARATRIZH %Soazd
FERLER (LA B TER) SFIRE 198 -

T AEZZEEN2019FRE TIEHE ¢

. EFHE2018F12ANHIEFENFRL
FEREENE  VEEEE9EH:
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

o review of the interim report and the interim results announcement
for the six months ended 30 June 2019, with a recommendation
to the Board for approval;

] review and approval of Ernst & Young's report for the Audit
Committee for the six months ended 30 June 2019;

o consideration and approval of audit and non-audit services;

. review of the corporate governance report for the year ended 31
December 2018 and the corporate governance disclosures for
the six months ended 30 June 2019, with recommendations to
the Board for approval;

o review of the corporate social responsibility report for the year
ended 31 December 2018 with a recommendation to the Board
for approval; and

] review of the annual report on effectiveness of risk management,
internal control system and internal audit function under the
Code, with a recommendation to the Board for approval.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed the annual
report and annual results announcement for the year ended 31
December 2019 with a recommendation to the Board for approval.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the service fees paid or payable
by the Group to the external auditors are set out as follows:

EEZFEE W

BEREREE (@)
o  EHHEE2019F6A30R LA A S H

RERPHREQE  ITEZEZTSEB
o  EHMBBLOKEIMEFMBEZZES

B ZE 20195 6 A30 B IEXE AW ®RE

o  EEWIEBETE NIERTRE

. EBHE2018F 1283 BILEFENDLEE
ARG ME R 201996 A30H 1EN1E A
TEELREE  TE22=F238

. %Bﬂ%@zomiuﬂmaiﬁﬁmﬁ%ﬁ
SEIHRE BEEERGE R

o RETAEMFERBREE  REEHRR
RAREZD R ERE YRR EESR
@ o

REEFERE  BEREZESEREE2019F12A
JNNBEFENEFREFEXERNE  TEZES
3G -

INEE A B BT
HE2019F 128318 IEFE  AEE@EINERZ
EE A EN 2 RIFBASHTIOT ¢

RMB million
AREBEER

Annual audit services FEETRE 9.37
Non-audit services IEEET AR

— Interim results review e E | 1.72
— Others? — Hp# 1.01
Total @t 12.10

# “Others” were mainly for providing advice on matters in relation to taxation. The

provision of these services by external auditors were cost effective and efficient due

to their professional knowledge.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, namely Dr.
Tao Zhigang (chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
independent non-executive director), Mr. Wong Luen Hei (executive
director), Mr. Zuo Manlun (executive director), Mr. Wong Kwok Ho
Jonathan and Mr. Cheung Man Yu (both of them are independent non-
executive directors).

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for studying and
formulating the Company’s remuneration policy and incentive
mechanism and is responsible for formulating the standards for the
appraisal of the Company’s directors and senior management and
conducting appraisals.

The Remuneration Committee has the delegated responsibility to
determine the specific remuneration packages of all directors and
senior management. In order to determine the level of remuneration
and fees paid to members of the Board, market rates and factors such
as each director’s workload, responsibility and job complexity are taken
into account. The following factors are considered when determining
the remuneration packages of directors and senior management:

° business requirements;

° individual performance and contribution to results;

o company performance and profitability;

. retention considerations and the potential of individuals;

J changes in relevant markets, including supply and demand

fluctuations and changes in competitive conditions; and
° general economic situation.

During the review process, no individual director is involved in
decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee shall convene at least one meeting each
year. In 2019, the Remuneration Committee convened two meetings,
assessed the performance of the Company’s directors and senior
management, reviewed terms of their service contracts, and made
recommendation of the remuneration packages for directors and
senior management to the Board. The attendance record of the
meeting is set out on a named basis on page 19.

Details of directors’ remuneration and five highest paid employees are
set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the remuneration of the two senior management fell within the band of
less than RMB1 million.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises five members, namely Mr.
Wong Luen Hei (chairman of the Nomination Committee and executive
director), Mr. Zuo Manlun (executive director), Mr. Wong Kwok Ho
Jonathan, Ms. Lan Fang and Dr. Tao Zhigang (all of them are
independent non-executive directors). The major duty of the
Nomination Committee is to study and make recommendations on the
candidates, selection criteria and procedure in respect of the
Company's directors and senior management.

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new directors to the Board. The Nomination
Committee reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board,
identifies suitable candidates if necessary and makes recommendations
to the Board. The director nomination policy sets out the approach
and procedures the Board adopts for the nomination and selection of
directors of the Company including the appointment of additional
directors, replacement of directors, and re-election of directors. Below
are details of the selection criteria and nomination process and
procedures as set out in the director nomination policy.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

In the determination of the suitability of a candidate, the Nomination
Committee shall consider the potential contribution such candidate
can bring to the Board in terms of his or her qualifications, skills,
experience, independence, age, culture, ethnicity and gender diversity
etc. The Nomination Committee shall consider the following selection
criteria and such other factors that it may consider appropriate for a
position on the Board, including but not limited to: (a) attributes
complementary to the Board, (b) business experience, board expertise
and skills, (c) availability, (d) motivation, (e) integrity, (f) independence
and (g) diversity (in all aspects).

For the appointment of new and replacement directors, if the Board
determines that an additional or replacement director is required, it
will deploy multiple channels for identifying suitable director
candidates, including referral from directors, shareholders,
management, advisors of the Company and executive search firms.
Upon compilation and interview of the list of potential candidates, the
Nomination Committee will make recommendation to the Board based
on the selection criteria and such other factors that it considers
appropriate. The Board has the final authority on determining suitable
director candidate for appointment.

For the re-election of directors, where a retiring director, being eligible,
offers himself for re-election, the Board shall consider and, if consider
appropriate, recommend such retiring director to stand for re-election
at a general meeting. A circular containing the requisite information on
such retiring director will be sent to shareholders prior to a general
meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

For directors nominated by shareholders, such nominating shareholder
must follow the “Procedures for shareholder(s) of the Company
proposing a person for election as a director” which is available on the
Company's website.

In any event, the Board shall ensure that the nomination, re-election
and/or appointment of the directors shall be conducted in compliance
with the Listing Rules, the memorandum and articles of association of
the Company and all other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

For further details, please refer to the nomination policy that is
available on the Company’s website.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Nomination Committee shall convene at least one meeting each
year. In 2019, the Nomination Committee convened two meetings. The
Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition
of the Board, recommended the Board on the list of retiring directors
for re-election at the AGM on 27 May 2019 in accordance with the
director nomination policy and Board diversity policy of the Company,
and reviewed the independence of all independent non-executive
directors. The attendance record of the meeting is set out on a named
basis on page 19.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Board diversity policy
is available on the website of the Company.

The Company recognises that increasing diversity at the Board level
will support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and other qualities.
The Company will also take into consideration its own business model
and specific needs from time to time in determining the optimal
composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee will review the
Board diversity policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued
effectiveness from time to time.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 15 directors. Two of
them are females. One third of the Board members are independent
non-executive directors, thereby promoting critical review and control
of the management process. The composition of the Board reflects the
necessary balance of skills, professional experience and knowledge for
effective leadership of the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is solely responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Group's strategic objectives, and ensuring the Group has established
and maintained appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control system. The Board is also responsible for monitoring
the design, implementation and review on the risk management and
internal control system as carried out by management, while
management has the responsibility to provide confirmation on the
effectiveness of such system. To this end, management continues to
allocate resources for a risk management and internal control system
compatible with the COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission) standards to provide reasonable, though
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure in the operating system
of the Group and in achieving business objectives of the Group.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has continuously monitored
and annually reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control system, and the Board is of the view
that the existing risk management and internal control system is
sufficient, effective and adequate. The review covered all material
aspects with regard to control, including financial control, operational
control and compliance control. The internal audit reports submitted
to the Audit Committee by the Group also cover aspects of risk
management and internal control. The Board is not aware of any
significant areas of concern which may affect the Shareholders, and
believes that the Group has fully complied with the code provisions on
internal controls, including compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, as set forth in the Code. The Board, through the
appraisal performed by the Audit Committee, reviewed, ensured and
confirmed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs received by the staff and budget of the
Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function at
the Board meeting. In light of the Group's nature of business and the
recommendations on the Board's role in risk management, the Group
has developed risk management system and policies, and established
a risk management project team, which is responsible for the Group's
risk management, to communicate and assess the Group's risk profile
and material risks, and track the progress of mitigation plans and
activities of material risks and report on detailed examinations of
specific risks as required.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM ElsEEAMSER

The Group has established a comprehensive organisation structure to ~ AEE BT —ECEMAEEE - YAEEFRR
manage the risks encountered by the Group. The risk management E¥ A EMREITEIE o EF! . ZEE’]J—L[@" IRLRIE
structure of China Lesso comprised of two key factors: risk BIEMEBERZE : &B EEAMEREIEIE

management structure and risk management program. = o

; ; Risk Risk Supervision and
CoIIecthn of Risk Management Management Enhancement of
Information Assessment Strategies Solutions Risk Management

RGeS N S JER\ e 5 3R SR R EIE [ R B IR A
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

(A)

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

Regulatory Organisation

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the overall risk

management

determine the overall objective, risk appetites and risk
tolerance for corporate risk management, and approve risk
management strategies, major risk mitigation solutions and

risk management measures;

comprehend and manage each major risk faced by the
enterprise and its existing management situations, and
make effective risks management decisions; approve the
decision-making standards and mechanisms regarding
major operating decisions, major risks, major events and
major business processes;

approve risk management report related to major decisions;

and

approve the annual comprehensive risk management
report.

Risk Management Organisation
The Audit Committee, the highest risk management organisation

in the Company which is accountable to the Board

review the establishment and planning of the

comprehensive risk management system;

review the proposal on the structure of the risk
management organisations and their responsibilities;

review the annual comprehensive risk management report
and submit to the Board;

review risk management strategies, major risk management
solutions and risk management measures; and

review the annual risk management work plan.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

(A) RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued)

Leading Risk Management Organisation

32

Risk management project team, the leading risk management

organisation

responsible for the establishment and amendment of the
Company's risk management policies and mechanisms;

formulate and submit annual risk management work plan to
the Board and the Audit Committee for their review;

regularly collect first-hand information regarding risk
management, carry out risk assessment and discuss major
risks as faced by the Company; and

assess the soundness, reasonability and the effectiveness in
implementing the risk management system, and review the
annual comprehensive risk management report, risk
management strategies and day-to-day risk management
solutions.

Risk Implementation Organisation

Each functional department of the Company shall accept the

coordination and monitoring carried out by the risk management

project team

implement the basic process in risk management;

consider and propose decision-making standards or
mechanisms regarding major operating decisions, major
risks, major events and major business processes of the
functional department;

analyse and propose risk assessment report of the
functional department;

properly carry out risk management work of the functional
department; and

establish a comprehensive risk management process of the
functional department.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

(A) RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued)

Risk Supporting Organisation

Internal control team

. assist the Group's risk management work, and formulate
internal control plan in accordance with the result of risk
assessment;

o centrally organise or, together with related functional
departments, design, amend or improve internal control
documents in accordance with risk management solutions;

° assist the risk management project team to inspect,
examine, evaluate and improve the implementation of risk
management in each functional departments and operating
units; and

o assist the timely rectification and improvements to existing
deficiencies of each functional department based on the
findings in the internal audit report.

Internal audit department

. assist the Group's risk management work, and formulate
internal audit plan in accordance with the result of risk
assessment;

° carry out measures including walk-through test and
analytical review to evaluate the effectiveness in risk
management; and

o after carrying out internal audit, deliver the auditing results
to internal control team and risk management project team
timely.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM B EIE AR @

(Continued)

(B) RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (B)

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management
program which is led by the risk management project team and
implemented with the assistance of the internal audit department
and internal control team. The risk management program is as
follows:

(@)  to collect first-hand information for risk management;
(b) to analyse and assess risks;

(c) to propose risk management strategies and form risk
management solutions; and

(d)  to supervise the implementation of risk management works
P p 9
performed by each business units and verify the overall

score.
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SUPERVISION AND ENHANCEMENT OF RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Group has set up basic procedures that cover the whole process
of risk management, connecting the channels of communication of risk
management information along the reporting lines and among various
departments and business units to ensure the timely, accurate and
complete communication of information and this has laid the
foundation for the supervision and enhancement of risk management.

The senior management of the Group, focusing on material risks,
material matters and material decisions, important management
matters and the business flow, supervises the work relating to the first-
hand information collection for risk management, risk assessment, risk
management strategies, critical control activities and the
implementation of risk management solutions. The risk management
project team carries out an annual review and examination on the
implementation of the works on risk management by different
departments and business units and its effectiveness for the year,
assesses risk management strategies and evaluates inter-departmental
risk management solutions and business units’ risk management
solutions, proposes suggestions for adjustments and improvements
and issues evaluation and recommendation reports which will be sent
to the relevant senior management in a timely manner.

MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE

The material risks that the Group may face which include macro-
economic risks, risks of inappropriate strategies for market
competition, risks of the fluctuation of raw materials price, risks of
adjustments of policies in relation to the environmental protection,
economy and industry.

The potential risks of macro-economic risks arise from the effects of
macro-economy’s volatility and the pressure of inflation. The Group's
corresponding measures on risk management include reviewing the
management strategies and mechanism for macro-economic risks;
reviewing the relevant mechanism on the collection of intelligence
about the changes in the external macro-economic environment;
clearly defining the macro-economic risk analysis session; analysing,
reviewing, adjusting and improving the strategies for managing macro-
economic risks in future.
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MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE
(Continued)

The potential risks of inappropriate strategies for market competition
arise from the risks involved in the formulation of competition
strategies and risks involved in the collection of clients’ information.
The Group’s risk management measures include reviewing the
management mechanism for market competition strategies; analysing
the Company’s position in market competition, reviewing the
corresponding market competition strategies; and timely devising and
reviewing the management strategies in response to the changes in
the market competition environment and submitting report thereon to
management; collecting the market competition information of new
products and offering suggestions on competition strategies.

The potential risks of the fluctuation of raw materials price arise
because the price of key raw materials purchased by the Company is
easily affected by the shortfall of refining capabilities, changes in
manufacturers’ power and labour cost structure, changes in the price
of resins made from coal and petrochemicals. The Group’s risk
management measures include clearly stating the risk management
strategies and mechanism for the fluctuation of raw materials price in
the relevant systems; collecting information in relation to the
fluctuation of raw materials price and releasing such information
internally through an established channel; regularly reporting and
analysing the fluctuation of raw materials price; clearly defining the
analysis session for the increased risks of fluctuation of raw materials
price; analysing, reviewing, adjusting and improving the management
strategies for the risks of fluctuation of raw materials price.

The potential risks of adjustments of policies in relation to the
environmental protection, economy and industry arise from the risks of
adjustments of environmental policies; risks of adjustments of
urbanisation policies; risks of adjustments of construction projects of
significant water works including water saving and water supplies; risks
of adjustments of real estate policies. The Group's risk management
measures include reviewing the management strategies and
mechanism for risks involved in the adjustments of policies in relation
to the environmental protection, economy and industry; collecting
information in relation to changes in environmental protection,
economy and industry policies and releasing such information internally
through an established channel; reviewing the mechanism for
monitoring and collecting the information on laws and regulations that
affect the industry.
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MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE
(Continued)

In addition to the material risks mentioned above, we identified, during
the course of business planning process in 2019, that the Group may
be exposed to new material risks, including cybersecurity risks, risks of
the coronavirus disease (“COVID-19"), and climate change risks.

The potential risks of cybersecurity risks arise from two aspects: on the
one hand, the vulnerability of networks to different kinds of cyber
attacks because of its own security defects; on the other hand, external
and internal risks of the Group. External risks mainly represent
intentional or unintentional damage and threats from outsiders, such
as malicious attacks by “hackers”, illegal interception of network data
and transmission of computer viruses. Internal risks mainly include
misuse or abuse of critical and sensitive information, theft, intentional
or unintentional disclosure of confidential information by employees.
The Group's corresponding measures on risk management include
establishing online permissions; developing and using software for
communication within the Group; establishing two sites and three
centers and implementing dual-active and duplication of intra-city and
inter-city data centre; and strengthening development in four areas:
environment, data, terminals and cybersecurity.

The potential risks of COVID-19 arise from the impact of
macroeconomic fluctuations and the uncertainties in resumption of
work and production of upstream and downstream enterprises. Due to
the outbreak of the COVID-19, various industries suspended work and
production and many enterprises are facing the risk of interruption of
capital flow and suffering hardship. It has also brought a negative
impact on foreign trade, thus dragging down the economy of the PRC.
The Group's corresponding measures include providing guidelines for
epidemic prevention and control and resumption of work,
strengthening employees’ awareness of prevention and control, and
enabling resumption of work and production in an active and orderly
manner; continually promoting full automation of production bases;
paying close attention to the needs of various areas in epidemic
prevention, and assuming corporate social responsibility, supporting
the construction of epidemic prevention hospitals in all provinces and
regions across the country and making in-kind donations.
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MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE
(Continued)

Climate change risks are a kind of compound risks in the global risk
society. The risks can be classified into economic risk, political risk,
social risk, and ecological risk, etc. The Group's corresponding
measures on risk management include improving environmental
management, practicing green operations, improving the efficiency of
use of energy resources, exercising strict management on waste
discharge in the production and operation process, actively
transmitting the concept of green development to the public, and
building a green operation roadmap to the harmonious coexistence of
enterprises and the environment.

MANAGEMENT OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has formulated a set of program of continuing obligations
on information management and disclosure to formally regulate the
monitoring of inside information that arises during the course of its
current business development and has established the practice of
delivering such information to shareholders, the media and analysts.
When the Group handles the relevant matters, it will comply with
"Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by Securities
and Futures Commission and the related provisions issued by
regulatory organisations and the Group has clearly stated that the
unauthorised use of confidential or inside information is prohibited.
The Group has a system of answering enquiries about the Group's
matters by external parties, and has appointed and authorised the
senior executives of the Group to act as the Company’s spokesperson
in response to enquiries on a particular area.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has formulated a “"whistleblowing policy” whereby
employees can report any matters to the chairman or the Audit
Committee secretly by sending electronic mails to the designated
address or by phone without fear of being accused. Such matters may
include misconduct, irregular conduct or fraud regarding financial
matters and accounting practices. Any Shareholder or stakeholder can
also report similar concerns in writing or verbally in confidence to the
Audit Committee.
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DIVIDENDS POLICY

The declaration, payment and amount of dividends will be subject to
the Company’s discretion. Dividends may be paid only out of its
distributable reserves as permitted under the relevant laws. The
Company has adopted a general dividend policy of declaring and
paying dividends on a semi-annual basis of around 30% of its profit
attributable to the owners of the Company. The Board would review
the Company'’s dividend policy from time to time considering factors
including but not limited to debt covenants, capital investment and
business plan.

THE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS
AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2013 Revision, as amended from time to time).
However, pursuant to the Articles, the Shareholder(s) may request for
the convening of extraordinary general meetings following the
procedures below:

. Any two or more Shareholder(s) or any one Shareholder which is
a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) may request for
the convening of extraordinary general meetings by written
requisition deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office. The requisition shall specify
the object of the meeting and be signed by the requisitionist(s),
and such requisitionist(s) must hold as at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at the general
meeting of the Company.

o The Board shall proceed to convene the extraordinary general
meeting within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS
AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING (Continued)

J If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held
within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may convene the extraordinary general meeting in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which the
meeting may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the date of deposit of the requisition. All
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.

J An extraordinary general meeting called for the passing of a
special resolution shall be called by not less than 21 days' notice
in writing and any other extraordinary general meeting shall be
called by not less than 14 days’ notice in writing. The notice of
the meeting shall specify the time, place, and agenda of the
meeting, particulars of the resolutions to be considered and in
the case of special business, the general nature of that business.

o Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director are available on the Company’s website.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING THE SHAREHOLDERS'
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

The Shareholders may put forward their enquiries about the Company
to the Board at the Company's principal place of business in Hong
Kong or by email or through the Company’s investor relations whose
contact details are provided in the “Corporate Information” section of
this report. In addition, the Shareholders can contact Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the Company’s branch share
registrar, if they have any enquiries about their shareholdings and
entitlements to dividend.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of transparency in
communication with the Shareholders and investors in general.
Communication between the Company and the Shareholders is
conducted through various channels, including interim and annual
reports, information published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company and general meetings. The Company encourages
the Shareholders to attend the Company’s general meetings. The
Group's financial and other information is also published on the
website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the website of
the Company (www.lesso.com).

The Company’s senior management endeavours to maintain an open
dialogue channel with the investment sector to ensure they have a
thorough understanding of the Company and its operations and
strategies. The Company has emphasised the importance of the
function of investor relations, engaged a dedicated independent third
party to maintain investor relations and conduct investor/analyst
meetings from time to time and led investors and analysts to visit its
plants.

As regards to investor relations, the Group will actively conduct
activities related to investor relations in the future to strengthen its
corporate responsibility so that global investors can have an adequate
knowledge and understanding of the Company’s operating strategy,
financial performance and development prospects. The Company will
actively develop and maintain close relationship with investors, analysts

and media to achieve sound investor relations management.

The Company applies the principle of a quiet period in its investor
relations communications. During a quiet period, the Company does
not comment on market prospects or factors affecting business and
performance, or engage in discussion on events or trends related to
the reporting period. The Company will not initiate any meeting or
conference call with public in which these matters are discussed. A
quiet period starts at 60 days or 30 days prior to the disclosure of
annual results or interim results respectively, and lasts until the
announcement of the annual results or the interim results.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no change to the
memorandum of association of the Company and Articles. The latest
memorandum of association of the Company and Articles are available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CORPORATE OVERVIEW

China Lesso is a leading large-scale industrial group which produces
building materials and interior decoration products in mainland China.
The Group established 25 advanced production bases in 16 provinces
within China and foreign countries to support a nationwide sales
network. The Group strives to refine its strategic planning and sales
network, offering a comprehensive range of diverse industrial products
and quality sales services.

The Group continued to reinforce its leading position in the Chinese
market, especially in Southern China, on the strength of its quality
products, advanced technologies in research and development and a
wide sales network. In recent years, the Group has been actively
developing business in other local markets and overseas markets.
While steadily upgrading the core business of plastic piping systems,
the Group has also actively opened up building materials and interior
decoration products, environmental protection and specialty market
platform businesses, thereby creating long-term business synergy to
the overall business of the Group, and providing customers with
convenient and efficient solutions.

The brand name LESSO of China Lesso represents the key elements of
the Group's corporate culture: “Link, Easiness, Safety, Sharing and
Openness”, and demonstrates its commitment to “Creating a Relaxing
Life for Dwellers”. In 2019, China Lesso continued to receive national
and industrial awards which consolidated its strong brand reputation
and leading position in the industry, including “70 Brands of the 70th
Anniversary of New China”, “China’s Top 500 Companies in Terms of
Brand Value”, “2019's Interior Decoration Brand in terms of Investment
Value”, “Top 500 Chinese Private Owned Enterprises”, “National
Brand of Water Supply and Drainage Industry and Outstanding
Contribution Award”, “Top 10 Companies Award in China’s Light
Industry and Plastics Industry”. The Group's leading brand position
reflects its strong capabilities to conduct product research and
development and to ensure excellent product quality. This has laid a
solid foundation for the Group's strong business presence in mainland
China and overseas markets, and gave the impetus for further
expansion of China Lesso's sales network.
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MARKET REVIEW

In 2019, the protracted Sino-United States trade friction shrouded the
global economy in uncertainty. However, China continued with its
supply-side reform aiming for steady economic growth in the long
term. During the year under review, the central government of China
reiterated that
speculation” and put in place a long-term regulatory mechanism for

“houses are for people to live in but not for

stabilising the prices of lands and housing and managing market
expectations. It had also fine-tuned the policies on the property sector
and made them more flexible by allowing municipal governments to
adopt city-specific policies according to the conditions of the local
property markets. This is summed up by the principles of " City-specific
Policies and One Strategy for One City”. The Chinese government also
tightened controls on the financing of the real estate sector throughout
the year of 2019. As a result, downward pressure on the real estate
market mounted. Meanwhile, the Chinese government pressed on with
its policies on energy conservation and environmental protection to
match the progress of urbanisation. Accordingly, it increased
investment in urban infrastructure. The conditions for the financing of
the projects undertaken through public-private partnerships were also
improving, favouring the development of urban infrastructure. All this
resulted in steady growth in demand for pipes and pipe fittings.

In addition, large-scale infrastructure projects will add impetus to
urbanisation and regional economic development. This means
enormous demand for pipes and pipe fittings. According to a forecast
made in the “Proposal on Development of the PRC's Plastic Industry
During the 13th Five-year Plan Period (2016-2020)"
China’s plastic pipe production will grow by approximately 3%

, the volume of

annually. In 2020, it is expected that the volume of China’s plastic pipe
production will reach 16 million tonnes. Moreover, in “The 13th Five-
year Plan for the Construction of the Nationwide Urban Municipal
Infrastructure”, targets have been set for the development of the
country’s infrastructure for water supply, heating, drainage and
prevention of waterlogging. Under this program, China plans to add
93,000 kilometres (“km”) of new pipelines to the water supply network,
add 95,000 km of new pipelines to the drainage network, and replace
23,000 km of old pipelines in drainage network. It will also extend the
central heating network by 41,000 km of pipelines and build 137,000
km of gas pipelines and 112,400 km of urban rainwater pipelines during
the period of “The 13th Five-year Plan”. All this indicates a bright
future of the pipes and pipe fittings industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MARKET REVIEW (Continued)

The accelerating global trend of conversion to low-carbon clean
energy that China’s demand for natural gas is constantly increasing.
There is room for steady growth of the pipes and pipe fittings industry.
"The Program for Natural Gas Development under the 13th Five-Year
Plan” stated that during this period, China will build 40,000 km of new
main and branch natural gas pipelines, which will result in a total length
of 104,000 km in 2020. Specifically, according to the “Plan for Using
Clean Energy for Winter Heating in Northern China (2017-2021)", the
country plans to build eight new main pipes with the total capacity of
transmitting approximately 75 billion cubic meters of natural gas per
year. Further details of the national plan show that Beijing, Tianjin,
Hebei, Shandong, Henan and Shanxi will together add 4,300 km of
natural gas pipelines during the period from 2017 to 2021. All the
infrastructure construction projects for conversion to clean energy for
winter heating are expected to lead to steady growth of the pipes and
pipe fittings industry.

During the reporting period, the Chinese government continued its
efforts to promulgate the “Action Plan for Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution”. According to the requirements of the newly enacted
“Law on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution” and the related
planning under the "13th Five-year Plan” of the country, various
provincial governments in the country have successively promulgated a
series of policies on pollution control, which will facilitate sewage
control, improve the quality of water environment, enhance the
municipal pipeline network and sewage disposal equipment, thus
generating enormous demand for the pipes and pipe fittings. In the
"Water Pollution Prevention and Control Plan for Major River Basins
(2016-2020)", the National Development and Reform Commission
estimates that investments in water pollution prevention and control
projects in major river basins can total around RMB700 billion if the
objectives set in the “13th Five-year Plan” are met. In particular, the
investment in the construction of municipal facilities for sewage
disposal is estimated to be RMB316.1 billion. Various local
governments in China have embarked on plans for restructuring
pipeline networks. This can generate enormous demand.
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MARKET REVIEW (Continued)

In 2018, the State Council promulgated the “Strategic Plan for Rural
Revitalisation (2018-2022)", in which it proposed a greater effort to
develop rural infrastructure, especially the irrigation network. This is
also part of the government’s effort to promote the integrated
development of urban and rural areas. In the “Crucial Action Plan for
Pollution Control in Agriculture and Rural Areas” jointly promulgated
by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment and the Ministry of
Agriculture and Rural Affairs, it is even expressly stated that pollution
control in rural areas is of major concern. General sewage control in
rural areas has been a top priority. Rural infrastructure shall be actively
developed. For example, in regions where rural environmental
infrastructure development is lagging, there shall be initiation of the
development of infrastructure such as water supply, drainage gutter,
sewage collecting pipeline and sewage disposal networks. It is
expected that by 2020, erratic disposal of sewage in rural areas will be
under control. The steady progress in rural infrastructure construction
will create room for growth in the market for pipeline networks.

The "Program for Developing National Marine Economy under the
13th Five-year Plan” was introduced by the Chinese government to
restructure and improve the traditional marine industries, promote
comprehensive regional development of the marine industries primarily
in the form of marine ranch construction, vigorously develop the
aquaculture in sea water in a healthy manner and support the deep-
water aquaculture cage that can withstand winds and waves, in order
to realise a sustainable development in the marine fishery industry.
According to the “Implementation Plan for Seawater Desalination
Works around Islands”, it is intended to promote the development,
upgrade and transformation of seawater desalination works around 100
islands in three to five years in coastal provinces such as Liaoning,
Shandong, Zhejiang, Fujian and Hainan. The plan is also aimed at
popularising and expanding the scale of seawater desalination. The
move to improve the marine industries is expected to enlarge the
market for plastic pipes and widen the scope of the application of
pipes, thus generating more business opportunities.
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MARKET REVIEW (Continued)

After the central government had set the tone for the regulation of the
country’s property market with such principles as “houses are for
people to live in but not for speculation” and "equal emphasis on both
the markets for property rental and purchase”, provincial and municipal
governments stepped up regulatory measures that resulted in cooling
property markets nationwide in 2019. Development of the local
property markets in cities of different tiers became even more
divergent. Specifically, downward pressure on the real estate market in
the tier three and four cities increased. This, coupled with the
uncertainties of the trade friction between China and the United States,
accelerated the consolidation of the building materials and interior
decoration industry in China. Other factors that also contributed to the
development are the implementation of the “Environmental Protection
Tax Law"” and the application of a range of more stringent standards to
the building materials and interior decoration industry. However, the
consumption upgrade, the growing trend of new retail, further
progress in the supply-side reform, advances in the new mode of
urbanisation and redecoration of flats presented new opportunities for
the building materials and interior decoration industry.

China actively exchanged ideas about development with different
countries and regions to harmonise their development strategies for
mutual benefits. A large number of Sino-foreign cooperation projects
were launched, including those in China-Myanmar Economic Corridor,
the China-Europe Railway Express and the lease of Hambantota Port to
China, etc. Meanwhile, the Chinese government continued to increase
investment in industries covered by the “Belt and Road Initiative”. The
move can make the overseas markets covered by the initiative growth
drivers for Chinese companies. Some Chinese companies started oil
and gas projects through cooperation with foreign companies in
countries covered by the “Belt and Road Initiative”. The projects
included infrastructure construction which demand a lot of piping
systems and building materials.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During the reporting period, the Group continued to capture the
opportunities brought by national policies and the real estate industry.
It did so by pushing forward the development of its plastic piping
systems business, actively developing the business of building
materials and interior decoration and the environmental protection
business. This broadened the revenue base for the Group and
achieved sustainable growth of businesses. More importantly, on 26
November 2019, China Lesso was officially made a constituent of MSCI
China index. This reflected the market’s confidence in the future
prospect of the Group and its investment value.

In 2019, on the back of the steady growth of the Chinese economy and
a rebound in demand from infrastructure construction, the revenue of
China Lesso increased by 11.0% to RMB26,345 million (2018:
RMB23,734 million). During the reporting period, because of the
Group's economies of scale, continued enhancement of the production
capacity of its plants and effective procurement strategy, gross profit
rose by 21% to RMB7,537 million (2018: RMB6,228 million), with gross
profit margin increased to 28.6% (2018: 26.2%). Net profit margin
increased by 1.2 percentage points to 11.5% (2018: 10.3%).

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue by business unit
for 2019 and 2018:

Revenue

2019

RMB million
ARBEBEER

E3% A

RIEHRN  ZEBEERERRREMEESE
ERAEE - FEHDBREERREBNERE -
ERERFAAEMREEBTIREES - BREA
BAREBENKRAER  THREFELR -TEE
F—BhE  REIEE IR 2019911 A26H IE
NEMABMSCIFR BN DRz —  RETS
HASEERRERA=TMEL  WRALAEE
RIGEEE -

20194 « LA R FIRIE R AP B R B
ROEMEERF R PR B AL FIEIN11.0%
= AR 2634518 7T (20184F « A R #237.341%
TC) o REREERA - 1525 i AN 55 B A 37 IR AS R 3
& BERTTBEERMA RN FEERE - £F
REEM2I%E ARMETS537EIT(20184F « AR
" 622818 70 ) © E F K I8 F+ £28.6% (2018 7F
262%)  FHE EA12MEE D EZ=11.5% (2018
£ :10.3%) °

TRETIEE 2019 F K 2018 F AL EBKE 5 B

1

% of total revenue
L ONA
2019

KA

2018 2018

RMB million
ARBEETL

Plastic piping systems BREBRR 23,709 21,343 11.1% 90.0% 89.9%
Building materials and EMREEMD

interior decoration products 1,519 1,314 15.6% 5.8% 5.6%
Others* Hih# 1,117 1,077 3.7% 4.2% 4.5%
Total st 26,345 23,734 11.0% 100.0% 100.0%

# "Others” include businesses of environmental engineering and other related

services, financial services and others.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the number of the Group's
independent and exclusive first-tier distributors nationwide increased
to 2,276 (2018: 2,193). Southern China remained the Group’s major
revenue contributor, and revenue generated from Southern China and
other regions accounted for 53.8% and 46.2% respectively (2018: 55.3%
and 44.7%) of the Group's total revenue.

# [Eft] BRFRATREREMBRRY - RR%REA

HE2019F12A3BILEFE  AEBR2EE
HEB R — RS HEE B B E2,2764 (2018
F:2193%) EEMBGREALAEENETEM
%5 RAaEREREMEAOBAGARERR
W A 2 Bl A53.8% K 46.2% (2018 4F : 55.3% &
44.7%) °
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW (Continued)

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue by region for 2019
and 2018:

EBHUE @

TERETIEE 2019 F 2 2018 F U AL 12 B 75 #)

B -

Revenue % of total revenue
A HAWA %
2019 2018 2019 2018
RMB million RMB million
AR¥EET ARBBEER
Southern China E=cge 14,180 13,136 7.9% 53.8% 55.3%
Southwestern China [iilE] 2,627 2,541 3.4% 10.0% 10.7%
Central China e 3,090 2,844 8.7% 11.7% 12.0%
Eastern China EH 1,558 1,265 23.2% 5.9% 5.3%
Northern China =4t 1,972 1,608 22.7% 7.5% 6.8%
Northwestern China [iipig 1,263 954 32.4% 4.8% 4.0%
Northeastern China =5 700 582 20.3% 2.7% 2.5%
Qutside China AR BN 955 804 18.7% 3.6% 3.4%
Total HEr 26,345 23,734 11.0% 100.0% 100.0%
# Details of the scope of coverage of each region are set out in note 4 to consolidated # BEENEBEREFBRNRA U BREMTS -

financial statements.

By leveraging its economies of scale, production automation and
effective strategy for procurement, the Group effectively controlled the
costs for raw materials and production. In addition, the Group actively
enhanced operational efficiency, optimised its product portfolio and
expanded market coverage, thereby contributing to the sustainable
development of business and maintaining a healthy level of profit.

During the reporting period, the Group’s EBITDA increased by 26.0%
to RMB5,556 million (2018: RMB4,409 million), and the EBITDA margin
was 21.1% (2018: 18.6%). Profit before tax increased by 23.1% to
RMB3,982 million (2018: RMB3,236 million). Profit attributable to
owners of the Company increased by 21.4% to RMB3,025 million (2018:
RMB2,492 million). Basic earnings per share increased by 22.5% to
RMBO0.98 (2018: RMB0.80). The effective tax rate stayed at 23.9% (2018:
24.4%).

To express gratitude to the Shareholders for their support and to share
with them the fruits of the Group’s endeavours, the Board proposed
payment of a final dividend of HK28 cents per share for the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: HK20 cents per share).
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS

The Chinese government promoted various policies on energy
conservation and environmental protection such as the one on
"Switching over from Coal to Gas” and the “Action Plan for Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution”. It also proceeded with the plan for
constructing pipeline networks. This generated stable demand for
plastic pipes and pipe fittings. For the year ended 31 December 2019,
the number of orders for plastic piping systems increased and the
Group's plastic piping systems business maintained stable growth. The
increase was attributable to a number of factors, including the stable
demand of the Chinese construction industry, the resumption of
construction projects in Southern China in the second half of the year,
the Chinese government's increased effort to redevelop old towns, the
construction of systems for rural water supply and drainage, a gradual
rebound in infrastructure investment and the overall stable
development of the real estate sector. During the year under review,
revenue from the plastic piping systems business increased by 11.1%
to RMB23,709 million (2018: RMB21,343 million), and accounted for
90.0% of the Group's total revenue (2018: 89.9%).

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue from plastic piping

systems business by the application of the products for 2019 and 2018:

EBDErRE

BREERR
PEIB AR EERER [RSR] R [AO5RE8
TEHE | SRRNRRBE  HELEEEEW

RE ABHEEREHERTRETHMES
o EHE2019F 12831 BIEFE - SENHEE
BITEMNERFBEBRT BT EFERE
BEATRBEBESEHER  MIRERA - MBMA
IR BN MCE BN A HKERIER - AR
BB ENZLSOF  NEEMERERREBTE
BR THEHNEERAFEHREL N WER
SEMNBHEBRREBER2FNBAEE -
BEFAN - BREBERREBNRAZFLE M
11.1%%E A R #237.0918 £ (2018%F : A R
213.431870) 1AL B AWM AR 90.0% (2018 F :
89.9%) o

TREINEE 2019 F R 2018 F LK E B R
WAREREREIDHFE

Revenue % of revenue
L/ON 1EBA %
2019 2018 2019
RMB million RMB million
AR®EET ARBEER
Water supply oK 9,228 8,274 11.5% 38.9% 38.8%
Drainage HEK 8,966 8,171 9.7% 37.8% 38.3%
Power supply and BIHEREA
telecommunications 4,126 3,716 11.0% 17.4% 17.4%
Gas transmission /S RS 383 459 (16.6)% 1.6% 2.1%
Others* Hi# 1,006 723 39.2% 4.3% 3.4%
Total oy 23,709 21,343 11.1% 100.0% 100.0%
# “Others” include agricultural applications, floor heating and fire services. ! [Eft] BHEERA - IR FIE -
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

The Group continued to boost sales volume of plastic piping systems
such that sales volume increased by 10.6%. In terms of product
materials, sales volume of PVC products increased by 8.0% to 1,817,179
tonnes (2018: 1,682,949 tonnes) while that of non-PVC products
increased by 19.6% to 580,685 tonnes (2018: 485,673 tonnes). Revenue
from sales of PVC products increased by 8.0% to RMB14,748 million
(2018: RMB13,660 million) while that of non-PVC products increased by
16.6% to RMB8,961 million (2018: RMB7,683 million).

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue from plastic piping
systems by region for 2019 and 2018:

Revenue

2019

RMB million
ARBEET
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TREINEE2019F R 2018 FLEHEBRHEE
WA (% B 7 B FHE

% of revenue
EBA %
2019

L ON
2018

RMB million
ARBBETL

Southern China Escyea) 12,658 11,743 7.8% 53.4% 55.0%
Other than Southern China EF MR 10,563 9,223 14.5% 44.5% 43.2%
Qutside China FREIEE AN 488 377 29.2% 2.1% 1.8%
Total F 23,709 21,343 11.1% 100.0% 100.0%

The Group adopts a cost-plus pricing method. During the reporting
period, the Group effectively controlled the costs of raw materials and
production through economies of scale, bulk procurement and other
measures, therefore the average cost of sales decreased by 1.8%. Due
to increase in proportion of non-PVC products sales, the Group
maintained the average selling price of its plastic piping systems at
RMB?9,887 per tonne (2018: RMB9,842 per tonne). The gross profit
margin at the plastic piping systems business reached 28.9% (2018:
27.2%).
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

The table below sets out the breakdown of average selling price, sales
volume, and revenue from plastic piping systems business by product
material for 2019 and 2018:
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TREIIEE2019F M 2018 FLEHEBRRER
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%

Average selling price Sales volume Revenue
T4ER #E KA
2018 2018 2019 2018
Tonne Change  RMB million
1 £9 ARMBER
PVC products PCER 8,116 8,116 - 1817179 1,682,949 8.0% 14,748 13,660 80%
Non-PVC products® EPVCER! 15,431 15,820 (2.50% 580,685 485,673 19.6% 8,961 7,683 16.6%
Total Eh) 9,887 9,842 0.5% 2,397,864 2,168,622 10.6% 23,709 21,343 11.1%
# “Non-PVC" plastic pipes and pipe fittings mainly refer to those made of PE or PP-R. # [BEPVC] ZHEEREMN EERPESPP-R

The Group continued to raise the level of automation and
computerization of production and strived for full mechanisation of the
production of pipe products so as to improve the overall production
capacity, the product quality and the efficiency. During the reporting
period, the Group's annual designed capacity for producing plastic
pipes and pipe fittings expanded from 2.62 million tonnes in 2018 to
2.78 million tonnes, with a capacity utilisation rate of 88.0%.

The Group has been expanding its production capacity in line with its
business development and actual needs. The Group’s new production
bases currently under construction in Fujian, Jiangxi and Zhejiang are
expected to be completed and put into trial production in 2020. This
will help enhance the advantage of the economies of scale. Looking
ahead, the Group will continue to develop its production bases and
identify targets for acquisition. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to
enhance its core competitiveness by actively introducing smart
technology into its production plants and updating the equipment
there. It will also improve the efficiency of such intelligent plants and its
information system. Meanwhile, the Group will continue its effort to
have its production bases fully automated and to further improve
machinery and ancillary facilities in its existing production bases in
order to raise the level of automation and accelerate the production
process. This will help expand the production capacity and enhance
the production efficiency. In addition, the Group will also continue to
step up its effort to innovate and conduct research and development,
with a focus on cutting-edge technologies in the industry of pipes and
building materials, which will ensure that the Group leads the industry
in technology and provides diverse and quality products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

In terms of the expansion of overseas markets, the Group gave its
nationwide network of production bases across China full play and
actively sought prospective business partners to grasp the opportunity
in China's "Belt and Road Initiative”. In May 2019, the Group signed a
strategic partnership agreement with Xinjiang Ba Steel International
Trade Co., Ltd.* (“Xinjiang Ba Steel”) to jointly develop the markets of
Central Asia and Xinjiang. The Group will leverage Xinjiang Ba Steel’s
well-developed sales channels and high-quality customer base in five
Central Asian countries to increase its brand awareness there with the
aim of increasing its products market penetration and turning into
another sales growth driver. In addition, the Group is optimistic about
the potential of the Southeast Asian market so it accelerated the
globalisation of its business. To tap Indonesia’s huge domestic market
and potential for infrastructure development, the Group announced an
investment plan of approximately US$60 million in September 2019 to
establish a large-scale pipeline production base in the country. The
factory to be built will be able to enhance the Group’s competitiveness
and influence in the Southeast Asian market and allow it to seize the
opportunities that arise from the Belt and Road Initiative. The Group
believes that this move will become an important strategic deployment
for China Lesso to establish a global business presence. The
production base in Indonesia is expected to be completed and
commence trial production in the second half of 2020. In the future, the
Group will continue to actively seek opportunities for business
development in other Asian countries, such as India, Vietnam and
Thailand, adding impetus to the Group’s overseas business
development.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

The scope of applications of plastic pipes and pipe fittings had been
extended because of the steady progress in China’s plan for national
development and the robust demand in the field of infrastructure
construction. This, in turn, has generated more opportunities for business.
The central government continues to invest heavily in the construction of
Xiong'an New Area and other infrastructure projects, thus boosting the
demand for plastic pipes and pipe fittings. As a market leader, the Group
will strive to expand the scope of applications of plastic pipes and pipe
fittings to increase product sales, thereby maintaining its market
leadership. In January 2020, the Group signed a strategic cooperation
agreement with Guangdong Academy of Agricultural Sciences to actively
explore business opportunities in the agricultural sector and to further
diversify its source of income. The collaboration between the two strong
industry players will involve in-depth cooperation in various fields such as
facility agriculture. They will provide customers with high-quality and
professional modern facility agriculture solutions that encompass the
facilities, construction, production, and after-sales service. This can
promote the development of facility agriculture and agricultural
modernization. Overall, the management is confident about the prospect
of the plastic piping systems business and believes that it will continue to
perform well.

BUILDING MATERIALS AND INTERIOR DECORATION
PRODUCTS

In 2019, the Chinese government continued with various measures to
regulate the property sector, thus increasing downward pressure on it.
In response to an obvious sign of tightening policy, the overall growth
of the real estate sector continued to slow down. Both the floor area
sold and sales value declined. Affected by macroeconomic factors, the
market for building materials and interior decoration products
continued to experience downward pressure during the year. However,
the change in the bulk purchasing model in real estate industry and the
gradual rebound in the rate of completion of property projects in the
second half of the year helped boost the sales of building materials
and interior decoration products. This resulted in an increase in the
number of new orders and an improvement in overall business
performance. During the reporting period, the business segment
maintained stable development and recorded a revenue of RMB1,519
million, accounting for 5.8% of the Group's total revenue.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

BUILDING MATERIALS AND INTERIOR DECORATION
PRODUCTS (Continued)

In 2020, the Chinese government’s regulation of the real estate sector
may not be as tight as that in 2019. This can ease the downward
pressure on the economy. The Group will actively seize the
opportunities in the new mode of urbanisation and the redevelopment
of old towns to boost revenue at its business of building materials and
interior decoration products and increase the contribution of the
business to the Group's total revenue. At the same time, the Group will
further strengthen its relations with existing customers and actively
engage new customers and increase sales revenue by providing
diverse products. China’s ongoing new mode of urbanisation will
enable the Group’s business of building materials and interior
decoration products to achieve synergy with its businesses of other
product lines. This will become a driving force behind the steady
development of this business for the long term.

OTHER BUSINESSES

Environmental Protection Business

In recent years, the Chinese government has issued a series of
environmental protection policies which bode well for the
development of the environmental protection industry. Riding on this
trend, the Group constantly expands the market for environmental
protection. It capitalised on municipal projects in various fields,
including those of sewerage, river treatment, soil restoration, utility
tunnels, sponge city, installation of integrated water purifiers, thus
tapping the growing demand for plastic pipes and pipe fittings. The
Group has strived to create synergy between its environmental
protection business and its plastic piping systems business for the long
term. Through successful mergers and acquisitions, the Group aspires
to establish itself as a one-stop integrated environmental service
provider, providing customers with comprehensive services from
environmental consulting, solutions design, project construction to
environmental equipment manufacturing. During the reporting period,
this business sustained to grow and recorded a revenue of RMB326
million. In the future, the Group will continue to enhance its own
research and development capability while developing its existing
environmental protection business steadily. For instance, it endeavours
to develop a business of treating hazardous and solid wastes and
actively explores opportunities for mergers and acquisitions so as to
form new growth drivers.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

OTHERS (Continued)

Business of Specialty Sales and Marketing Platform

To capitalise on the Chinese government’s “Belt and Road Initiative”,
the Group extended the reach of its specialty sales and marketing
platform, “One-Stop Specialty Market for Home Furnishing and
Consumer Products”, to the overseas markets. The Group built
multinational platforms for Chinese manufacturers of home furnishings,
building materials and consumer products to showcase their products
and facilitate the distribution and retailing of such products. The Group
also provides ancillary services, including marketing and branding.
During the reporting period, the business recorded a revenue of
RMB379 million.

The Group has 13 reserve properties in the United States, Canada,
Australia, Thailand, Myanmar, Indonesia, the United Arab Emirates and
other countries. All the properties are located close to major
metropolitan areas. The Group aims to develop the largest one-stop
showroom specialty markets in home furnishing and consumer
products on these properties in its respective local markets. The
tenants will be able to operate their own showrooms independently,
and sell their products directly to local traders, retailers and consumers.
During the reporting period, the Group entered into a joint venture
agreement with a Myanmar company to further explore the local
market. The Group is confident that the specialty sales and marketing
platform will become another growth driver for the Group in the long
run.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENwm LD

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Group's capital expenditure for 2019 was approximately RMB5,275
million, which was primarily used for improvement of automated
facilities in production bases, expansion of the existing production
bases, acquisition of properties in foreign countries and the facilities
acquired in business combination.

FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group continued to adopt prudent financial policies. Finance, fund
utilisation and fund raising activities of the Group are subject to
effective centralised management and supervision. The Group keeps
reasonable gearing level and adequate liquidity.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had total debts (i.e. borrowings,
lease liabilities and debt component of convertible loans) of
approximately RMB13,537 million, of which 52.8% was denominated in
US dollar, 20.6% was denominated in HK dollar, 21.3% was
denominated in RMB, 3.7% was denominated in Australian dollar, 1.2%
was denominated in Canadian dollar and 0.4% was denominated in
other currencies. Other than the approximately US$93 million of the
outstanding convertible loans at an effective interest rate of 7.70% per
annum and due in 2022, the Group's borrowings are subject to
effective interest rates ranging from 2.38% to 7.60% per annum with
maturity periods ranging from within one year to more than five years.
The Group’s Gearing Ratio stood at a healthy level of 44.2%.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's total equity increased to
approximately RMB17,094 million. The Group's current assets and
current liabilities were approximately RMB17,731 million and
RMB20,526 million respectively. The Group's Current Ratio and Quick
Ratio decreased to 0.86 and 0.67 from 1.14 and 0.87 as at 31 December
2018, respectively. The Group recorded net current liabilities of
RMB2,795 million, which was mainly resulted from two syndicated loans
(the "Syndicated Loans”) aggregated of approximately RMB5,381
million which will be due for repayment in second half of 2020.

During the reporting period, the Group has entered into a facility
agreement and its amendment agreement (collectively as the “Facility
Agreements”) in relation to dual currency syndicated term loan and
revolving credit facilities in the equivalent amount of US$1,100 million
(the “Facilities”). The final maturity date under the Facility Agreements
is the date falling 48 months after the first utilisation date. The Facilities
will be used for general corporate purpose, including the refinancing
of the Group's existing financial indebtedness. For details, please refer
to the announcements made by the Company on 30 July 2019 and 23
October 2019. Meanwhile, the Board believes the Group will be able
to continue to generate positive cash flows from its operations. On this
basis, the Board considers that the Group is able to meet in full its
financial obligations as they fall due in the coming 12 months.
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FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

With cash and bank deposits, including restricted cash, of
approximately RMB7,604 million as well as unutilised banking facilities,
the Board considers that the Group has sufficient working capital for its
operation and future development.

The Group had no material exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation
and no hedging had been arranged during the period.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the secured bank loans were secured by the
investment property of a subsidiary, time deposit of a subsidiary, loan
receivables of a subsidiary, concession rights of a subsidiary and
personal guarantee provided by a shareholder of that subsidiary.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed a total of approximately
13,000 employees including directors. Total staff costs were RMB1,278
million during the reporting period. The Group ensures that the
remuneration packages for employees are determined based on their
work performance, professional experience and the prevailing industry
practice. Discretionary year-end bonus and shares award may be
distributed to employees based on individual performance. Other
benefits to employees include medical insurance, retirement scheme
and training programmes.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held long-term and short-term
financial investments of approximately RMB1,771 million (31 December
2018: RMB1,853 million) and RMB8 million (31 December 2018: RMB47
million), respectively. The investment portfolio comprised of 35.2% in
listed equity securities (issued by PRC-based home improvement and
furnishings shopping malls operating companies, PRC-based internet
companies and PRC based environmental companies), 31.8% in listed
debt securities, 1.2% in stock funds, 0.5% in listed perpetual capital
securities and 31.3% in unlisted securities. Each of these investments
has a carrying amount accounting to less than 5% of the Group's total
assets as at 31 December 2019.

During the reporting period, the Group recognised a realised disposal
gain of approximately RMB64 million, unrealised mark-to-market
valuation loss of approximately RMB306 million due to volatility of the
global capital market and recognised approximately RMB24 million of
exchange gain on translation. Income from the portfolio amounted to
approximately RMB43 million in the reporting period, representing
dividend and interest incomes.

The Group will study the market and information of the prospective
investees cautiously before it makes its investment decisions. The
Group will also monitor the performance of its investees closely and
regularly after purchases and will adjust the investment strategy in a
cautious manner to minimise the impact of market volatility on the
Group as and when necessary.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's investment properties were
approximately RMB6,870 million. Increase in investment properties was
mainly attributable to the capitalisation of construction costs on certain
investment properties under development, addition of investment
properties and the translation difference during the reporting period.

Among these investment properties, the mall in Toronto, Canada is an
existing property; the malls in Long Island, US and in Auburn district of
Sydney, Australia are under refurbishment; the lands in Thailand,
Myanmar, the United Arab Emirates and China are under development;
and other properties are under rezoning or at the planning stage of
development.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS (Continued)

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

Given the increasing trend in using aluminium profiles as major
construction materials in the PRC, the Group acquired a 26.28% equity
interest in Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (“Xingfa Aluminium”),
the issued shares of which is listed on the Stock Exchange, in 2018 at a
consideration of HK$974 million. Xingfa Aluminium is one of the
leading aluminium profile manufacturers in China. The Group considers
Xingfa Aluminium not only serves as a valuable investment with
sustainable returns, but also as a good strategic investment. With
extensive experience in the business of construction materials and
industrial materials, Xingfa Aluminium has established various kinds of
sales channels and a diverse customer base. The acquisition may
create long-term commercial synergies with the Group’s businesses to
broaden its sales channels and expand its customer base, and enrich
the Group's already comprehensive portfolio of products and services.
This can facilitate the Group's business diversification and reinforce its
market leadership. In 2019, Xingfa Aluminium recorded a revenue of
RMB11,281 million, and profit attributable to the shareholders of Xingfa
Aluminium was RMB6&06 million.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any significant
investments as at 31 December 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENwm LD

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

ENVIRONMENT

Environmental protection is always a top priority of China Lesso, and
the concepts of low carbon and environmental protection are
integrated into its whole operational process. The Group has applied
the ideas of going green and environmental protection throughout its
product design, research and development, production and practical
operations, and has adopted a variety of eco-friendly measures to
minimise impact on the environment. On top of that, the Group
supports the development of environmental protection industry and
be committed to water treatment and modern agriculture construction,
and has created a sustainable and eco-friendly industrial chain from
environmental protection consultation, environmental assessment,
design, construction and operation of environmental protection plans
to financing support. In addition, the Group establishes a complete
environment management system, continues to improve criteria and
measures concerning management of environmental protection,
adopts a more simplified operating processes and energy-efficient
hardware to reduce consumption of energy and water resources,
increases benefits from resource consumption, reduces wastes
emissions and enhances recycling.

The Group complies with laws and regulations governing air pollution,
noise emission, solid waste discharge, and other environmental
protection issues in China. The environmental management and
compliance department work together with the legal department to
ensure the Group will keep abreast of the latest development on
environment-related laws and regulations.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

China Lesso takes an active part in community investment and public
welfare and provides care for underprivileged groups in the society,
aiming to apply its influence, bring positive changes to the
communities where it operates, and maintain sound relations with the
communities where it operates. Further, the Group actively supports
the development of education in poverty-stricken areas and
encourages its employees to serve the community as volunteers.
During the reporting period, the Group launched poverty alleviation
projects, such as education in poverty-stricken areas in Yunnan and
Guizhou and drinking water improvement in Sichuan.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

EMPLOYEE

China Lesso recognises employees as one of its most important assets.
In strict compliance with the applicable laws and regulations, the
Group protects the legitimate rights and interests of its employees and
fixes on its pay system based on the principles of legality, equity,
fairness and encouragement so as to ensure an equal access to fair
treatment and career opportunities. In addition, the Group has
formulated its own health and safety policies, intensified safety training
for employees, carried out routine safety patrols and actively pushed
forward with relevant management system building for the purpose of
creating a safe working environment for its employees, achieving a
work-life balance for its employees through diverse activities.

With great emphasis on career development of its employees, the
Group is committed to creating diversified and comprehensive
development channels for its employees by offering a series of training
programs and regular lectures on safety and health through its own
Lesso College.

CUSTOMER AND SUPPLIER

China Lesso has strived to maintain uninterrupted communications
with its suppliers for win-win results based on the procurement
principles of fairness, openness and impartiality. The Group has put in
place a “"Supplier Management Code” and conducts regular
performance evaluation of its suppliers. In addition, the Group has
formulated a management system, a reporting process and set up a
management team against malpractices in an effort to oversee
behaviour of all its employees and protect the interests and rights of
the Company and its shareholders. With respect to customer services
and management, the Group upholds the “market-oriented, customer-
centred” principle and adopts strict control over product quality. The
Group is committed to providing its customers with safe, reliable and
quality products.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFQRE

Set out below is the report presented by the Board together with the
Group's audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are
set out in notes 44, 17 and 18 respectively to consolidated financial
statements. Further discussion and analysis of these activities, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group's business,
the Group's environmental policies can be found in the “Chairman’s
Statement”, "Corporate Governance Report” and "Management
Discussion and Analysis”. This discussion forms part of the Directors’
Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
Group's financial position at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 86 to 221.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK28
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the "Proposed
Final Dividend”) to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 2 June 2020, subject
to the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 22 May 2020 (the “2020
AGM"). It is expected that the Proposed Final Dividend will be paid on
Thursday, 11 June 2020.

Including the interim dividend of HK12 cents per share (2018: HK10
cents per share) for the six months ended 30 June 2019 which was paid
to the Shareholders on 23 September 2019, the total dividend for 2019
amounts to a total of HK40.0 cents per share (2018: HK30 cents per
share), which represents a payout ratio of 36.8% (2018: 32.7%) of the
profit attributable to the Shareholders for the year ended 31 December
2019.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(A) FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND

(B)

AND VOTE AT THE 2020 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 19 May 2020 to Friday, 22 May 2020, both dates
inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the 2020 AGM, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should ensure that all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 18 May 2020.

FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO THE
PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 29 May 2020 to Tuesday, 2 June 2020, both dates
inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to be eligible to receive the Proposed
Final Dividend, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should ensure that all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 28 May 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND PERMITTED
INDEMNITY PROVISION

Principal corporate governance practices and permitted indemnity

provision adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 15 to 41.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's results, assets and liabilities for the past five

financial years, as extracted from audited consolidated financial

statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page

3. The summary does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the Group's major properties and property interests are
set out on pages 222 to 225.

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of the changes in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 34 to consolidated financial statements.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

The details of acquisition of subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

As at 31 December 2019, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Cap 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to RMB2,935 million (2018: RMB2,523 million). The amount
of RMB1,906 million (2018: RMB1,906 million) represented the
Company'’s share premium which may be distributable provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total turnover attributable
to the Group's five largest customers was less than 4.0% of the Group's
total turnover. The total purchase attributable to the Group's five
largest suppliers was 41.3% of the Group's total purchases and the
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
30.7%.

At no time during the year did the directors, their close associates or
any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial
interests in these suppliers or customers referred to above.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group's charitable donations were approximately
RMB7.48 million (2018: RMB5.13 million).
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

DIRECTORS

Directors in office during the year and up to the date of this report are
as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoquan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

Mr. Lin Dewei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan
Mr. Cheung Man Yu

Ms. Lan Fang

Dr. Tao Zhigang

Mr. Cheng Dickson

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. Zuo Manlun, Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, Mr. Lai Zhigiang, Mr. Chen Guonan
and Mr. Huang Guirong are subject to retirement by rotation at the
2020 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of directors are set out on pages 8 to 13.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the 2020 AGM has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

EERTHARRKRS - HERD R
EEIENESENKXR

R2019F12A31 8 » ARAESRITHBER
AR Ak B AT (A AR B L B (38 5 R BR & 1601 88 XV
HHMmER) KRG, W%d LEEETERR
BEHRBEEOIE3IB2EERER Tﬁﬁm%
At sr - HRBEESTREBAAR
R R RABWT ¢

Number and capacity of shares of the Company interested @

FREESEROBERMEE

Interests of
spouse

Beneficial
owner

BEEBA (TR 5

Percentage of

the issued

Other
interests

share capital of
the Company
R N
ERITRAE
HNEI

Total

Rtz

Wong Luen Hei - 2,308,000 (L)@ 2,122,485,000 (L) ©'@ 2,124,793,000 (L) 68.49%
EHE
Zuo Xiaoping 2,308,000 (L)© - 2,122,485,000 (L) ®@ 2,124,793,000 (L) 68.49%
Zuo Manlun 4,642,000 (L) - - 4,642,000 (L) 0.15%
e
Luo Jianfeng 1,927,000 (L) - - 1,927,000 (L) 0.06%
Notes: B 5E
(a) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities. (a) FH LI BZATRZEEFNEE -
(b) These shares of the Company are held by New Fortune, which was wholly-owned by (b) ZEARPNBRNDBFZENEE - X2 A0HZEEESD

Xi Xi Development and ultimately owned by UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited, as trustee
of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”), the settlor of which is Mr. Wong Luen Hei ("Mr.
Wong"). The discretionary beneficiaries of the Trust included Mr. Wong and his
family members. Both Mr. Wong and Ms. Zuo Xiaoping are taken to be interested in
the said shares of the Company held by the Trust under the SFO.

() Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is directly holding 2,308,000 shares of the Company. Mr. Wong is
the spouse of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, and therefore Mr. Wong is deemed to be
interested in such shares of the Company in which Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is interested by
virtue of the SFO.

(d) These shares related to the same block of shares in the Company as set out in note (b)

above.

66 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI¥EE@ZERER AT

EHEA - WK H UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited fE&—18
RER(ZET] EErE((EXE) REMER
FTAIREEAFEE - ZEANEEEEXEABRESR
FERERGKE - BIBEFHLBEGN - ERERT
KHEZTWARRRZETFAN LA AR RN %
B o

(c) TS L T EEFEAANTM 2,308,000 KD o EmEAE
ALEFZ MRS B REEFRAEEN - F=k
EWE AR EEFEL TN EF EERENZERQRM
DA -

) BTl /9 R — AR A Bl AR 1 A a5

d  ZEBRMHERLXMED



DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF OTHER
SHAREHOLDERS PURSUANT TO SFO

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons (other than a director
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholders Capacity

BEREZE 51
UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited Trustee
UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited =5t A

Xi Xi Development Interests of controlled corporation

PR ER RPAEE R
New Fortune Beneficial owner
MEE BEHEAA
Notes:
(a) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities.
(b) These shares relate to the same block of shares in the Company as those set out in

note (b) in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short

Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the directors of the
Company were not aware of any person or corporation (other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company) who had any interests or
short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The share award scheme (the “"Scheme”) of the Company was adopted
by the Company on 28 August 2018. The trustee of the Scheme,
pursuant to the rules and trust deed of the Scheme, purchased on the
Stock Exchange a total of 22,991,000 shares of the Company at a total
consideration of about HK$99.98 million. Save as disclosed above,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the reporting
period.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 28 August 2018, the Company adopted a share award scheme (the
"Scheme”) to recognise the contributions by certain eligible persons
to the Group and to offer suitable incentives to attract and retain
targeted talent and personnel for the continual operation and future
development of the Group. On 29 November 2018, a trust deed (the
“Trust Deed”) was entered into between the Company as settlor and
Computershare Hong Kong Trustees Limited as trustee (the “Trustee”)
in relation to the establishment of a trust (the “Trust”). Pursuant to the
rules of the Scheme, Shares will be purchased by the Trustee from the
open market out of cash contributed by the Company, and shall not
exceed HK$750 million and be held on trust for the selected
participants until such Shares are vested with the relevant selected
participants in accordance with the rules of the Scheme. The Scheme is
a discretionary scheme of the Company and shall be subject to the
administration of the Board and the Trustee in accordance with the
rules of the Scheme and the Trust Deed. The Scheme does not
constitute a share option scheme within the meaning of Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules. The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years since the date of adoption of the Scheme. Early termination of
the Scheme may be elected by the Board, provided that such
termination shall not affect any subsisting rights of any selected
participants. For details, please refer to the announcement made by
the Company on 28 August 2018. Since the date of adoption of the
Scheme and up to the date of this report, no shares have been
awarded under the Scheme. As at 31 December 2019, there were
22,991,000 shares held in the Trust under the Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was conditionally
approved by resolutions of the Shareholders on 14 May 2010 (the
"Adoption Date”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations and the summary of terms of such Share Option Scheme
are disclosed in the Company's prospectus dated 9 June 2010. No
share options have been granted under the Share Option Scheme
since its adoption.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme ("Eligible Persons”)
include (a) any executive director of, manager of, or other employee
holding an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar position in any
member of the Group, any full-time or part time employee, or a person
for the time being seconded to work full-time or part-time for any
member of the Group; (b) a director or proposed director (including an
independent non-executive director) of any member of the Group; (c) a
direct or indirect shareholder of any member of the Group; (d) a
supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group; (e) a
customer, consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor, agent or representative of any member of the Group; (f) a
person or entity that provides design, research, development or other
support or any advisory, consultancy, professional or other services to
any member of the Group; and (g) an associate of any of the persons
referred to in paragraphs (a) to (c) above.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 300,000,000
Shares, representing 9.67% of the issued Shares as at 31 December
2019. The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of the options granted to any Eligible Persons (including
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period share not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised. The subscription price in respect of any
particular option shall be the price as the Board may in its discretion
determine at the time of grant of the relevant option but the
subscription price shall not be less than whichever is the highest of: (a)
the nominal value of a Share; (b) the closing price of a Share as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the offer date; and (c)
the average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on the Adoption Date. An offer of the grant of a
share option shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible Person
concerned for a period of 28 days from the date of the Board
approving the grant of the share options (the "Offer Date”) provided
that no such grant of an option may be accepted after the expiry of the
effective period of the Share Option Scheme. An option shall be
deemed to have been granted and accepted by the Eligible Person
and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer letter comprising
acceptance of the offer of the Option duly signed by the grantee
together with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof is received by the Company on or
before the date upon which an offer of an option must be accepted by
the relevant Eligible Person, being a date not later than 28 days after
the Offer Date. Such remittance shall in no circumstances be
refundable.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any director of the Company or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were such rights exercised by them, or was the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under paragraph headed “Connected Transactions”,
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company, its holding company and any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company or an entity connected with
him had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE
NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS FROM
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

None of the directors or substantial shareholder of the Company or
any of their respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group. New
Fortune (the “Controlling Shareholder”, being a company holding
approximately 68.41% of the issued share capital of the Company, and
is ultimately held by the trust the founder of which is Mr. Wong Luen
Hei, and the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Wong Luen Hei and his
family) has entered into a deed of non-competition in favour of the
Group with Mr. Wong Luen Hei dated 14 May 2010 (the “"Deed of Non-
Competition”).

The directors are of the view that the Group’s measures adopted by
the Company in respect of the enforceability of the Deed of Non-
Competition are adequate to safeguard the effectiveness of the non-
competition undertakings. The independent non-executive directors
have reviewed the compliance of the Deed of Non-Competition. Based
on the confirmation from the Controlling Shareholder, the independent
non-executive directors are of the view that the Deed of Non-
Competition has been complied with and has been effectively
enforced.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18 AND
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

(A)  On 11 August 2016, the Company as guarantor and its wholly-
owned subsidiary as borrower entered into a facility agreement
(the “Facility Agreement ") in relation to syndicated term loan
facilities in the amount of US$600 million at an interest rate of
LIBOR plus 1.85% per annum with syndicate lenders which were
independent financial institutions. The loan made thereunder is
repayable 42 months after the same has been made.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement I, Mr. Wong Luen Hei and his
family (collectively, the “Wong Family”) shall collectively maintain,
directly or indirectly, at least 51% of beneficial shareholding
interest in the issued share capital of the Company, carrying at
least 51% of the voting rights, free from any security. Otherwise, a
failure to do so will be deemed an event of default under the
Facility Agreement |.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18 AND
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES (Continued)

(B)

72

On 15 August 2017, the Company as guarantor (the “Guarantor”)
and its wholly-owned subsidiary as borrower (the “Borrower”)
entered into a facility agreement (the “Facility Agreement 1I”) in
relation to syndicated term loan facilities in the amount of
HK$800 million at an interest rate of HIBOR plus 1.55% per
annum with syndicate lenders (the “Facility”). The loan made
thereunder is repayable 36 months after the same has been
made.

On 22 September 2017, the Guarantor and the Borrower entered
into a syndication and amendment agreement in relation to the
Facility Agreement Il (the “Amendment Agreement”). Pursuant
to the Amendment Agreement, the number of syndicate lenders
have increased and the total commitment under the Facility has
increased to HK$1,350 million. Save for the aforesaid amendment
and supplement, all other major terms of the Facility Agreement
Il remain in full force and effect.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement Il (as amended by the
Amendment Agreement), the Wong Family shall collectively
maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 51% of beneficial
shareholding interest in the issued share capital of the Company,
carrying at least 51% of the voting rights, free from any security.
Otherwise, a failure to do so will be deemed an event of default
under the Facility Agreement II.

On 6 May 2019, the Company as guarantor and its wholly-owned
subsidiary as borrower entered into a facility agreement (the
“Convertible Loan Facilities Agreement”) in relation to
convertible loan facilities in the aggregate amount of US$100
million at an interest rate of 3% per annum with the lender. The
final maturity date in respect of each facility is the date which is
36 months after the date of the utilisation of that facility.

Pursuant to the Convertible Loan Facilities Agreement, it is
required that as at the date of the Convertible Loan Facilities
Agreement, the date of each utilisation request and the first day
of each interest period with respect to the relevant facility, (i) the
Wong Family must beneficially own (whether directly or indirectly)
in aggregate at least 51% of the issued share capital of the
Company and such share capital cannot be subject to any
security or quasi-security, and (i) the Company must beneficially
own, directly or indirectly, at least 51% of the total number of
issued shares of the borrower. Otherwise, a failure to do so will
be deemed an event of default under the Convertible Loan
Facilities Agreement.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18 AND
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES (Continued)

D)

On 30 July 2019, the Company as guarantor and its wholly-owned
subsidiary as borrower entered into a facility agreement (the
“Facility Agreement Ill”) in relation to dual currency syndicated
term loan and revolving credit facilities in the equivalent amount
of US$900 million at an interest rate of LIBOR/HIBOR plus 1.60%
per annum with syndicate lenders. The final maturity date under
the Facility Agreement Il is the date falling 48 months after the
first utilisation date.

On 23 October 2019, a syndication and amendment agreement
(the "Syndication and Amendment Agreement”) in relation to the
Facility Agreement lll was entered into by, among others, the
guarantor and the borrower. Subject to the terms and conditions
of the Syndication and Amendment Agreement, the number of
syndicate lenders will be increased and the total commitment
under the facilities will be increased to the equivalent amount of
US$1,100 million. Save for the aforesaid amendment and
supplement, all other major terms of the Facility Agreement llI
remain in full force and effect.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement Il (as amended by the
Syndication and Amendment Agreement), the Wong Family shall
collectively maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 51% of
beneficial shareholding interest in the issued share capital of the
Company, carrying at least 51% of the voting rights, free from any
security. Otherwise, a failure to do so will be deemed an event of
default under the Facility Agreement Il

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, certain of the related party

transactions as disclosed in note 40 to consolidated financial

statements also constitute connected transactions or continuing

connected transactions within the meaning of the Listing Rules and

satisfied relevant disclosure requirements thereof. Details of the non-

exempt connected transactions or continuing connected transactions

are summarised below:
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

PURCHASE OF MACHINERY

On 29 December 2017, the Company
entered into a framework machinery

Background:

purchase agreement (the “Framework
Agreement”) with Guangdong Liansu
Machinery for 3 years commencing from 1
January 2018 and ending on 31 December
2020. For details, please refer to the
announcement made by the Company on
29 December 2017.

Particulars of the Framework Agreement
are disclosed below as required under the
Listing Rules:
Nature of transactions: Purchase of machinery from Guangdong
Liansu Machinery.

Terms: The purchase price to be agreed between
the parties which shall not exceed the
prevailing market price.

Annual Cap: RMB150 million (for the year ended 31

December 2019); and RMB150 million (for
the year ending 31 December 2020)

Total consideration

paid for the year: RMB114 million

The Company has followed the pricing policies and guidelines when
determining the price and terms of the connected transactions during
the year. The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The independent non-executive directors have, for the purpose of Rule
14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed all continuing connected
transactions and have confirmed that all continuing connected
transactions have been entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of its business; (ii) on normal commercial terms; and
(i) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information , and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Company’s auditor issued an unqualified letter
containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The Company provided a copy of
the said letter to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 40 to
consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information obtained by the Company
and to the best knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float required
under in the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2020 AGM to re-appoint Ernst &
Young as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Zuo Manlun
Chief Executive and Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020

BERXS @)

ZA/N TE’JV‘%&EWE%LE”%/ SR AE B
Bz AR 3000 (BER]) EL M BEEHE
#j&%/?ﬁﬂ/(?/\ﬁ’ﬁ? FEA - W2REHASE 740
SRR &8 L AR RIPTL 5B B E R 5 6 1 B
R RAARBNFEBERZELER - AR
AR BEN AR B E AR RIS 14A 56 IR L EA
AEE DR RENBEFEXIINRBERLSE
wmAEREER KT - ARRE R EHGRIAZ

BB 52 -

BEALRS

BB A TR 5 MR B RN G A B BRI 40 -
DG RE
BEADFURERERENER RBEEMR

Mo MAHmEBRH - KRB —E#MF LR
RN AREFRE -

¥ B

RRFHR 2020 FRBF ARG LIRERAS -

LABIEZ K 2 5T R FIE AT AAN A AR ERAD -
EEEEm

TTHAAZFFEE

Eimfam

F& 202053 A 27 H

Annual Report 2019 44§ 75



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BN AN RS

e
EY:

To the shareholders of China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Lesso
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 86 to 221, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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B AN RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

PR EZETE (&)

Key audit matter
HREZEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

M EHERERER

B SR KRB e B E R

Provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables and loan receivables

At 31 December 2019, the Group had trade and bills
receivables of RMB3,259,456,000, net of provision for
impairment of RMB237,226,000, and loan receivables of
RMB376,286,000, net of provision for impairment of
RMB190,677,000, which in aggregate accounted for 8.91% of
the total assets. The assessment of impairment of such trade
and bills receivables and loan receivables was considered to
be a matter of most significance as it required the application
of judgement and use of subjective assumptions by
management.
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HKFRS 9 requires that the impairment of financial assets
should be measured by “expected credit loss” (“ECL")
model. In order to measure the impairment of trade and bills
receivables and loan receivables under HKFRS 9,
management should use judgement, assumptions and
estimation techniques in aspects such as judging significant
increase in credit risk, estimating the parameters for
measuring ECL and determining the forward-looking
adjustments.

EEVBRELRNEOTARTE - ©REEMNRMERN [FBHE
EERI([FEHREEBEDERGE - RREBEFEMBRELE
AIE MR EE 5 WA RFRBEMERERRE - BIE
[ErEMN %77 | (st E B R KM ANVE L #Er - siat ETEH
EEBEN2EEL G RETRE AR ERHE - B&
Kf&Et % -

Our audit procedures included among others:

BAMEZREZFBE (ETRR)

(i)

(i)

Evaluated and tested the effectiveness of the
design and implementation of key controls relating
to approval, post approval monitoring, the credit
grading management, and loan impairment
assessment. We adopted a risk-based sampling
approach in our tests of the allowances for
impairment of trade and bills receivables and loan
receivables;

FHE MBS EEL  BHRER  EETFRERER
B FORERT (477 A B R B S ) BV ER AT LT A
o BB Z WK IR & SR A5 A R UL 18 BURUE
BmeV RS R BIARR SER T E

Selected samples of performing loans considering
size, risk factors, industry trends for our tests on the
measurement of impairment;

ZEBARN  EBREER TEBBERE - B
BHEFOEARANAGRERS

78 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI¥EE@ZERER AT




KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FRREZEE®)

Key audit matter
BHREKRSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MEHERERER

B S IE R IR I IE M & SR R (7 e ()

Provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables and loan receivables (Continued)

The accounting policies, disclosures of the allowance for
impairment of trade and bills receivables and loan
receivables and the related credit risk are included in notes
2.4, 3, 20 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
BRAGTBUER - B 5 FEWEIE R Z %R FE U 18 FOR B B LA
RABAEERRNEBHNGE M B®MEMT24 3201
24 °

(iii)

Evaluated and tested the important parameters of
the expected credit loss model, management'’s
major judgements and related assumptions, mainly
focusing on the following aspects:
HEMAAEREERRRANEE28 - E8E
FEHERARARE - TEFIUAT @ :

o Assessing the rationality of the expected
credit loss model methodology and related
parameters, including default probability,
default loss rate, risk exposure, and significant
increase in credit risk;
SETEREEERERIVAREEL2H(BIEE
R E - BRBEE - BB REERBRAE
) KA E M

o Assessing the management’s consideration of
forward-looking adjustment information when
determining expected credit losses, including
the use of macroeconomic information, the
judgement of adjustments, and the
reasonableness of reviews; and
AEEREENETCHMEEEERHAELER
BEEMNZRE(BREZBEBEEHNER - 3
B REHOSEL) - &

OH]

Of]

Assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosure of
the allowance for impairment of trade and bills
receivables and loan receivables and the related
credit risk.

il BEREE S WA & E R MR WA TR
EEHEAREBEERROBEENTRML
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

PR EZETE (&)

Key audit matter
BREKRSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MAEHERERER

Provision for impairment of manufacturing and trading related inventories

RERESIABFRE R ER

At 31 December 2019, the Group had manufacturing and
trading inventories of RMB3,660,365,000, net of provision for
impairment of RMB196,533,000, which represented 8.97% of
the total assets. The provision for impairment mainly related
to certain obsolete and slow-moving inventories. We focused
on this area because these inventories are material to the
Group and the provision for impairment of inventories
involves a high level of management’s judgement and

estimate.
R2019F12A31H EXEERENESFTERRAEAAR
5 3,660,365,000 7T % EE HMEATNBRAEREARKE

196,533,000 7T 2 1& Z #R%8 - (5 B EARFEM8.97% ° BB
BEIEANETEREBHEEFERE - RMAEMHBEIZTE
EHRZEFELURY EXEESAEFERERBESNEE
B EHIE GRS

Related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 22.
RERE SRR AR B ES A E24 - 3% 22

Our audit procedures included among others:

BB ZEF B (BETRR) :

0]

(ii)

(iii)

Evaluated, amongst others, the analyses and
assessments made by management with respect to
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, including
market values and expected selling prices of the
related inventories and the Group's future plan of
usage or sale;

A (B ERE) EEERBR MEHEFEELN D
kst BRAEFENTEREMNEE AU
K BEEBEORKERIHENS

Assessed the reliability of the underlying data used
by management in calculating the production
related inventory provisions such as the inventory
ageing reports, by re-performing the ageing
calculation generated by the system;
E%ﬁn+§r/\/)b§$quﬁﬂ(ﬁuﬁ SFHIwmE) - UG
MEREARAELERETFERENREENA
S

Tested the accuracy of the management’s
calculation by assessing the calculation criteria and
recalculating the provision; and
AR ERER B EEE
HRERENE © 2

MBS EE B E

Evaluated, based on a sample of production related
inventories, the analyses performed by
management regarding the net realisable values of

the production related inventories.

TﬁiﬁﬁéiF?@E@ﬁ‘ﬁ CARHEEEERRAEEM

80

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI¥EE@ZERER AT




KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FRREZEE®)

Key audit matter
BREKSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MEHERERER

Valuation of investment properties

REYZE A TE

At 31 December 2019, the Group had investment properties
of RMB6,870,181,000 which represented 16.84% of the total
assets and were measured at fair value. The valuation of the
investment properties is important to our audit as it
represents a significant judgment area and an important part
of the total assets of the Group. Management employed
independent qualified valuers to assess the fair value. The
valuation of the investment properties is highly dependent
on a range of estimates made by the management.
R2019F12A318 - EXENRENEERE/SARRE
6,870,181,000 7 ' {EE E#EM 16.84% WX AR EEFE °
HRREMERESNERAGAS EEEEELENE
BHKE S IRAEHRMERTEERN - EEERBSE
UREEROGEMIEAIABE - REVMELESEKE
ERBELN —RIIEFEE -

Related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 14.

REFA BRI ANEBEESRNIE24 3% 14

We carried out all the procedures, among others:

BPDETEHER (245)

(i)

(iv)

Considered the objectivity, independence and
expertise of the professional valuers;

ZREXMEMOZEE - BUMENFEENE

Assessed the correctness of the property related
data, which have been used as input for the
valuations;

FHEEREERARIEN Y EAAREEUR 2 LR

Engaged our internal specialists to assist us in
analysing the valuations and challenging the
underlying assumptions, such as the
appropriateness of comparable lands under the
sales comparison approach; and
ZERMER BRI DT EE LB ERBBARR -
PINSHELLBOA T AT B LR T E R 1L - &

Focused on the adequacy and appropriateness of
the disclosures relating to the valuations of these
investment properties.
HEAIRNRSEREDFEHERBREN TR EMES
14 o
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

%E&Eﬁﬁ%&?&éﬂﬁ%i&%ﬁ%ﬂ@i

BAMER EHGRAMBERRBRES T FAE
R FFR R ME BN EANBRBARG A
wRE YHABRERMEROZBERSE - HA
EHZREABIELRE - BRI ZIPRRE TEE
A% - PRI AR ENATEEREMBA
TR ESREEIFAAE -

EEREESKFHNRE  BTRERERRELS
BREAETNERZ EX - BEAERRAFAE
AR RE T IR - SERRIRM AT LA R ERFF SRR 5142
MRAEBHEMNEBRERLEKRAETERS
B mERERERBRAMBHREAELOEE
RTE - BB BV RR IR AT AR E K -

ERBEEBEZEAETERNBED  BME
T ERAE - RS TERRRER - BT

o BRIFFRE BN IREF SR T S BUR A M

BREFEERFRRAOER - RET LT
BZIEF ARSI E LR - A RERFE R M

BEHBREE  EARME RN - &
REGETT LS RESE - B ERER - &
B - SRR ARSI - B R e
BHRRGF TSRO EA BRI B S
R BRI R SR B AR R
A -

o  ERERZMEMNARES - ARFTEEN

EZER  EEMXFE EREREEG
MBRMEERER

o HEEFHMEASHERNREERFEHE
sHASTAMAR R A IR -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lee Mee Kwan, Helena.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2020

%Eﬂlﬁﬁﬁ%&%&éﬁﬁ%i&%ﬁ%ﬂ@i
()

tHREZZESRBNEIET  RAEEWLE
BHARG AN BREANECRAER  BME
PREBSEEAZ T I o MMEAZBRED & P HE L 45 Lk
R BIFERERTANAFARBEELEE
HERHFERNBERT - MRAIBFAMERIH
THEBRFRERNEERREBELENAR
Mzt - BIVRENEERS TEBLEER

HEARBYZHBMRENEZRBABARTE
Bt o

RAETENEH AT
WE DA
EHBHIR

NEE 19
PEARE 2218

20203 H27H

Annual Report 2019 4§ 85



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

fe= A

N Eﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ”&f\ﬁ

Year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31BILFE

2019 2018
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Lz AR%T T ARETT
REVENUE WA 5 26,344,523 23,733,517
Cost of sales $HE R N (18,807,404) (17,505,068)
Gross profit EF 7,537,119 6,228,449
Other revenue, income and gains HA A ~ Wam R F = 5 483,390 571,430
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEEX (1,227,651) (1,111,914)
Administrative expenses TR 2 (1,263,440) (1,080,820)
Impairment losses on financial TREAENEENRE
and contract assets &5 18 (108,705) (233,091)
Other expenses HibFZ (968,546) (840,531)
Finance costs Bh & Ak AN 6 (577,194) (415,403)
Share of results of associates DIEEE R R ZEE 105,895 116,803
Share of results of joint ventures DMEEEEREE 18 1,053 616
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AT 28 F 7 3,981,921 3,235,539
Income tax expense st x 9 (953,586) (789,315)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R F 3,028,335 2,446,224
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE Htt2mEAX
ltems that may be reclassified HgrgeEBEEERN
subsequently to profit or loss: EE :
Debt instruments at fair value through BAREEFAELMEE RE
other comprehensive income: MWEBIA :
Changes in fair value NABEEH 7,587 (758)
Reclassification adjustments for gain on ENBEARGES
disposal included in consolidated BaiAZHE
statement of profit or loss AlES (7,587) -
- (758)
Share of other comprehensive expense of {5 — 1B & A A HY E A
an associate, net of tax 2HEAX (BEFE) (196) (800)
Exchange differences on translation of WEINERREEMER
foreign operations =x (27,660) (207,018)
(27,856) (208,576)
ltems that will not be reclassified to ERTSENREZERN
profit or loss: ERE :
Changes in fair value of equity BAREBEFAEMERE RE
instruments at fair value through HRATENAREE
other comprehensive income ) (252,571) (189,718)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE FRHEMEE
FOR THE YEAR 53 (280,427) (398,294)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRE2EKE
FOR THE YEAR #zE 2,747,908 2,047,930
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2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARKBTET

Profit attributable to: AT FE(E R A -
Owners of the Company VIN/NCIEZ PN 3,024,701 2,491,774
Non-controlling interests IEE I 3,634 (45,550)
3,028,335 2,446,224
Total comprehensive income AT EGEE2ERE
attributable to: 4EEE
Owners of the Company ¥IN/NETEZ =N 2,733,430 2,089,225
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR 14,478 (41,295)
2,747,908 2,047,930
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE &2 RS AL
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY BREAER
Basic and diluted HEARNE#E 11 RMBO0.98 RMB0.80

AR#0.98t AR¥0.807T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

=AN e/ NN
RE B R
As at 31 December 2019
M2019F12A31H

2019
RMB’'000

ARBTR

2018
RMB'000
ARETT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - RE NMRE 12 9,394,821 7,478,765
Prepaid land lease payments FENTHHEER 13A - 1,337,959
Right-of-use assets BREEE 13B 1,614,395 -
Investment properties KEWE 14 6,870,181 4,650,423
Deposits paid for the purchase of land, BELH - ME  BERERE

property, plant and equipment FIZ I wize 884,486 1,731,202
Goodwill (EES 15A 398,589 363,133
Other intangible assets Hip & E 15B 336,109 257,787
Interests in associates REE S N AR 17 1,501,137 1,375,567
Interests in joint ventures MNELSDPERNERS 18 10,356 9,303
Other financial assets Hith @ mEE 19 1,771,120 1,852,511
Loan receivables FEW & 3R 20 11,613 163,422
Other non-current assets HiIEn#EE 21 70,784 360,097
Contract assets EREE 23 81,571 84,651
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 32 108,301 88,130
Total non-current assets FRBEELRE 23,053,463 19,752,950
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 22 3,966,048 3,521,214
Contract assets BREE 23 279,443 327,279
Other financial assets HithemEE 19 8,363 47,649
Loan receivables FEUS B3R 20 364,673 355,470
Trade and bills receivables 2 SR FIE R EiE 24 3,259,456 2,379,447
Prepayments, deposits and AR e REMEK

other receivables EE| 25 2,249,130 1,800,477
Cash and bank deposits BHERBITER 26 7,604,221 6,451,791
Total current assets MENEEBER 17,731,334 14,883,327
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Contract liabilities BHBE 23 1,725,300 1,482,994
Trade and bills payables B P RENFIBRER 27 5,829,534 4,277,323
Other payables and accruals Hib S RIAMERT B R 28 1,181,792 927,482
Tax payable eI HiTE 289,958 272,780
Borrowings = 29 11,411,319 6,144,492
Lease liabilities HEBE 13C 88,843 -
Total current liabilities mENBEERE 20,526,746 13,105,071
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ ASSETS e (A EEFE (2,795,412) 1,778,256
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRE

LIABILITIES =R 20,258,051 21,531,206
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2019 2018
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5T AR® T ARET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEE
Borrowings = 29 1,267,061 5,586,566
Convertible loans AR E R 30 652,595 -
Lease liabilities HEaE 13C 117,281 -
Other long-term payables Eth R HA R 5RIE 106,093 109,546
Derivative financial instruments PTHESRTAE 31 14,360 6,592
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBAE 32 788,671 572,967
Deferred income R S 33 217,594 182,670
Total non-current liabilities EREEELRE 3,163,655 6,458,341
Net assets BEFR 17,094,396 15,072,865
EQUITY =
Share capital [N 34 135,344 135,344
Reserves HiE 35 16,440,901 14,667,985
Equity attributable to owners RNRARER ANEG
of the Company e 16,576,245 14,803,329
Non-controlling interests eV R 518,151 269,536
Total equity i e 17,094,396 15,072,865
Wong Luen Hei Luo Jianfeng
Director Director
EF =
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
I\‘/ \ ;&_/\/\“‘E“‘@%

Year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31BILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LOGE N
Shares held for Fair value Exchange  Convertible Non-
Share Share  share award Statutory Capital Merger  revaluation fluctuation  loans equity Retained controlling
capital premium scheme reserve®! reserve®! reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests
HOEL]
b i E EXRE  TERER
B ; hekfe  EAEREY BV i Ei i1 REEA FEnRE
ARETTL
At 1 January 2018 HABEIA1E 13534 1905618 - 1,678,064 853 5515 205,703 480 - 9,306,335 13489915 23576 13783491
Profitfor the year ERiEh - - - - - - - - - 2091774 2091774 (550 M6
Other comprehensive expense EREMEE
for the year X - - - - - - (190476) 212073 - - 402,549) 4,25 (398.294)
Total comprehensive income ER2ENE
forthe year ] - - - - - - (190476) 212073 - 2001114 2089225 41,299) 2047930
Acouisition of non-controlling interests i - - - - (59.994) - - - - - (59.994) (60,346) (120,340)
Capital contributions from 3
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - - 16,513 16513
Non-controlling interests arising
from business combination - - - - - - - - - - - 49958 49958
Transfer of fair value reserve upon
the disposal of equity instruments
QUL - - - - - - (%0472) - - 90472 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries - - - (381) - - - - - - (381) 1130 10749
Dividends recognised as distributions
to owners note 10) - - - - - - - - - (115436) (115430) - (115430)
Appropriation to statutory reserve - - - 30,177 - - - - - 370,177 - - -
At 31 December 2018 and RABE1RAIER
1 January 2019 N9E1A1AE 13534 1905618 - 2,047 860 (51,460¢ 5515 (75,245¢ (167271 - 10m%es 14803309 2695% 15072865
Profit for the year ERiEh - - - - - - - - - 3004701 3,024,701 3634 3,028,335
Other comprehensive expense EREMEE
for the year fx - - - - - - (252,5M1) (38,700) - - (291,21 10,844 (280,427)
Total comprehensive income *ﬂ‘%ﬁ{(m
forthe year - - - - - - (252,571) (38,700) - 3,024,701 2,133,430 14,478 2,747,908
Acquisition of non-controlling
interests - - - - (36,419) - - - - - (36,419) 21,361 (15,058)

Capital contributions from
non-controlling inerests
Non-controlling nterests arising

= = = = = = - = = = 5 90423 90423

from business combination

(note 37) - - - - - - - - - - - 122812 122612

Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - (259) (259)
Transfer of fair value reserve

upon the disposal of equity

instruments at FVTOCI - - - - - - (56,476) - - 56,476 - - -
Issuance of convertible loans

(note 30) - - - - - - - - 27,605 - 27,605 - 27,605
Dividends recognised as

distributions to owners

(note 10) - - - - - - - - - (866,871) (866,871) - (866,871)
Shares purchased for

share award scheme (note 36(8)) - - (85,440) - - - - - - - (85,440) - (85,440)
Share of capital reserve of

an associate - - - - 611 - - - - - 611 - 611
Appropriation tostatutory resene - - - 221,654 - - - - - (221,654) - - -
At 31 December 2019 ROVERANA 135344 1,905,618 (85,440 2,269,514 (87,268)" 5,515 (384,292)" (205,971)" 27,605 129956200 16,576,245 518151 17,094,396
# These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of RMB16,440,901,000 (2018: # ZEREERAGEUBRAIZTPREARE

RMB14,667,985,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 16,440,901,000 7T (2018 4F = AER5 14,667,985,0007T) °
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Note:

In accordance with the Company Law of PRC, each of the Company’s subsidiaries
registered in PRC is required to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory profit after
tax (after offsetting any prior years' losses) determined in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in PRC to the statutory reserve until the balance of
the reserve fund reaches 50% of its registered capital. The statutory reserve can be
utilised to offset prior years' losses or to increase capital, provided that the
remaining balance of the statutory reserve is not less than 25% of the registered

capital.

Capital reserve mainly represented the difference between the consideration and
the book value of the share of the net assets acquired in respect of the acquisition

of non-controlling interests.

REFEQFE - ARFNFEZMSHEATEARER
FEBEPEARE S RANEENFEEERTR G
(BHBREMRBEFEERR)MI%REETHE B
RRESEHEINEEMERNS0% R - EERHEBAA
RNIRHBEFEBRIEE  MOXTHBOBRTEHRT
[JOREMEARE 25% °

AXFBEEZREARUNB IR EERELREEMK
BFEEREEMNEE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FAERETMER

Year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31BILFE

2019 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
Profit before tax MRS 3,981,921 3,235,539
Adjustments for: FATEBEEHRE
Interest income A S 5 (125,320) (111,149)
Government grants released ERAMBUN B (8,853) (4,300)
Gain on fair value changes of investment properties R EWE AR EEZEF 5 (147,997) (311,809)
Gain on fair value changes of financial BRARBEFABZNS R
instruments at fair value through profit or loss TENRABEZDN G 5 (3,432) (7,098)
Gain on disposal of debt instrument at fair value HERAABETAEM
through other comprehensive income ZEWENEE AN 5 (7,587) -
Investment income HE W= 5 (19,693) (32178)
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets BRIERREEERGN &S 5 (5,992) -
Interest expenses FEFRX 6 577,194 415,403
Depreciation and amortisation & NI 7 996,751 758,156
Write-down/(write-back) of inventories Hom, (R FEE AR
to net realisable value, net FEFE 7 5,691 (13,238)
Loss on disposal of items of other intangible HEHRMBREENYE -
assets and property, plant and equipment R K &4 1E B MBS 7 14,575 40,838
Loss on fair value changes of NMESBTEARBEEZH
derivative financial instruments &8 7 7,768 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBATIER(F2) 7 8,324 (33,273)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment mE - BERSERE 7 9,880 2,711
Impairment of trade and bills receivables, net B 5 RNFIE L RBREFE 7 35,486 51,736
Impairment of prepayments R FRE 7 34,330 -
Impairment of other receivables Ho A W TR IE R B 7 38,990 -
Impairment of contract assets BHEERE 7 3,052 21,855
Impairment of goodwill EERE 7 29,100 372
Impairment of loan receivables [EUEFRE 7 31,177 159,500
Share of results of associates X ) NS B (105,895) (116,803)
Share of results of joint ventures DEEEREEE 18 (1,053) (616)
5,348,417 4,055,646
Decrease in other non-current assets HibIERBEERD 290,154 92,196
Increase in inventories FEEM (274,178) (297,192)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BHEERL,/(1EM) 54,505 (111,955)
Decrease in loan receivables U E TR 111,429 111,524
Increase in trade and bills receivables B Z RN R EEE (632,910) (387,989)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and AR - B REMERHKIE
other receivables 1 (319,659) (437,779
Increase in contract liabilities BREEEM 170,062 261,270
Increase in trade and bills payables B S ENFIERERIE M 1,199,408 1,327,056
(Decrease)/increase in other payables HEMENZIEREER
and accruals CRi),/3Em (4,935) 234,389
(Decrease)/increase in other long-term payables Hith R EAEN TIB R,/ (3,217) 3,448
Increase in deferred income I ERIE N 43,778 49,958
Cash generated from operations KEEANRS 5,982,854 4,900,572
Bank interest received BYERTTAS 102,460 105,140
Corporate income tax paid RENN=ESZEET (773,122) (595,975)
Net cash flows from operating activities KERBMSREMEFHE 5,312,192 4,409,737
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2019 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment B EYI%  E MR EER (1,781,326) (1,309,966)
Proceeds from disposal of items of other intangible REHEHEMEREENYE -
assets and property, plant and equipment 5 R 54818 B WFT1S 508 294,536 76,306
Additions to right-of-use assets/ ERERE TaN i
prepaid land lease payments TREFEm (107,203) (73,510)
Additions to investment properties REYEL M (1,085,295) (829,950
Deposit for right-of-use assets EREEERS (2,222) -
Additions to other intangible assets Hh A g EEm (10,750) (5,739)
Additions to associates B N APE N (6,621) (1,143,325)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries Y B B B A 37 (1,162,818) (384,446)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HE M B A RFTEHIE 17,462 7,224
Purchases of other financial assets BEAMERERE (612,027) (860,747)
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets HEEMEREEMSIIE 514,735 469,627
Proceeds from early redemption of convertible notes 12 - 8& [l A #J% 22 1 AT 15 5B - 141,305
Investment income received B B Wz 19,693 32,178
Dividend received from an associate Bl —AEE A RRRE 19,326 -
Interest received from other financial assets Bl EMEREENTIE 22,875 8,088
Contingent consideration paid for the acquisition of 2 UEHE A 1K)
subsidiaries HARE = (56,000)
Prepayment for acquisition of a subsidiary FER KRB RRE - (354,293)
Increase in restricted cash ZIREIR LM (183,822) (283,344)
Net cash flows used in investing activities BEEDMARENE TR (4,063,457) (4,566,592)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
New bank borrowings raised FIBIERITIER 6,264,914 6,446,937
Repayment of bank and other loans ERRIT R A MER (5,725,736) (3,404,925)
Convertible loans raised g ARREN 667,718 -
Capital contributions from non-controlling interests ~ JE¥2 |4z & 90,423 16,513
Acquisition of non-controlling interests o FE PR IR 2R (15,058) (78,897)
Purchase of shares for share award scheme SRR (D SRED =t 218 AR (85,440) -
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEER (92,406) -
Interest paid BEAFLE (530,490) (397,996)
Dividends paid BERRE (866,871) (715,436)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing MEEE (A5
activities ReneF8 (292,946) 1,866,196
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReERBREEEMEM
EQUIVALENTS FE 955,789 1,709,341
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ~ FHIHIR & MRS HEY 5,393,836 3,677,759
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net HNESTE R BB 2R 12,819 6,736
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EXNRERAEE
AT END OF THE YEAR L) 6,362,444 5,393,836
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERRESEMNES
CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
Time deposits with original maturity of three months & #3120 (P EENAS R A HifR
or less when acquired B=EAZAT) 26 454,916 8,440
Cash and bank balances Be RIRITEH 26 5,907,528 5,385,396
6,362,444 5,393,836
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘e MR M

2.1

94

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The addresses of its registered office and
principal places of business are disclosed in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Particulars of
the Company’s principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in notes 44, 17 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties,
other financial assets and derivative financial instruments which
have been measured at fair value. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recorded net current
liabilities of RMB2,795,412,000, which was mainly resulted from
two syndicated loans (the “Syndicated Loans”) of US$599,001,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB4,174,913,000) and HK$1,346,558,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB1,206,220,000) which will be
due for repayment in July 2020 and October 2020, respectively,
as disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI¥EE@ZERER AT

1.

2.1

RAEAREEER

ARRR—HRFEHSEMAINBRA
Al o HEMEE k2L XN AR
EIRAIER]ED -

ARBR—EREERLQR - RAREEW
BLOF - BEARREERENFHIED R
RERE MBS RRMITE44 - 17 18 -

R

A RMBHRRORIBEE LSRR
M E B BREERN(FEYHRELE
Al]) (BREAAREMHHREER - BEE
SAEA(TEAGER] k2R  FERQ
RETRAURBBRAEPIRERERSE -
KRG EPBHRRIRELRAERE - ERA
REEENREYE  HSREENT
FERT AR - RRAMBHBRIUAR
W25 BRREENN - REEESHAESE
RIZATH T ITEN ©

M2019F12A31H - AEBEHSREBEE
TREAAR#2795412,0007C 0 TEHREES
51 795 3 7= BT 5F 29 P $% 58 9 599,001,000 2% 7T
(HHERHAREAL174913,0007T ) &
1,346,558,000/% 7L( #H & BN #H A R
1,206,220,0007C) (M IER B E K ([EEE
1) 2 B 202049 7 A K 2020510 A &
HAEE TR -



2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

On 30 July 2019, the Company (as guarantor) and its wholly-
owned subsidiary (as borrower) entered into a facility agreement
(the "Facility Agreement”), in relation to dual currency syndicated
term loan and revolving credit facilities in the equivalent amount
of US$900,000,000 (the “Facilities”). The final maturity date under
the Facility Agreement is the date falling 48 months after the first
utilisation date. On 23 October 2019, an amendment agreement
in relation to the Facility Agreement was entered into to increase
the total commitment under the Facilities to the equivalent
amount of US$1,100,000,000 for general corporate purpose,
including the refinancing of the Group's existing financial
indebtedness. The directors of the Company believe the Group
will be able to continue to generate positive cash flows from its
operations. On this basis, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group is able to meet in full its financial obligations as
they fall due in the coming 12 months. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the
directors of the Company on a going concern basis.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

2.1 REEEm@m)

201967 A308 - KRR ({EAERA)
ME2ENBAT (TEABRA)FI L —HAM
Epz ((REWwZ])  "NAB@ESEHEER
900,000,000 & T W) E KSR B F BRI E R K 1A
REEME(RE]D  @ERZENREDEH
BABXREAAMSRET48EAEREH -
2019F 10 H23H - BEERBE & NIEE H
BRIV BRECZAREBEERAER
1,100,000,000 3 L AE— M B A& (H A
BIEASEBEVHAERRE) ARF]
EEHE ARERBEENEREEELL
EIRER - EHER - ARFESRAR
SEBENEEBRARKRI2ERZBENE
BETS o At - AR R EFIRFELEEE
IRBRE BIISHRER -

mEERE
RAMEBRRBEARARLEMBEARES
201912 A 31 BIFFEMIB®REK -

RREBLEER) EAKEAIHFTELE
BREHREXGAENAIZ0%R - HeeBE Bt
SEHSHEN (METFTAREREENE
BEREHREBEDORTEN) X EZST
B #REF - BIER{S IS -

g
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

96

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(i) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(i) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(i) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributable to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised standards
for the first time for the current year’s consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and

Joint Ventures
Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23

Annual Improvements

2015-2017 Cycle

Other than as further explained below, the application of these
new and revised standards has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet
model to recognise and measure right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, except for certain recognition exemptions. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
HKAS 17. Lessors continue to classify leases as either operating
or finance leases using similar principles as in HKAS 17. For a
sublease arrangement, the classification of the sublease is made
by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease,
instead of by reference to the underlying asset. HKFRS 16 did not
have any significant impact on leases where the Group is the
lessor.

22 B BERREESHED
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

98

HKFRS 16 (Continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application of 1
January 2019. Under this method, the standard has been applied
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an

adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits at 1

January 2019, and the comparative information for 2018 was not
restated and continued to be reported under HKAS 17 and
related interpretations.

(a)

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the identified asset and the right to direct the use of the
identified asset. The Group elected to use the transition
practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied
only to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial
application. Contracts that were not identified as leases
under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed.
Therefore, the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has
been applied only to contracts entered into or changed on
or after 1 January 2019.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

HKFRS 16 (Continued)

(b)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating
leases
Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of
leasehold land, plants and buildings, motor vehicles and
other equipment. As a lessee, the Group previously
classified leases as either finance leases or operating leases
based on the assessment of whether the lease transferred
substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
to the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the Group applies a single
approach to recognise and measure right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for all leases, except for two elective
exemptions for leases of low-value assets (elected on a
lease-by-lease basis) and leases with a lease term of 12
months or less (“short-term leases”) (elected by class of
underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term commencing from 1 January 2019, the Group
recognises depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the
right-of-use assets and interest accrued on the outstanding
lease liabilities as finance costs.

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised based
on the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 1
January 2019. The Group elected to present the lease
liabilities separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The right-of-use assets were measured at the amount of the
lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the lease recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position
immediately before 1 January 2019. All these assets were
assessed for any impairment based on HKAS 36 on that
date. The Group elected to present the right-of-use assets
separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

100

HKFRS 16 (Continued)

(b)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating
leases (Continued)

Impact on transition (Continued)

For the leasehold land and buildings that were held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation previously
included in investment properties and measured at fair
value, the Group has continued to include them as
investment properties at 1 January 2019. They continue to
be measured at fair value applying HKAS 40.

For the leases previously accounted for as operating leases
and entered into for earning sublease rental income, the
related right-of-use assets of the head leases amounting to
RMB48,080,000 were measured at fair value at 1 January
2019, and have been accounted for and classified as
investment properties applying HKAS 40 from that date.

The Group has used the following elective practical
expedients when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019:

o Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases
with a lease term that ends within 12 months from the
date of initial application

o Using hindsight in determining the lease term where
the contract contains options to extend/terminate the
lease

o Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with reasonably similar characteristics when measuring

the lease liabilities at 1 January 2019

J Excluding initial direct costs from the measurement of
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial application
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 SETHERBESESH @)
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

HKFRS 16 (Continued) BFRMBHREERE 165 (8
()  Financial impact at 1 January 2019 () M2019F1B1BENHKEE
The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 as at 1 201961 A1 BREERAE BT B mE
January 2019 was as follows: HERIF 16 AELNTZEMT
Increase/(decrease)
g,/ )
RMB'000
AREFT
Assets: gE
Increase in right-of-use assets {5 FRHEE EHL N 1,689,086
Increase in investment properties =/ ES Il 48,080
Decrease in prepaid land lease payments TER A E OB A (1,337,959)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and TERK - e REAM BRI
other receivables b (30,455)
Increase in total assets BEARTEE M 368,752
Liabilities: &fE:
Increase in lease liabilities and total liabilities HEBB LA GEETEIEM 368,752
The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to the R2019F1TATMBHNEE G EHER
operating lease arrangements as at 31 December 2018 are 2018 F 12 A 31 HAV 2 HE ZHEeV
as follows: BRONT ¢
RMB'000
AREFTT
Operating lease arrangements MN20185 12831 BNREHE
as at 31 December 2018 ZHE 349,861
Less: Arrangements relating to short-term leases 3 : 245 HAFH & & Fl 44 FH 2f
and those leases with a remaining 7R2019F 12 A31H
lease term ending on or R B RIEE
before 31 December 2019 FERE R 2Bt (6,539)
Arrangements relating to leases of HREEEENHERA
low-value assets B2 BE (982)
Add: Management service fee not included in 2018412 A 31 BARBIER
arrangements as at 31 December 2018 THEHRHEE RS E 113,490
455,830
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate #20194F 1 A1 BRI g E
as at 1 January 2019 (EEACIES 4.69%
Discounted operating lease arrangements and 4201951 81 BB EEAE
lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 ZHEREEERE 368,752

Annual Report 2019 G5} 101
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

102

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material’

and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform'
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

and HKAS 28 (2011) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

3 Mandatory effective date not yet determined

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application.
So far, the Group considers that these new and revised HKFRSs
may result in changes in accounting policies but are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group's results of operations
and financial position.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associates or joint
ventures, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interests in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of
the Group's investments in associates or joint ventures.
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2.4
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

INTEREST IN JOINT OPERATION

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing

control.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a joint
operation:

o its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly;

o its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising
from the joint operation;

o its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the
joint operation; and

° its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to the
Group's interest in a joint operation are accounted for in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL
(Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group will perform its annual impairment test of goodwill as
at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than
the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract asset, deferred tax assets and financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);

and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in
the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Land and buildings
Plant and machinery

Not depreciated
2.3% to 5%

9% to 19%
Furniture, fixtures and 9.5% to 32.3%

office equipment

9.5% to 32.3%

Over the shorter of the lease

terms and 20%

Motor vehicles
Leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
profit or loss in the period the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and other assets
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost represents the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset
(2018: leasehold property under an operating lease) which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or developed
for future use as investment property. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the
retirement or disposal.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less any impairment losses
and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of five years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the
same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Patents and proprietary technologies

Purchased patents and proprietary technologies acquired are
stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on
the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 years
to 20 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)
(Continued)

Trademark, brand name and operating concession rights
Trademark, brand name and operating concession rights with
indefinite useful lives acquired are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are not amortised. The useful life of such
an asset should be reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support an indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they
do not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite should be accounted for as a change in an accounting
estimate.

The Group is required to test an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life for impairment by comparing its recoverable
amount with its carrying amount (a) annually, and (b) whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

LEASES (APPLICABLE FROM 1 JANUARY 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

114

LEASES (APPLICABLE FROM 1 JANUARY 2019)
(Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
The cost of a right-of-use asset also includes an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Plants and buildings

20 to 50 years
1to 17 years
Motor vehicles 1 to 3 years

Other equipment 1 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of
a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property, it is included in investment properties.
The corresponding right-of-use asset is initially measured at
cost, and subsequently measured at fair value, in
accordance with the Group's policy for “investment
properties”.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

LEASES (APPLICABLE FROM 1 JANUARY 2019)
(Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occeurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

LEASES (APPLICABLE FROM 1 JANUARY 2019)
(Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of plants and buildings
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition exemption
for leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment
and laptop computers that are considered to be of low
value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified
as a finance lease or operating lease with reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a
short-term lease to which the Group applies the on-balance
sheet recognition exemption, the Group classifies the sublease
as an operating lease.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

LEASES (APPLICABLE BEFORE 1 JANUARY 2019)

Finance leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the minimum lease payment receivables and initial
direct costs is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as loan receivables. Any unguaranteed residual value is
also recognised at the inception of the lease. The difference
between the sum of the minimum lease payment receivables,
initial direct costs, the unguaranteed residual value and their
present value is recognised as unearned finance income.
Unearned finance income is recognised over the period of the
lease using the effective interest rate method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

LEASES (APPLICABLE BEFORE 1 JANUARY 2019)
(Continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"), and fair value through
profit or loss (“"FVTPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group's business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade and bills receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at FVTPL, transaction costs. Trade and bills receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the
principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not SPPI are classified and measured at FVTPL,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
FVTOCI are held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at FVTPL.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt instruments at FVTOCI, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are
recognised in profit or loss and computed in the same manner as
for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining
fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to profit
or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments
designated at FVTOCI when they meet the definition of equity
under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in profit
or loss when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity instruments designated at FVTOCI are not subject
to impairment assessment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
instruments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at FVTOCI. Dividends on equity instruments classified as
financial assets at FVTPL are also recognised as other income in
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it
no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of
those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between
the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the
part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and
the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at FVTPL. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 5 years past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt instruments at FVTOCI and financial assets at amortised
cost are subject to impairment under the general approach and
they are classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade and bills receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the
Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For trade and bills receivables that contain a significant financing
component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at FVTPL, loans and borrowings, payables, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,

loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, convertible
loans, lease liabilities and derivative financial instruments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
FVTPL are designated at the date of initial recognition and only if
the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied. The Group has not
designated any financial liability as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate ("EIR”) method. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Convertible loans

The component of convertible loans that exhibits characteristics
of a liability is recognised as a liability in the consolidated
statement of financial position, net of transaction costs. On
issuance of convertible loans, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible loan; and this amount is carried as a long term
liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on
conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and
included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs. The
carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in
subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between
the liability and equity components of the convertible loans
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognised.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument, in which case the timing of the recognition
in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of
a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at FVTPL.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Manufacturing and trading

Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the
case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Property development

Cost comprises land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs,
professional fees and other costs directly attributable to such
properties incurred during the development period.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of cash management.

2.4 FTESHBERBE @)

TEEMIA

DREARHEBHE
PTAETHEMTAETREANFILEBIZARE
BYIRER  RERNRERARLZEQAEBE
B E o SN =E WEEW%%%AE
= BRIZVTETAEEREREHRT
RULERT - BIRR T %5 @5%24&%?&7@73@
BRER R -

BRAROTETR
FTETATENFZRARNTETRESR
ETATAEERNERBYITETAE &
[ B M R 3 A O BT I R R R
MmEBHL M EAREESAESR °

T SRA A B AT B BT EME R EE A

RENES

XA TADNBEF A EEE - s EE mm S EE
REmE  KABREERM BEESETR
EELPIMBEIERX - A 23R FERIR AR
E BRI TTR B & B PR AR BOME (AT b R AR

BT -

UE 345
PRABIE LI ~ A - BERA
BEXEREZENERFERPHERELN
HABRA

ReRAEEEY
ReMReFEMERES  EHERKL
PERERADANEERS BEE @JHEATT

Ek—REEBAZ=EARIBNEHSR
B E - BAMNREZ KA EERENX
REEBBRBORBITES -

Annual Report 2019 4§ 127



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B ISR TR

2.4

128

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
certain industrial products and the provision of construction
services for general repairs of defects occurring during the
warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-type warranties
granted by the Group are recognised based on sales volume and
past experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to
their present values as appropriate.

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary

differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the

carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be

utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

INCOME TAX (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the period that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income
account and is released to profit or loss over the expected useful
life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group a
significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

132

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Construction services

Revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service,
because the Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. The input method recognises revenue based on
the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the construction

services.

Claims to customers are amounts that the Group seeks to
collect from the customers as reimbursement of costs and
margins for scope of works not included in the original
construction contract. Claims are accounted for as variable
consideration and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved. The Group uses the expected value
method to estimate the amounts of claims because this
method best predicts the amount of variable consideration
to which the Group will be entitled.

Provision of sewage, hazardous waste treatment and
related environmental protection services

Revenue from the provision of sewage, hazardous waste
treatment and related environmental protection services is
recognised when the relevant services have been rendered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Revenue from other sources
Income from financial services including:

()  bhandling fee income from factoring services and supply-
chain financing services which is recognised when the
relevant services have been rendered;

(i) finance lease income which is recognised over the period
of lease, as further explained in the accounting policy
"Leases” above; and

(iii)  interest income which is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method as explained below.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

CONTRACT ASSETS

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the accounting
policies for impairment of financial assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension schemes

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, the Group's
employees participate in various defined contribution plans and
state-management retirement benefit plans in the countries in
which the Group operates. Payments to these plans, where the
Group's obligations under them are equivalent to a defined
contribution plan, are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Housing benefits, medical insurances and other social
insurances

PRC employees of the Group are entitled to participate in various
government-supervised housing funds, medical insurances and
other social insurance plans. The Group contributes to these
funds based on certain percentages of the salaries of these
employees on a monthly basis. The Group's liability in respect of
these funds is limited to the contribution payable in each period.
Contributions to the housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurances are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme and a share award
scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed
as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value
of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award
unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

DIVIDENDS

Dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity
when they are declared and approved by the Company’s
shareholders in general meetings. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are

declared and approved, and no longer at the discretion of the
Company.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The Company'’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollars while
the Company’s presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements is Renminbi. In preparing the financial
statements of each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in order
to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of
the monetary items.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are
translated into Renminbi using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange fluctuation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of the operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

JUDGEMENT

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities have not been established for
income tax and withholding tax that would be payable on certain
profits of the subsidiaries in the PRC to be repatriated and
distributed by way of dividends as the directors consider that the
timing of the reversal of the related temporary differences can be
controlled and such temporary differences will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future.

If these undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries in the PRC are
considered to be repatriated and distributed by way of dividends,
the deferred income tax charge and deferred income tax liability
would have increased by the same amount of approximately
RMB374,897,000 (2018: RMB350,709,000).

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill, brand name and operating
concession rights

The Group determines whether goodwill, brand name and
operating concession rights with indefinite useful lives are
impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill, brand name and operating concession rights are
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make
an estimation of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. At the
end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of goodwill,
brand name and operating concession rights were
RMB398,589,000 (2018: RMB363,133,000), RMB 110,520,000 (2018:
RMB110,520,000) and RMB24,550,000 (2018: RMB24,550,000),
respectively. Further details are disclosed in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Provision of ECL for contract assets, trade and bills

receivables, other receivables and loan receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for contract
assets, trade and bills receivables, other receivables and loan
receivables. The provision rates are based on the invoice date for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and
rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit

insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision of ECL for contract assets, trade and bills
receivables, other receivables and loan receivables
(Continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's contract assets, trade and bills receivables, other
receivables and loan receivables is disclosed in notes 23, 24, 25
and 20 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories

The Group reviews the aging analysis of its inventories at the end
of each reporting period, and makes provision for obsolete and
slow moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable
for use/sale. Management estimates the net realisable value for
such inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. At the end of the reporting period, an
accumulated provision for obsolescence of RMB196,533,000
(2018: RMB190,842,000) has been recognised for inventories.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active
market for properties in the same location and condition and
subject to similar leases and other contracts. In the absence of
such information, management determines the amount within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgement,
management considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) independent valuations; (i) current prices in an active
market for properties of a different nature, condition and location
(or subject to different leases or other contracts), adjusted to
reflect those differences; (iii) recent prices of similar properties in
less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the dates of transactions that occurred
at those prices; and (iv) discounted cash flow projections, based
on reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts, and (where possible)
from external evidence such as current market rates for similar
properties in the same location and condition, and using discount
rates that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in
the amount and timing of cash flows.

Details of the judgement and assumptions involved in
determining the fair value of the Group's investment properties
have been disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with
a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would
have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases
are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market
interest rates) when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone
credit rating).
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
building materials and interior decoration products; the provision
of renovation and installation works, environmental engineering
and other related services, financial services and property rental
and other related services. For management purposes, the
Group's businesses are organised by geographical areas based
on the location of the customers and assets are attributable to
the geographical unit based on the location of the assets. The
Group has eight reportable operating segments as follows:

(i) Southern China, including Guangdong Province, Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region, Hunan Province, Fujian
Province and Hainan Province;

(i) Southwestern China, including Chongging Municipality,
Sichuan Province, Guizhou Province, Yunnan Province and
Xizang (Tibet) Autonomous Region;

(iii)  Central China, including Hubei Province, Jiangxi Province
and Henan Province;

(iv) Eastern China, including Shanghai Municipality, Jiangsu
Province, Zhejiang Province and Anhui Province;

(v Northern China, including Beijing Municipality, Tianjin
Municipality, Hebei Province, Shandong Province, Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region and Shanxi Province;

(vi)  Northwestern China, including Shaanxi Province, Ningxia
Hui Autonomous Region, Qinghai Province, Gansu Province

and Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region;

(vii) Northeastern China, including Liaoning Province, Jilin
Province and Heilongjiang Province; and

(viii) Outside China.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a
measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before
tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before tax
except that interest income, changes in fair value of investment
properties, changes in fair value of financial instruments at FVTPL,
gain on disposal of debt instruments at FVTOCI, investment
income, loss on fair value changes of derivative financial
instruments, (loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries, exchange
differences, non-lease-related finance costs, share of results of
associates and joint ventures and other unallocated income and

expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude interests in associates, interests in joint
ventures, other financial assets, deferred tax assets, cash and
bank deposits and other unallocated head office and corporate
assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment revenue is eliminated on consolidation.
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.

The Group's revenue from external customers is derived from its
operations in China, special administrative regions of PRC and
foreign countries.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no revenue
from transactions with a single external customer amounted to
10% or more of the Group's total revenue.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Southern Southwestern
China
E3)

RMB'000
ARBTR

China
BEELE
RMB’000

AR¥T R

Central
China

L
RMB'000
AR®TR

RMB'000
AR%TR

<

&0 EERE (#®)

BZEZ2019F12A31HLEFEENEE
72 2B E #

Northern Northwestern Northeastern

China

#i
RMB000
AREFR

Outside
China  Eliminations Consolidated
HEHES i} )
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR¥TR AR%TR

China
FiEE
RMB’000

AR®FR

China
RLHE
RMB'000
ARBT T

Segment revenue: DEHEA
Sale of goods HEER 13,535,151 2,598,852 3,009,404 1,376,221 1,956,487 1,260,583 696,764 871,766 - 25,305,228
Contract revenue from renovation  EERZE T2

and installation works BHMA 439,477 13,349 54,097 62,090 13,983 121 3,418 9,216 - 595,751
Income from environmental RRTIEREA

engineering and other related 1R R

services Wz 175,752 13,406 12,993 119,513 1177 2,768 188 - - 325,797
Financial service income SRR 26,084 913 13,626 120 157 - - - - 40,900
Property rental and other related ¥ %A E R E A

services TRE AR 3,773 - - 126 - - - 72,948 = 76,847
Revenue from external customers  4MBEFUA 14,180,237 2,626,520 3,090,120 1,558,070 1,971,804 1,263,472 700,370 953,930 - 26,344,523
Intersegment revenue EIELON 3,989,030 430,309 533,746 324,949 450,154 247,667 152,790 826,810  (6,955,455) -
Total @t 18,169,267 3,056,829 3,623,866 1,883,019 2,421,958 1,511,139 853,160 1,780,740  (6,955,455) 26,344,523
Segment results: DEELE - 5,272,730 819,409 1,021,793 496,233 642,678 306,270 178,466 227,538 (1,427,998) 7,537,119
Reconciliations: i
Interest income kY é 125,320
Gain on fair value changes of BRENWELNEE

investment properties 2Tz 147,997
Gain on fair value changes of BRAABENABRN

financial instruments at SRIANDAEE

FVTPL 29T 3,432
Gain on disposal of debt HERRABEA

instruments at Hiv 2 ARE0ER

FVTOCI TAM 7,587
Investment income REWE 19,693
Loss on fair value changes of T

derivative financial instruments ZHFER (7,768)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARNER (8,324)
Exchange gain 5 7|25 27,084
Finance costs (other than interest ~ BARK A (FHEEE

on lease liabilities) FEBIN) (563,421)
Share of results of associates AEBENREE 105,895
Share of result of a joint venture ~ E—HAELEEE 1,053
Unallocated income and expenses & 2 B M 25 M B 52 (3,413,746)
Profit before tax BB AR 3,981,921
Segment assets: 16,065,801 1,442,760 1,293,721 1,794,605 825,589 686,628 464,689 7,207,506 - 29,781,299
Reconciliations: :
Interests in associates N NGifor 3o 1,501,137
Interest in a joint venture R-EagtENER 10,356
Other financial assets Hie B4R 1,779,483
Deferred tax assets ERBREE 108,301
Cash and bank deposits RERBITER 7,604,221
Total assets BESE 40,784,797
Other segment information: Hit D PEH
Write-down of inventories to HRFEZAER

net realisable value, net FEFE - - - - - - - 5,691 = 5,691
Depreciation and amortisation WERES 659,556 68,317 68,538 51,461 42,104 36,776 20,011 49,988 - 996,751
Impairment of property, plantand ¥ ~ B Rk

equipment 4,826 - - - - - - 5,054 - 9,880
Impairment of goodwill 29,100 - - - - - - - - 29,100
Impairment of loan receivables 31,177 - - - - - - - - 31,177
Impairment of contract assets 3,052 - - - - - - - - 3,052
Impairment of trade and bills ECT LGV IES

receivables, net REEE 35,473 47 (96) 3,062 399 85 (961) (2,523) - 35,486
Impairment of prepayments BIFER 34,330 - - - - - - - - 34,330
Impairment of other receivables H WEIER 38,990 - - - - - - - - 38,990
Capital expenditure* ERRER 2,736,680 113,772 256,476 338,397 60,261 32,572 27,780 1,762,678 (53,797) 5,274,819

#

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment,

right-of-use assets, investment properties and other intangible assets,
among which the additions resulted from business combination amount to
RMB1,234,240,000.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

EBER (&

4 «(,u /

BZEZ2018F 1231 HLEFENKEE
o EpE B

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Central Northern  Northwestern ~ Northeastem Outside

Southern  So ermn

China
REitE

RMB'000

China
[isplaicf
RMB’000
T T

China

Elimination

Consolidated
RMB'000
AR¥FL

Segment revenue: AEEA
Sale of goods HEER 12,782,004 2,518,896 2,806,527 1,240,391 1,607,400 951,207 581,562 736,285 - 23,224,272
Contract revenue from renovation RERZETRR

and installation works Ll ON 184,400 - - - - - - - - 184,400
Income from environmental RETRRREAM

engineering and other related HERS

services egs 125,990 20,959 11,659 24,594 12 2,937 388 - - 186,539
Financial service income S RRB R 38,197 1,507 25,303 - 181 - 184 - - 65,372
Property rental and other MEBEREM

related services 1R RS 5,793 - - - - - - 67,141 - 72,934
Revenue from external customers ~ SMEFZEFIRA 13,136,384 2541362 2843489 1,264,985 1,607,593 954,144 582,134 803,426 - 3733517
Intersegment revenue AEEBA 3,972,827 441,559 446,347 317,045 393,322 178,059 118,826 760,666 (6,628,651) -
Total e 17,109,211 2,982,921 3,289,836 1,582,030 2,000,915 1,132,203 700,960 1,564,092 (6,628,651) 23,733,517
Segment results: DIEE 3,668,555 744,810 847,805 252,485 432423 218,153 142,826 27,083 (105,751) 6,228,449
Reconciliations: ik -
Interest income e 11,149
Gain on fair value changes of BREMELAEE

investment properties EEHFH 311,809
Gain on fair value changes of g ’Rﬁﬂ“fﬁ T AIBEA)

financial instruments at SRIANAABE

FVTPL ZEF| 7,098
Investment income = 32,178
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HeE MJE NEFEFI% 33,273
Exchange loss [EH &8 (15,874)
Finance costs BERKAR (415,403)
Share of results of associates AMEBERREE 116,803
Share of results of joint ventures DEREEESE 616
Unallocated income and expenses * Sl R X (3,174,559)
Profit before tax BB AR R 3,235,539
Segment assets: AHEE: 13,235,406 1,376,886 1,311,875 1,518,197 791,056 644,194 487,490 5,446,222 - 24,811,326
Reconciliations: E
Interests in associates REE AR ER 1,375,567
Interests in joint ventures RELNENES 9,303
Other financial assets Hih R 1,900,160
Deferred tax assets ETR 88,130
Cash and bank deposits HeRBRIER 6,451,791
Total assets EELE 34,636,277
Other segment information: ﬁf&ﬁ“ﬂﬁﬁ :
Write-back of inventories to net W@Tmﬁ

realisable value, net FEFE (31,074) 362 (432) 9,521 (1,993) (516) (5,858) 16,752 - (13,238)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 448,461 67,890 62,533 62,639 44,147 35,381 19,698 17,407 - 758,156
Impairment of property, plantand ~ #1% + & &

equipment RiERE - - - - - - - 2,1 - 2,711
Impairment of goodwill HEHE - - - - - - - 372 - 372
Impairment of loan receivables J@Jﬁ( EZRE 159,500 - - - - - - - - 159,500
Impairment of contract assets ANMEERE 21,855 - - - - - - - - 21,855
Impairment of trade and bills BORNGIERRE

receivables, net A 22,503 8 215 2,171 98 7 347 26,387 - 51,736
Capital expenditure* éﬁﬁﬁﬁ 796,332 96,364 70,824 300,836 59,570 24,742 59,689 232,288 (14,740) 1,625,905
# Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, # BRAXBEABYE  BERZE BT

prepaid land lease payments, investment properties and other intangible

assets, among which the additions resulted from business combination
amount to RMB150,620,000.

HER REVERAMEREE  HPBIEEA
¥BAHMEENAIE BARE150,620,0007T °
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5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5. WA - Hlg A - ERAZF
GAINS

REVENUE L'ON

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from LTEIAERBREREES LMK ADTTL
contracts with customers and the reconciliation of the revenue KERBFAXRIEABES S ERITIRNESEE
from contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in the ¥ AR -

segment information:
By revenue nature: BWAMEE S

2019 2018
Goods Goods
transferred Services transferred Services
ata point transferred atapoint  transferred

in time over time Total in time over time Total

RE-FH BEEES

HENER BRORE B & ; SR RY 5t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB000

ARBTR ARETRT AR®TR ARETT ARETT ARSTT

Revenue from contracts with RERFANN

customers: WA :
Sale of goods HEEM 25,305,228 - 25,305,228 23,224,272 - 23,224,272
Contract revenue from renovation EENLZETRAL

and installation works WA - 595,751 595,751 - 184,400 184,400
Income from environmental RETIENM

engineering and other H i8R

related services ARAS W2 - 325,797 325,797 - 186,539 186,539
Sub-total NEF 25,305,228 921,548 26,226,776 23,224,272 370,939 23,595,211
Financial service income SRR W 40,900 65,372
Property rental and other MEMRE kA M

related services BR75 76,847 72,934
Total wEt 26,344,523 23,733,517
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REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5. WA - Halr A - W KR )
GAINS (Continued)

REVENUE (Continued) WA ()
By geographical locations: LB EES

2019 2018
Goods Goods
transferred Services transferred Services

at a point transferred atapoint  transferred

in time over time Total in time over time Total
RE-BY BEEBES RE—EE F /
BRNER ERNERYE st B EENORY st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR®Tr AR%TR ARETT ARBTT ARET:

Revenue from contracts with REAZFEAHNH

customers: WA :
China i 24,433,462 912,332 25,345,794 22,487,987 370,939 22,858,926
Outside China RIETE: 0N 871,766 9,216 880,982 736,285 - 736,285
Sub-total INEF 25,305,228 921,548 26,226,776 23,224,272 370,939 23,595,211
Financial service income SRR W 40,900 65,372
Property rental and other MEREREMIEH

related services IR 75 76,847 72,934
Total st 26,344,523 23,733,517
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iRe WS HRR MR

5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5.

GAINS (Continued)

REVENUE (Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in
the current reporting period that were included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised
from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

WA - B A - R FS @

WA ()
TRIIR AR E RN ERN®E VA
AHABERNATBEBYETAERNK
A

2019
RMB’'000

2018
RMB'000
ARET T

ARETR

Revenue recognised that was included RGBT AS R
in contract liabilities at the beginning of AEMNERER
the reporting period: WA :
Sale of goods HES M 1,410,214 1,120,169
Contract revenue from renovation and BERLRTIEEH
installation works A 12,373 9,091
Income from environmental engineering and I35 T2 K HiHR3
other related services AR5 2 4,240 8,896
1,426,827 1,138,156

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is

summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
goods and payment is generally due within 30 to 360 days from
delivery, except for new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required.

Renovation, installation and engineering services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days from the
date of billing. A certain percentage of payment is retained by
customers until the end of the retention period as the Group's
entitlement to the final payment is conditional on the satisfaction
of the service quality by the customers over a certain period as
stipulated in the contracts.
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REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND
GAINS (Continued)

REVENUE (Continued)

Performance obligations (Continued)

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) at
the end of reporting period are as follows:

5.

WA - HEfpUg A - Yz R R &= o)

WA ()

EHEE ()

RBEHR - 7 EEHRTENET(RED
HEDREL) X HEBOSREROT

2019
RMB’'000

2018
RMB' 000
ARETTE

ARETR

Amounts expected to be recognised T8 BR 1 R A ALY
as revenue: SR
Not more than 1 year RZHR1F 778,063 356,315
Over 1 year 15 F 704,246 368,211
1,482,309 724,526

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are expected to be recognised
over one year relate to renovation, installation and engineering
services. All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated to
the remaining performance obligations are expected to be
recognised not more than one year. The amounts disclosed
above do not include variable consideration which is constrained.

DEEFEHHN —FIALHERNBR T RS
TR ZERNTEINEE LZERTRE
Ri% - IBEREMOEESR TENEENRS
ERNSBREMBETSR —FHR - UL
BRENSHEITEREXORNATERE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B ISR TR

5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5. WA - Halr A - WHE KR = m)
GAINS (Continued)

OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND GAINS Hipg A - WHE R FH
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETT
Bank interest income HRITH WA 102,460 105,140
Interest income from other financial assets HiertEEmH S Yas 22,860 6,009
Total interest income MEW R ERE 125,320 111,149
Government grants and subsidies IR 68 Bh K% 48 A 55,928 44,628
Gain on fair value changes of investment REMENRBEZS
properties Tz 147,997 311,809
Gain on fair value changes of financial BARBEFAEENSHTIA
instruments at FVTPL AR BEZSNE 3,432 7,098
Gain on disposal of debt instruments HERAABENS ARLMEZEKE
at FVTOCI HER T ANz 7,587 -
Investment income wWE W 19,693 32,178
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKB AR ATERZE = 33,273
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets R REEEMRS AR 5,992 -
Rental income HE W= 27,468 3,115
Exchange gain & 5 F 2= 27,084 -
Others HAith 62,889 28,180
483,390 571,430
Government grants and subsidies mainly represent funding BT B e 4R B = 2R BUR B I T At X
received from government authorities to support certain of the RASEETHETHNES - WEER
Group's research and development activities. There are no ZE B R AR A B AR EK IR SR
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related to these grants W e

and subsidies.

6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BERA
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB‘000
ARMTRT ARBTE
Interest expenses on bank and other loans HRITREAM B RE A EF X 569,271 415,725
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBENFEREZ 13,773 -
583,044 415,725
Less: Interest capitalised o BEARMETE (5,850) (322)
577,194 415,403
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBADEF

A& B EIBR B RS A TS B (T A) T3
BIRBIED

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Note
Lz
Cost of inventories sold BEFEKA 18,134,201 17,177,238
Direct cost of renovation and RERTEIREEE
installation works DR 465,227 150,595
Direct cost of environmental engineering IRIE T2 M E A 4B B8 AR 1%
and other related services BER A 174,463 129,008
Direct cost of financial services ®ELARTE E B AR 685 1,265
Direct cost of property rental and WG & E A AR R AR 75
other related services HEMA 27,137 60,200
Write-down/(write-back) of inventories WORL (BERD1FE R
to net realisable value, net AR EF R 5,691 (13,238)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% « = M & EITE 12 880,279 714,784
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 13B 99,695 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments FE{ £ b 71 & k& £ 13A = 31,035
Amortisation of other intangible assets H At B2 & EE I 15(B) 16,777 12,337
Total depreciation and amortisation TEREHEE 996,751 758,156
Minimum lease payments under operating 13 MAZFEEHEH
leases in respect of land and buildings HIEHEE = 67,546
Lease payments not included in the TEBEHEABHETHN
measurement of lease liabilities MHER® 32,949 -
Auditor’s remuneration ZEA 2 9,370 7,255
Employee benefit expense (including EERNAX (RREES
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): N (FIEES)) -
Wages and salaries TERF® 1,104,192 851,692
Pension scheme contributions RIS TSR 96,284 92,403
Staff welfare and other expenses ETRAREMAT 77,950 74,225
1,278,426 1,018,320
Research and development costs [GIRLID TN 856,202 758,284
Loss on disposal of items of other HEHMEREEAM
intangible assets and property, M - B RRHEIARE
plant and equipment rE1E 14,575 40,838
Impairment of property, plant and equipment  #% - BE K& R ERE 12 9,880 2,711
Changes in fair value of KREMERREE
investment properties b2 14 (147,997) (311,809)
Gain on fair value changes of BARBE AEBERZN
financial instruments at TMIANAAEE
FVTPL HE) |z (3.432) (7,098)
Loss on fair value changes of PTHEERIARARER
derivative financial instruments 2HEE 7,768 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBATEE (R 8,324 (33,273)
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets I R EME (5,992) -
Impairment of goodwill [EESERIE 15(A) 29,100 372
Impairment of loan receivables JEUN & FORE 31,177 159,500
Impairment of contract assets BHEBERE 23 3,052 21,855
Impairment of trade and bills receivables, B 5 W RIE MR
net BB FEE 24 35,486 51,736
Impairment of prepayments TE RO E 34,330 -
Impairment of other receivables Hfth fE W BB RE 38,990 -
Foreign exchange differences, net M 2= R FER (27,084) 15,874
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B ISR TR

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8. EEFMRILEERSTMES
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
(A) DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (A) EEHMH
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to BIEE A LR BB R TG #
the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong Companies BOFRNESEHFMEIINT -

Ordinance, is as follows:

2019 2018

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARET T

Fees ke 9,027 3,105
Other emoluments: Hib B¢ -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 - 8L & B W& F 5,521 4,826

Performance related bonuses RIFEMAIEAT 4,471 5,359

Pension scheme contributions RKE 2R 170 314

10,162 10,499

19,189 13,604
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8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8. EEFMrEAEBRESHFMMES @
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) EEHM @)
The remuneration of each of the directors is set out below: BEENFTWEY T

Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
in kind bonuses contributions Total

kA £ &5 BikE
e REWERN  HBRL HEER At
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR ARNMTR AR®TR ARWT:R

Executive directors: ¥TESE
Mr. Wong Luen Hei EMELE - 1,267 493 16 1,776
Mr. Zuo Manlun it = 1,250 493 42 1,785
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping S 3 = 1,267 493 16 1,776
Mr. Lai Zhigiang BEREE 1,267 = 493 16 1,776
Mr. Kong Zhaocong FLIkEE S £ 1,267 - 493 16 1,776
Mr. Chen Guonan BRBlR & 1,267 - 493 16 1,776
Dr. Lin Shaoquan mLeEL = 1,737 34 = 1,771
Mr. Huang Guirong BEREHE 1,267 - 493 16 1,776
Mr. Luo Jianfeng ERIE Lt 1,267 = 493 16 1,776
Mr. Lin Dewei WEE L& 1,267 = 493 16 1,776
7,602 5,521 4,471 170 17,764
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors:
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho, Jonathan T B & 54 285 - - - 285
Mr. Cheung Man Yu RNFLEE 285 - - _ 285
Ms. Lan Fang Wrat 285 - - - 285
Dr. Tao Zhigang BEREt 285 - = - 285
Mr. Cheng Dickson B pe 285 - - _ 285
1,425 = = = 1,425
9,027 5,521 4,471 170 19,189
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8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8. EE¥MRAEBESFMES W)
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)
(A) DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) ESHM @
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions
=t 35 RINE
wE  REYEN MATE SRRt 1)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'00 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETE ARETE ARETE
Executive directors: BTEE:
Mr. Wong Luen Hei EMELE - 609 591 15 1,215
Mr. Zuo Manlun Tkt - 601 599 31 1,231
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping EXNLT - 609 591 15 1,215
Mr. Lai Zhigiang mERLE - 600 600 41 1,241
Mr. Kong Zhaocong KB A& - 600 600 41 1,241
Mr. Chen Guonan RREmLE 609 - 591 27 1,227
Dr. Lin Shaoquan HhrtEL - 1,207 300 17 1,524
Mr. Huang Guirong BERESE - 600 600 112 1312
Mr. Luo Jianfeng ErEers 609 - 591 15 1215
Mr. Lin Dewei WEREAN 518 - 296 - 814
1,736 4,826 5,359 314 12,235
Independent non-executive BIFHITEE :
directors:
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung? SR A 127 - - - 127
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho, Jonathan  FEIZ %4 275 - - - 275
Mr. Cheung Man Yu RXFEE 275 - - - 275
Ms. Lan Fang BruL 275 - - - 275
Dr. Tao Zhigang fEmEL 275 - - - 275
Mr. Cheng Dickson® by 142 - - - 142
1,369 - - - 1,369
3,105 4,826 5,359 314 13,604
o Re-designated as an executive director from a non-executive director [0 20187 A 11 HHEFATESEHATAH
on 11 July 2018 TE=
@ Resigned as an independent non-executive director on 11 July 2018 @ 201867 A1 BEFEBEUINTES
@ Appointed as an independent non-executive director on 11 July 2018 @ 20187 B 11 BEZERB L IFRNITE

S

154 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI¥EE@ZERER AT



8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (Continued)

No director waived or agreed to waive any emolument and
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

There were no other emoluments paid or payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year (2018:
Nil).

(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The Group's five highest paid employees during the year
were all directors. Details of the remuneration of these
directors during the year are set out in note 8(A) above.

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

EEFMEAEBRSHMES @

(A) EEFHM
MEEZNRXFAERETMAME -
MAKETE S NBAEE R
INEEAN SR RS S QBB E N R E
EXMEABE -

FAMBECNUENBILIENTES
AT E BB S (2018 4F : ) -

(B) EEBSHMES
FRAEELERSFMERSS
EF -RFARSESNTIFBEH
R ECHIFES(A) °

P x

2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETTE

AR¥T

Current tax BNHARK 18

PRC a3 857,319 719,197
Other jurisdictions Efba) AR 106 1,991
857,425 721,188
(Over)/under provision in prior years BAFECGRE) T REH
PRC i (80,312) (28,340)
Other jurisdictions Hh AR = 186 939
(80,126) (27,407)
Deferred tax EEFLIE 176,287 95,528
Total tax charge for the year FARIBE HERE 953,586 789,315

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operated.

HONG KONG PROFITS TAX

The statutory rate of Hong Kong profits tax was 16.5% (2018:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the Group
had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year
(2018: Nil).

REBEARAEBEKE RAN TR LEEH
EH R RMELE MG ENIZER
ERHRMAEH -

EBREHR
EBNEH IR EBELN GRS
MDA TR 16.5%(20184F : 16.5% )51 & -
ERAREERE R EREBEET(IER
Fom A B EHR BB RIS R B (2018
FoE) o
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

PRC CORPORATE INCOME TAX

The Group's income tax provision in respect of its operations in
China has been calculated at the applicable tax rates on the
taxable profits for both years, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Certain of the Group's PRC subsidiaries are qualified as High and
New Technology Enterprises and are entitled to a preferential
corporate income tax rate of 15% during both years.

INCOME TAX FOR OTHER JURISDICTIONS

The Group's tax provision in respect of other jurisdictions has
been calculated at the applicable tax rates in accordance with the
prevailing practices of the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the majority of
the Company'’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at

the effective tax rate is as follows:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B ISR TR

Fri8BiRE X (|

Bl {3 AT 1S B
AEEUHBREZZ BEREMNRE
% - B E S E RO PR ER B A 1R B AR A R AT
BhBERBHPTST R o

AREETHEMBARINREFTEE TR
M ERER - AIZ15%NEBLEME
T -

Htt A= EEMNFBHIER

A BB AR B OB R RO R A
£ EE SR AT AAEE R TR B0
FABEEH -

BRAARNRBIAREED KB QR PTE RDARE R A
FEBE SR AT O3 P I BR B BA M RO B IR R 32
HIRERR R EAOTIERSEERNT -

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARETT
Profit before tax B A5 AR A 3,981,921 3,235,539
Tax at the PRC corporate income tax R B ERS R 25%
rate of 25% FTEMTIE 995,480 808,885
Effect of tax concessions for certain ETHEBARMBEER
subsidiaries EpfZ (341,670) (258,153)
Share of results of associates DB E N T EE (21,642) (29,201)
Share of results of joint ventures DG EREEE (263) (154)
Income not subject to tax AR E (34,690) (27,403)
Expenses not deductible for tax RIS 130,471 83,716
Tax losses utilised from prior years EBABTFENIEREE (20,575) (17,920)
Tax losses not recognised RERRIEEE 158,426 131,082
Adjustments in respect of current tax MBEFERENEIHRIE
of prior years OESE:S (80,126) (27,401)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the AR AR BB AR
distributable profits of the Company's A 3R 8 F4% 5% #li T8
subsidiaries in PRC RFISHHNTE 168,175 125,864
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate EAEEERREAENRIEBESH 953,586 789,315
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10. DIVIDENDS

10. RE

HKS$
BT

per share

B8R

HK$'000 HKS HK$'000
THER BT BT
per share
Bk

2019 interim dividend paid 019FERTHRE
(2018: 2018 interim dividend paid) (2018% : 2018 FE MR HKRE) 012 372,290 0.10 310,242
Less: Dividends for shares held for share 35+ BtIR{D 22 Bt 215 RR 17
award scheme (note 36(B)) BB (B 58 3¢(B)) 0.12 (2,759) - -
369,531 310,242
2018 final dividend paid NI8FEERREABRE
(2018: 2017 final dividend paid) (20185 : 2017 £ IARHKRE) 0.20 620,484 0.18 558,435
Less: Dividends for shares held for B SR REDE BT R
share award scheme (note 36(B)) B8 (B3R 36(B)) 0.20 (4,598) - -
615,886 558,435
985,417 868,677
Equivalent to EER RMB866,871,000 RMB715,436,000
AK¥866,871,0007 ARET7154360007C

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final dividend of
HK28 cents in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 per
ordinary share in aggregate of HK$862,240,000 has been
declared by the Board to the owners of the Company whose
names appear on the Company'’s register of members on 2 June
2020 (2018: final dividend of HK20 cents in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2018 per ordinary share amounting to in
aggregate of HK$615,886,000). The amount of final dividend
declared for the year ended 31 December 2019 is calculated
based on the number of issued shares, less dividends for shares
held for the share award scheme, at the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements.

REmEHRE  EFSQRENEBZE2194F
12A3MBEFESRARHRESIR LB
2871l - A 51862,240,00078 JT F 1 2020 4F
6A2BBINARNTRREZMO AR RS
A(20184F : ghE £20184F 12 A31H IFF
EREBREG®KREB®AR20EBIW - &5
615,886,000 7T ) ° Bt B £ 2019912 H 31
HIFFESIRA KA B IR AR 6 B %R

RILERRADEITROEE - AR R
AHEIPTR R D BB E -
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 1. KRB HEBEAEESRER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculations of the basic and the diluted earnings per share RIBEATZBNESRERAREEAR -
are based on:

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARBTT
Earnings EZF
Profit attributable to owners of the Company st E &I E 7R [ #5% 2 8 i
used in the basic and diluted earnings AR EEE A
per share calculation JE5 % 7 3,024,701 2,491,774

Number of Shares

R EE
2019

Shares & 3
Weighted average number of ERITEALINE

ordinary shares in issue FHH 3,102,418,400  3,102,418,400
Weighted average number of shares held for  f& {5 82Bh a1 2745 B (n ke

the share award scheme FHE (21,773,540) -
Adjusted weighted average number of BT 8 SRR E R K 2 R

ordinary shares of the Company in BB ARRIE T

issue used in the basic and diluted AR SR B

earnings per share calculation S 2E 3,080,644,860  3,102,418,400
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue NEBBREE2019F K 2018FE 12 A31 B IF
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 respectively. FEHED BT ELE ST mAT o
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12. 1% - BERRHE

Furniture,
fixtures Construction
Land and Plant and and office Motor Leasehold in
buildings machinery  equipment vehicles  improvements progress
8 RER
THRET BEREE  HOERE HEMERE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT  ARETR  ARETR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2018 RA18E1A1E 4,226,528 3,944,251 244271 191491 83481 1,393,763 10,083,785
Additions RE 70,162 369,228 44922 17142 10974 593,466 1,105,894
Acquisitions of subsiclaries  WEH B AR R574 13,899 YA 482 - 160 52,690
Transfers Eob 443,101 198,904 1572 214 - (643,791) -
Disposals k= (58,852 86,543) (8533) (9.443) (669) (32,790) (196,830)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBLR - (408) (262) (565) (6,789) (1,17 9,141)
Exchange realignment & % 831 948 (50) 3% (1,233 4391 5283
At 31 December 2018 and R0BE12ANAR
1 January 2019 019F1 318 4,715,344 4,440,219 282,151 204,061 85,764 1,314,082 11,041,681
Additions AE 168,662 639,679 20,024 17429 52,541 1285733 2,184,068
Acquisitions of KENEAR
subsidiaries (note 37) (B3E37) 375,371 51,217 2140 3,081 - 6,309 928,178
Transfers B 429399 322,388 12982 3515 - (768,284) -
Disposals k= (12.339) (394,309 (11,135 (7,985) (79) (100,536) (527,096)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBLA - - (107) - - - (107)
Exchange realignment B AR 1999 1,005 509 300 944 b 4,833
At 31 December 2019 R019%12 4318 5,678,440 5,550,319 306,564 220,471 138,453 1,737,310 13,631,557
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZFHTER
and impairment: B
At 1 January 2018 RIBETIR1H (844,322) (1,761,654) (145,635) (127,383) (33,190) (15467) (2,927,651)
Provided for the year FREE (242033) (394,437) (39.228) (20233) (18,853) - (714,784)
Disposals e 13992 51,638 5653 7948 470 - 79,701
Impairment A - (3677) (241) (31 (1,580) 2818 2,711
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAA - 4 162 127 2490 - 2825
Exchange realignment R (285) (203) - (386) 518 - (296)
At 31 December 2018 and R018E12A31HR
1 January 2019 N9F171H (1.072,648) (2,108,287) (179,289 (139,958) (50,085) (12,649) (3,562.916)
Provided for the year EREE (266,647) (535,836) (35432 (23.218) (19,146) - (880,279
Disposals e 5251 197,16/ 8,290 6,943 33 - 217983
Impairment HE - 1,168 187 13 (11,242) ) (9,880)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBLR - - 3% - - - 3%
Exchange realignment [EREE (153 476) (276) (276) (499) - (1,680)
At 31 December 2019 R19E12A318 (1,334,197)  (2,446,264) (206,484) (156,496) (80,640) (12,655) (4,236,736)
Net carrying amount; REFE:
At 31 December 2019 R019E 127318 4,344,243 3,104,055 100,080 63,975 57,813 1,724,655 9,394,821
At 31 December 2018 RAIBE12A31H 3,642,696 2,331,992 102,862 64,103 35619 1301433 7478765

Included in the Group’s property, plant and equipment is a
freehold land which had a net carrying amount of RMB767,000
(2018: RMB755,000). The freehold land is situated outside Hong
Kong.

FRAREEME - BFE LRBHKAEEL
HE)BREDFHE R AR 767,000 7T (2018 4F
AR¥7550007T) © KA EELHURNE
BRI o
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13.

160

LEASES

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold
land, plants and buildings, motor vehicles and other equipment
used in its operations. For leasehold land classified as prepaid
land lease payments previously, lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire the leasehold land from the owners with lease
periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made
under the terms of these land leases. For other leased lands
classified as operating lease previously, they generally have lease
terms between 20 and 50 years. Lease of plants and buildings
generally have lease terms between 1 and 17 years, while motor
vehicles and other equipment generally have lease terms
between 1 and 3 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.
There are several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options and variable lease payments, which are
further discussed below.

A. Prepaid land lease payments (before 1 January 2019)

13. #HE

REBER/FERAA
AEBEHRAZERNEENHERELS -
WERET  REREMRENEESL -
HREMDBERBEN L EERNEERE
T ABEAANBERERRS0FH L
i DIESEER —RUENF - BEREZZ L
WHE IR - B TEETRENK - R
RO EAEEHENEBHEEL  AH
HBENF20FES0F - BWELEFHE
WEBRENF1FE17F  MTEREM
REBOEBBENT1FEIF - —RME -
REBHER G TR AR EIAINE R M EH
MERE  -ASEAENDES R LR IE
ARFAZBEENROBESLD  TXEIEE
— T e

A, FEMSLIHBEERK(2019F1 8185

2018

Note RMB'000

BtEE ARETFT

At 1 January W1A1H 1,293,369

Additions NE 99,468

Acquisitions of subsidiaries W EERT B 2 7 6,093

Provided for the year FRNREE 7 (31,035)

Exchange realignment b 5 519

At 31 December ®12H318 1,368,414

Analysed for reporting purpose as: MIREB DT A

Non-current assets JEMEBNEE 1,337,959
Current assets included in prepayments, FTATERE - e REAM

deposits and other receivables ERFIANRE B E 25 30,455

1,368,414
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13. LEASES (Continued) 13. *HE(%?)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued) AEBEREEA @

B. Right-of-use assets B. FRAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets AEEFHAEEENERMELNTR
and the movements during the year are as follows: HEBINT

Leasehold Plants and Motor Other
land*  buildings vehicles equipment Total

HERE

it BEREF AE HttRe #st
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARET:R

As at 1 January 2019 20191 A1H 1,384,033 304,179 382 492 1,689,086
Additions =Y 107,203 61,602 810 - 169,615
Acquisitions of subsidiaries  UgEEHTE A A
(note 37) (Ff5£37) - 10,238 - 14,837 25,075
Depreciation charge (note 7)  #r&Fsz (FfizE7) (33,637) (64,637) (307) (1,114) (99,695)
Termination Sl (3,224)  (169,165) - - (172,389)
Exchange realignment [E = (267) 2,914 56 - 2,703
As at 31 December 2019 R20194 124318 1,454,108 145,131 941 14,215 1,614,395
# The Group has obtained the land use right certificates for all # NEECREMAHREEE L (REE
leasehold land except for those under operating lease arrangements 7 AR ¥15,343,0007T (20185 : AR ¥
with carrying amount of RMB15,343,000 (2018: RMB15,619,000). 15,619,0007C) M 4&E & T E 2 HF T Lk

S1) B L3 FRAERE

C. Lease liabilities c. HE&E
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements HEaENEmAERRERNNESHN
during the year are as follows: N
2019
RMB’000
AR TR
As at 1 January »1A1H 368,752
Additions NE 61,911
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 37) W A A (H5E37) 24,156
Interest expenses FERZ 13,773
Payments INE:N (92,406)
Termination ik (171,174)
Exchange realignment Ve W % 1,112
As at 31 December K12HA31H 206,124
Analysed into: DA
Current portion mEE S 88,843
Non-current portion FERBEHE S 117,281
206,124
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note HEABNEHADMNEGES MR
42 to the consolidated financial statements. RUTFEA2 NI -

Annual Report 2019 G5} 161



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B ISR TR

13. LEASES (Continued) 13. HE @)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued) AEBEAEBEA (H)
D. The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to D. REZRACHEIAEEEEENESHEW
leases are as follows: T
2019
RMB’'000
AR¥T R
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets FRAEEENERY 99,695
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEABMNEMX 13,773
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets I RRAEMSHR (5,992)
Expense relating to short-term leases and FRHARE Ler THEIN 2019 F
other leases with remaining lease terms 12 A 31 B ez Al fEm e Bt
ended on or before 31 December 2019 HEMERERAX 26,230
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets KEEEEHRENEBRX 6,719
Total amount recognised in profit or loss R N TR 4B %E 140,425
E. Extension and termination options E. TEHIRALE
The Group has several lease contracts that include REEFEMB BT RKZ L ENHE
extension and termination options. These options are EER 2ERERBEEEDR
negotiated by management to provide flexibility in NELTERBHEEEEAS  UHEXR
managing the leased-asset portfolio and they are aligned SENEBRE - TXHILEES
with the Group's business needs. Set out below are the BMTE NMTERCHRAORITE BT
undiscounted potential future rental payments for extension REMEE :

options in which the Group is not reasonably certain to

exercise:

Payable Payable

within after
five years five years Total

BERBEER BAREE#
X XA st
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®T R AR¥T T AR® TR

Extension options expected TEER A& ITIEHY

not to be exercised FEHAAE 98,052 44,657 142,709
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13. LEASES (Continued)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued)

F. Variable lease payments
The Group has lease contracts for land that contain variable
payments based on the unit purchase price of rice
announced by local government. Management's objective
is to align the lease expense with the amount paid in last
time. The following provides information on the Group's
variable lease payments, including the magnitude in

relation to fixed payments:

13. HAE m@m)

REBEREBA (8

F. TW#HEEX
REBFEE R ABRBFAMHBA
R EEM A S MRt HEEAL -
EREMBEAFHERY®E XY
NWeBEREF—H - TXREFEAX
CSENEHERMNER  BERET
NEBEneEE

2019

Fixed Variable
payments payments Total
ERESEA CIE-SREN At
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥®TR AR®TR
Fixed rent Ehaizken 92,327 - 92,327
Variable rent only ERE-vitkn - 79 79
92,327 79 92,406

A 5% increase in unit purchase price of rice would increase
total lease payments by 5%.

THE GROUP AS A LESSOR

During the year, the Group leases certain commercial properties
in Asia, North America and Oceania which were classified as
investment properties. The rental income of these properties
amounted to RMB76,847,000 (2018: RMB72,934,000) were
recognised and included in “Revenue” in profit or loss. Certain
office premises, machineries and equipment were classified as
property, plant and equipment under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
RMB27,468,000 (2018: RMB3,115,000), details of which are
included in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BAKEERE LRS% S EH@EEN
5% e

AEBEAEHBEA

FR o AEBREM - AEEMBEAEMEE
FRLEAREVENTENE - FAZLY
¥EHRANAERTS B AR 76,847,000
(20184 :« AR#72,934,0007T) W st A B
B TRA] e BT AT - HeEREE R
KEHRELTHET)DBEAEME BB MEME -
ZEHENKRIREERMAEIHRES
WEEE MG T RHETHSFE - K
ESERFAERHNAERZIAARE
27,468,0007C (20184 : A K # 3,115,000
T0) 0 FHIBER R A B IS RERMIEES o
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13. LEASES (Continued) 13. HE @)
THE GROUP AS A LESSOR (Continued) RREIER HBEA ()
At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease ?{\ﬁ&%/ﬁﬁj{ ' Z]S%@?EKEHEME/@%XLEE
payments receivables by the Group in future periods under non- AR IR B TR ) EL AR P S B ) R B 5 A8 S A

T

cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB‘000
AR®T ARETFT
Not more than 1 year eSS 258,081 26,187
Over 1 year to 2 years 1A EE2F 44,852 25,705
Over 2 years to 3 years 2F A LE3F 31,643 23,029
Over 3 years to 4 years 3FAEEAF 22,671 14,495
Over 4 years to 5 years AFELPA EES5F 19,619 13,749
Over 5 years S5F LA E 69,344 38,648
446,210 141,813
The disaggregation of these office premises, machineries and SEREEAEBE TYE - BRE RREND
equipment classified as property, plant and equipment under NE -~ HE AR 2 9 R EAY B B R AR
operating leases and the reconciliation of the carrying amount at EREEREDINT

the beginning and end of the period are set out as below:

Land and Plant and
buildings machinery Total
T RIEF 5T At
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBT R ARBT T AR®T T
Cost: B
At 1 January 2019 M2019F1H1H 22,999 412,389 435,388
Additions NE - 145,393 145,393
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 12 H31H 22,999 557,782 580,781
Accumulated depreciation: RitineE .
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A1 H (5,505) (47,332) (52,837)
Provided for the year FREE (1,069) (75,313) (76,382)
At 31 December 2019 K2019F 12 H31H (6,574) (122,645) (129,219)
Net carrying amount: BRIERE :
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 12 531 H 16,425 435,137 451,562
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14. REWE

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTF

ARET R

At 1 January »1A1H 4,650,423 4,038,900
Adjustment upon application of JE B BB TSRS 2R 1657

HKFRS 16 2 T 48,080 -
At 1 January (restated) R1A1HEY) 4,698,503 4,038,900
Additions NS 1,676,170 263,984
Acquisitions of subsidiaries LS B B B A 37 196,638 -
Changes in fair value NRBEES 7 147,997 311,809
Exchange realignment RS 150,873 35,730
At 31 December W12 A31H 6,870,181 4,650,423

Further summary details of the Group’s investment properties are

set out in the section headed “Summary of Major Investment

Properties” of this report.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under

operating leases, further summary details of which are included

in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

VALUATION PROCESSES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's investment

properties were stated at fair value and were revalued by

AREBREMERBZAE — P BHEN AR
STIEBEREMEME] —F -

RELEHEHETE=ZTNREMENE
—HAREBHBENGA M IERRME 3 -

HERF
RBEHR - AEBWREMERRANEE
25 WHBILBEXENSERMGEEMENS

B BT :

independent professionally qualified valuers detailed below:

American Appraisal (Thailand) Ltd. : REIMEM 5
Sydney Metropolitan Valuations : ~ FLRMAEME

American Appraisal (Thailand) Ltd.:
Sydney Metropolitan Valuations:

For properties in Thailand
For properties in Australia

Metropolitan Valuation Services For properties in United States Metropolitan Valuation Services REEMEMS
Inc. & CBRE Valuation & Inc. & CBRE Valuation &
Advisory Services: Advisory Services
Colliers International Realty For properties in Canada Colliers Interational Realty AMEXDEME
Advisors Inc.: Advisors Inc.
ERREEMHE T T EBERAT: For properties in PRC BERERHELHTEERAR : REEMEMNS
Knight Frank Asset Appraisal Limited:  For properties in Indonesia R BENEAERRA : SEEMEMmE
Albawsala Real Estate Valuation: For properties in Dubai Albawsala Real Estate Valuation : St HWEME
Suntec Real Estate Consultants Pte Ltd: For properties in Myanmar Suntec Real Estate Consultants taaNEns

Pte Ltd :
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. REWE @)

VALUATION PROCESSES (Continued)

The valuations performed by the valuers for financial reporting
purposes were reviewed by management. Management also
discussed the valuation processes and results with the valuers.
The net fair value gains on revaluation are included in “other
revenue, income and gains” in profit or loss.

Management reviewed the valuation results by verifying all major
inputs and assumptions and assessing the reasonableness of

HERF (80)
ERERAEEHNGEMRIME2®RE NE
fhfE - BEEENGRAEMIREERFR
ER - AEENHENABEFENRIE
ABZAR [EAMEA - e R Aas] o

EEECEBREMAEIRHABELER
M AEHZEESER  AFHZERHED

such valuations.

VALUATION TECHNIQUES AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY

The following table shows the valuation techniques used by the
valuers in the determination of fair values. There were no

aEM

o

HELERDIABERE

TR

significant changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

Fair value
AREE

2019
RMB'000

ARBTR

2018
RMB’000
AREFTT

Valuation techniques

HER %

RMEEREE AR BERBANGE

5 © FRBEITNEAMEREERERES -

Unobservable inputs

TUBEEARE

Vacant lands and buildings 4,241,189 3,262,555 Direct/sales comparison Premium (discount) in

under refurbishment approach quality of land

=B REERYE B HELECR HE 4 0 SRR
BB (i)

Vacant lands 1,468,016 377,548 Residual method Gross development value
and estimated
construction cost

ZEE T FerA BEREBENEFHEERR

Building 254,070 214,875  Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate and

approach market rent

LZ/ES WHREMMEE Bt R EmiSHES

Buildings under 906,906 795,445 Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate and

refurbishment approach market rent

Kighmx W E A% Bt EmSHES

6,870,181 4,650,423

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's investment
properties were within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as their
valuations were arrived at by reference to certain significant
unobservable inputs. There were no transfers into or out of Level

3 during the year (2018: Nil).
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15. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE
ASSETS

(A) GOODWILL

(B)

15. BEREMETLEE

(A) B8

2019
RMB’'000

ARBTR

2018
RMB’000
ARHEF T

At 1 January »1H1TH 363,133 85,309
Acquisitions of subsidiaries Ug BE B B A &) 37 64,556 278,196
Impairment BB 7 (29,100) (372)
At 31 December »12A831H 398,589 363,133

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(B) HttEFEE

Operating Patent and Computer
concession proprietary software
Trademark Brand name rights  technologies and others
Gk RIHEER FARIEARN EHEBMREM
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETTT ARETTL AREFT
Cost: A
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H - 110,520 24,550 21476 68,527 231,073
Additions AE 87 57 - - 5795 5939
Acquisitions of subsidiaries IR B AR 39,560 - - 52,250 27 91,837
Disposals L& - - - = (20) (20
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - - - ) ]
Exchange realignment Ex A% - - - - 28 28
At 31 December 2018 and RO18F12A3NBR
1 January 2019 019F 1510 39,647 110,577 24,550 79,726 74,349 328,849
Additions AE 1,099 - - 291 9,336 10,726
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WENREAT
(note 37) (W3E37) 39,138 - - 4,577 3,634 84,349
Disposals e - - - - (70) (70)
Exchange realignment EH A& 1 - - - 27 28
At 31 December 2019 201912 /318 79,885 110,577 24,550 121,594 87,276 423,882
Accumulated amortisation: it
At 1 January 2018 M2018%1 818 - - - (6,431) (52,310) (58,741)
Provided for the year FEREE (1,297) () - (3,637) (7.398) (12,337)
Disposals e - - - - 5 5
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AT - - - - 7 7
Exchange realignment EH A% - - - - 4 4
At 31 December 2018 and RO18F12A3NBR
1 January 2019 0191718 (1,297) (5) - (10,068) (59,692) (71,062)
Provided for the year ERER (2.986) (10 - (6,031) (7,750) (16777)
Disposals HeE - - - - 70 70
Exchange realignment EHEE 0] - - - B 0]
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 127318 (4,284) (15) - (16,099) (67,375) (87,773)
Net carrying amount: TRERE -
At 31 December 2019 R2019FE12 4318 75,601 110,562 24,550 105,495 19,901 336,109
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H 38,350 110,572 24,550 69,658 14,657 251,187
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16.

168

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH
INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill, brand name
and operating concession rights with indefinite useful lives set
out in note 15 have been allocated to ten individual cash
generating units (“CGUs"), comprising subsidiaries engaging in
the following businesses:

. provision of environmental engineering services;

° provision of sewage treatment services;

. provision of hazardous waste treatment services;

° provision of product quality inspection and calibration
services for warranty instruments;

o manufacturing and sales of valves and automobile
accessories;

J provision of installation and engineering services;

° manufacturing and lease of aluminium framework;

° provision of e-commerce services; and

J manufacturing and sales of plastic pipes.
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16. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH
INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of goodwill, brand name and operating
concession rights at the end of the reporting period allocated to

these units are as follows:

Guangzhou EP Environmental
Engineering Ltd.* and its subsidiary

BMMERBRE TR

BRARRENMB AT

16. BEREMAERTEAFHN

B EERENR @

RBEPRRDEEZFEUNEE BRE

FratE &M REEN T

Goodwill Brand name

i 5k

RMB’000
AR®T R

RMB’000
AR®BTR

Operating
concession
rights

AT REE
RMB’000
ARET R

("GZEP") ([GZEP]) - 110,520 23,230
Foshan Shunde Huifengyuan #ILmIEERELRIRR

Environmental Management TITRERARAA

Co., Ltd.* ("Huifengyuan”) (TEZR]) 7,457 - 1,320
Hainan Baolai Industrial & Trading BEERIERRARK

Co., Ltd.* and its subsidiary (“Baolai”) HIB AR ([ ]) 39,997 = -
Jianghuai Inspection Corporation LR DES SRR

Services Co., Ltd.* REARLDE

("Jianghuai inspection”) (DIERRRL) 8,755 - -
Jiangsu Yongbao Environmental ITER K RERREHL

Technology Co., Ltd.* and its BRABRENE AR

subsidiaries ("Jiangsu Yongbao") (TERKE]D 276,098 - -
Hunan Huaging Testing Technology W EBRARIER AR

Co., Ltd.* ("Hunan Huaging”) (MHmEE] 1,726 - -
Guangdong Zhongheng Precision BERAPERETBRE

Metal Manufacture Co., Ltd.* BREAT

("Guangdong Zhongheng”) (TEZ=H1E]) 1,989 - -
Guangdong Yitong Technology ER—BRHEROBRAF

Co., Ltd.* (“Guangdong Yitong”) (TER—®&)) 7,863 - -
Guangzhou KingHing Construction BN S BEZER

Technology Ltd.* and its subsidiaries ERARIRENBAR]

(“Guangzhou KingHing") (TEM=H]) 37,292 = -
Guangdong Qicheng Information SRR 5 B

Technology Co., Ltd.* ERAE

("Guangdong Qicheng”) (ERRE]) 17,412 - -

398,589 110,520 24,550
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16. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH
INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES (Continued)

16. BEREMEERERAFEHN
B EERENR @

Operating

concession

Goodwill  Brand name rights

kS R ]

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT ARETRT

GZEP GZEP 29,100 110,520 23,230
Huifengyuan EZR 7,457 - 1,320
Baolai EK 39,997 - -
Jianghuai inspection AN o 8,755 - -
Jiangsu Yongbao TLER KR 276,098 - -
Hunan Huaging AR EES 1,726 - -
363,133 110,520 24,550

Management regarded brand name and operating concession ERER A BERAHELNEE RS
REEARERAERFEY  HRRER

A EAERARSHAFE -

rights acquired through business combinations having indefinite
useful lives because they are expected to generate net cash
inflows indefinitely.

The recoverable amounts of each CGU have been determined HeEESr AlkE B ERIELS RS
BRAEZEREEET  MRERERR
IRBEEEEEc hFMMBREA - B
hFEHzReREERA2% 2 BREHRE

MRS RETRAPTEMHRATRRIRERMT

based on value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections
which based on financial budgets approved by the management
covering a five-year period. The growth rates used to extrapolate
cash flows beyond the five-year period is 2% and the pre-tax

discount rates applied to cash flow projections are as follows:

170

Pre-tax

discount rate

BATRR IR &

GZEP GZEP 15.56%
Huifengyuan ELR 14.62%
Baolai P 12.75%
Jianghuai inspection TR A 19.15%
Jiangsu Yongbao TLERK R 13.80%
Hunan Huaging I EEE 19.42%
Guangdong Zhongheng BRHIE 15.48%
Guangdong Yitong ER—8 15.76%
Guangzhou KingHing BN = 8 16.68%
Guangdong Qicheng R R 15.55%
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16.

17.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH
INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES (Continued)

Other key assumptions for the value in use calculation relate to
the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
sales and gross margin. Such estimation is based on the units’
past performance and management'’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying
amounts of each CGU to exceed their recoverable amounts
respectively.

Based on the value in use calculation of GZEP, impairment loss
amounting to RMB29,100,000 (2018: Nil) is recognised on the
relevant goodwill in respect of the current year, which arose from
the expected decline in the demand of environmental
engineering services. Except for goodwill of GZEP, there are no
impairment of any other CGUs containing goodwill, brand name
and operating concession rights with indefinite useful lives (2018:
RMB372,000).

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

16. BEREMAERTEAFHN

B EERENR @

AEAEREENEMIRRREBREER
HEBMRENXNRSRA MEHOMEEE
B o BRAART DERERIEMABERR R
BEEHERNTISRROBEMEL - B
ERE  EAZEHRRAEHANEMNAE
BT eEYRReELENSANKRHE
BHESBMAWEESEE -

ENGZEPHEREEAE  ~NFEEME
7 7 2 SRR (B &5 18 A R % 29,100,000 7T
(20184F « &) - WIRIE TR RHG T KIEH
TPEPTE - BR GZEP IR Bl - BB A
EEmE R REAERAMERFHN
FrEt 2R @ E 4 BAORME (20184 ¢
AER#372,0007T) °

17. REFE QRIS

2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETE

AR¥FR

Share of net assets DR EEFRE 1,328,136 1,239,394
Goodwill on acquisitions WHEEANE 173,001 136,173
1,501,137 1,375,567
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

172

Particulars of the associates as at 31 December 2019 are as

follows:

Registered
capital
afEE
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited RMB3,731,000
RRRERREARRA AR3,731,0007
Foshan Hechuang Yingke Real Estate RMB180,000,000
Deyelopment Co., Ltd.¥
Bmael2HEEREERAR AR#180,000,0007
Guangdong Liancheng Lesso RMB10,000,000
Commercial Development Co., Ltd.*
BRENBHAREABRAF] AR 10,000,00070
Guangdong Lianging Environmental RMB100,000,000
Co., Ltd.*
BRBEREERAT AE#100,000,000 70

Guangdong Zlgj Information Technology RMB11,236,000

Co., Ltd.*®

EREHERERRHEBRAF0 AR 11,236,000

Shanghai Banxin loT Tech Co., Ltd.*® RMB13,173,000

LERTIBBHRARARY AR131730007C

Artaic, LLC® US$2,500,000

Artaic, LLC® 2,500,000 7T

Jiangyin Yongging Water Purifying RMB5,000,000
Agent Co., Ltd;* 0

TR ERKBEERARO AK#5,000,0007T

Jiangxi KingHing Aluminium Formwork RMB5,000,000
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.* @

TRESRERRREERARY AR 5,000,000

Guangdong Jingyu Construction RMB10,000,000
Technology Co., Ltd.* @

BEREFREMRARAR? AR 10,000,00070

Guangzhou Huicheng Information RMB3,000,000
Technology Co., Ltd* @ ,

BMmERESRMBRAR? AE¥3,000,0007C

Place of
incorporation/

registration
and business
MY,/
SR EE

Cayman Islands
RERHS

PRC

HE

PRC

HE

PRC

FE
PRC

ok
PRC
oL
USA
20
PRC
oL
PRC
ok
PRC
o
PRC

RE

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI¥EE@ZERER AT

17. REEE N TIERE (@)

Ownership
interest

38
40
40

35

35

20
20
20
20
20
20
49

49

R2019F 12 A31 8 @ BEE A RIMFBOT ¢

Percentage of

FrEE DL
Voting
power

RERE
26
26
38
38
40
40

35

35

20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
49

49

Profit
sharing

b
2

26
38
38
40
40

29

29

20
20
20
20
20
20
49

49

Principal
activity

TEXK

Manufacture and sale
of aluminium profiles

BUERRERUN

Property development
NEER
Property management
nEEE

Provision of
environmental
consulting services

RRERIA R AR

Provision of household
decoration and design
services

BRAR K B 5 S kAT ARTS

Provision of loT solution
services

FEGCB R R T RIRAS

Manufacture and sale of
mosaic tiles

RENHERERLER

Manufacture and sale of
chemical products

RERHENIER

Manufacture and sale of
aluminium formwork

BUERHERERR

Manufacture and sale of
building formwork

BUERHERERR

Provision of e-commerce
services

REEBRSE



17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Note:

m During current year, the Group acquired 20% equity interest of Jiangyin
Yongging Water Purifying Agent Co., Ltd. from independent third parties at
total consideration of RMB2,160,000.

@ During the current year, the Group acquired these associates through
business combinations. Further details are disclosed in note 37 to the

consolidated financial statements.

@ It is considered that the Group has significant influence over these
companies because the Group has a director in the board of directors of

these companies.

Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (“Xingfa Aluminium”) and
Foshan Hechuang Yingke Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
("Hechuang Yingke"), which are considered material associates
of the Group, are engaged in the manufacture and sale of
aluminium profiles and property development, respectively, and
are accounted for using the equity method.

17. REEE N TR (@)

Wi

o RAFER  AERERBLE=7FREIRTK
BFKEBR AR 20%HHE - ARERARKE
2,160,000 7T ©

@ RAFER  AEBEFEBEBATUELEHE
N7 - B BERERGA M BMKRMEEIT -

@ FEERZURREEGHE —REE HEAE
ERA/AEEHZATREEERTES -

BRI AR AR ([ F &R |) Kb
maRIBMEEREERAR ([GAIAR])
BHRGESARENEABERR  HRlESE
SUERHERIUM UMY RBERER - R
AN ©
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17. REEE QAR RER (@)

BERERBE QTN HRERROPEERE
Z(ZFEMER ST BRNTMEREFD
AEYRGEEMBREROEDELETHR)

Summarised financial information of the material associates,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and

reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial

statements at the end of the reporting period are as follows: wmr
Xingfa Hechuang
Aluminium Yingke
WEE R ERIAER
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
Current assets mENE E 3,215,983 670,555
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill SERBEE (TEE/E) 5,714,127 653,600
Goodwill on acquisition of the associates WHEEE &S AR EE R 124,590 48,411
Current liabilities =Y (4,581,674) (231,002)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (560,978) (340,769)
Net assets BEFE 3,912,048 800,795
Net assets, excluding goodwill BEFB(TRERE) 3,787,458 752,384
Reconciliation to the Group's interests in EAREE NI E N T ER
the associates: HVEIER
Proportion to the Group’s ownership BT NE B BT A L 26.28% 38%
Group's share of net assets of the associate, ~AEBH(HEE R RIMNEE
excluding goodwill FHE(TEERE) 995,344 285,906
Goodwill on acquisitions WHRE AR E 124,590 48,411
Carrying amount of the investments WERHEE 1,119,934 334,317
Revenue WA 11,280,848 117,701
Profit/(loss) for the year FRpEH(E18) 542,305 (92,536)
Other comprehensive expense Hit2mHX (744) -
Total comprehensive income/(expense) FRZERE(FX)
for the year 48z 541,561 (92,536)
Fair value of the Group's investments REBERERAEE 808,807 N/A A~ A

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information

TREIAKEHIBHEAB LD A0
BITAK

of the Group's associates that are not individually material:

2019 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFT
Share of the associates: DIEEE AT

Loss for the year FEEE (1,459) (7,315)
Other comprehensive income Hib 2 EIE = -
Total comprehensive expense PHEMAXERE (1,459) (7,315)

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s ~ NEBIRERE L QA FIH
investments in the associates HAREE 46,886 41,543
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18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. REETXENER

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Share of net assets DIEEETRE 10,356 9,303
Particulars of the joint venture are as follows: SELENFEOT

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ frEEa

Registered registration Ownership  Voting Profit
capital  and business interest power  sharing  Principal activity

B3
AfMEAR EMREXLY FEEEs REE EOHER FEEH
Guangdong Lesso EPCO Residential RMB10,000,000 PRC 50 50 50  Provision of household
Equipment Design Services Co., Ltd.* decoration design work

and maintenance

services
EREEVEREERERTRE  ARK10,0000007 hE 50 50 50 RUERERMRE
BRAF B R
The following table illustrates the information of the Group's TREJAEERSERENERNER

interests in joint ventures:

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

Share of the joint ventures: DIEEERE
Profit from continuing operations FIE A EE T ) 1,053 616
Other comprehensive income Hi2mEikzs _ _
Total comprehensive income PERRERE 1,053 616

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REBEREREEDLEN
investments in the joint ventures #IREE 10,356 9,303
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19.

176

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

19. HttEMEE

2019 2018
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
B s ARET R ARETTT
Non-current ERE
Debt instruments at BRARBEFAEMEE
FVTOCI: WamEBIA : (i)
Debt securities listed in Hong Kong RBEBLEMERE 46,923 50,376
Debt securities listed in PRC AP FTHERES 509,647 204,723
556,570 255,099
Equity instruments at BARBEFALBEE
FVTOCI: WamiRATA -
Equity securities listed in PRC R E FHRAE 231,536 247,573
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB ETRAE 394,811 482,293
Non-cumulative redeemable preference  W&E# FHhIER 0] #E
shares listed in Hong Kong EEED - 34,474
Perpetual capital securities listed in MBS LTKAER
Hong Kong ECE 8,780 8,391
Unlisted equity securities JEFETHRRAE 501,153 770,795
1,136,280 1,543,526

Equity instruments at FVTPL: BARBEFABSHRATIA : (ii)

Unlisted equity securities JE TR AE S 56,344 53,886

Funds at FVTPL: BRANBEFABRNES

Stock funds RS 21,926 -
78,270 53,886
1,771,120 1,852,511
Current b
Debt instruments at BRARBEFTAEMEE
FVTOCI: Wﬁ%%%lﬂr (i)
Debt securities listed in Hong Kong REB EMERE 8,363 -

Debt instruments at FVTPL BARBEFABENESLIA - 47,649

8,363 47,649
1,779,483 1,900,160

Note: M -

(i) The debt securities carry fixed interest at rates ranging from 5.65% to 8.40% @) %f%%é‘#ﬁ'\]ﬂ%}fzEE%'{$§I%&365%§$£0%
(2018: 5.65% to 8.40%) per annum, payable semi-annually or annually in (2018 :\ 5.65%E840%) 5t H - B FREF
arrears and will mature from January 2020 to January 2023 (2018: January S R 72202041 A 2202351 HEIHA(2018%
2020 to January 2023). 20205 1 420235 1 4) -

(ii) The equity securities contained a puttable option were classified as equity (i) ARBRAR F{Ef)&$§ﬁnmh$lﬁrﬂh$
instruments at FVTPL. HeE— EREHE -

(iii) At the end of the reporting period, no other financial assets were pledged. (i) RIREEA - WA S RAEREKIR - 722018

At 31 December 2018, certain of the Group's other financial assets with an
aggregate net carrying amount of RMB34,474,000 were pledged to a bank to
secure the banking facility granted and the Group has not utilised this
banking facility.
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20. LOAN RECEIVABLES 20. FEWER

2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%ET T ARET T
Non-current FERE
Finance lease receivables BhE & R e U GRIE 11,613 163,422
Current B
Finance lease receivables BB E AR R U R IE 165,339 100,421
Factoring receivables IRIB AR FE W s0E 260,491 334,379
Receivables from supply-chain fH e G Rl & AR 7% FE UK
financing services FIE 129,520 80,170
555,350 514,970
Less: Provision for impairment R E R (190,677) (159,500)
364,673 355,470
376,286 518,892
(A) FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (A) BEHERBEVRRE

Minimum lease Present value of minimum

receivables lease receivables

REEERBEEZRE BEAERFERRERRE

2019 2018 2019 2018
RMB'000  RMB'0O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AREBTT ARBTR ARETET

Not more than 1 year NZR1E 191,748 116,208 165,339 100,421
Over 1 year but within 5 years 19 LA_E5F R 14,131 182,104 11,613 163,422
205,879 298,312 176,952 263,843

Less: Unearned finance B REHBME

income & (28,927) (34,469)
Present value of minimum KA E R ER

lease receivables FUERE 176,952 263,843
The Group's finance lease receivables are denominated in NEE B A R A A B AR 7S E MORIE A A
Renminbi. The effective interest rates of the receivables REA{E - ZEWRENET R EMNE
ranged from 5.89% to 13.19% (2018: 5.89% to 12.70%) per 7> F5.89% ZF 13.19% (2018 F : 5.89%
annum. There are no unguaranteed residual values of assets £1270%) - BB EHEEEDN
leased under finance leases and no contingent rent RERFIHEEB  TEREMETER
arrangements that needed to be recognised (2018: Nil). RS ATEEZHE(20184F « £8) o

Annual Report 2019 43R 177



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
SNy

SRR MR

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

178

(A) FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(B)

The following is a credit quality analysis of these finance
lease receivables:

20. EUYRERR @)

(A)

b & A AR A PR WRROR ()
AT RBEHEEREEEFENEER
HED

2019
RMB'000

2018
RMB’000
ARHF T

ARBTR

Not past due K360 A 21,731 263,843
Overdue B8 155,221 -
176,952 263,843

The receivables are secured by assets leased under finance
leases and cash deposits (where applicable).

Cash deposits from finance lease customers are collected
upfront based on certain percentage of the entire value of
the lease contracts. When the lease contracts expire and all
related liabilities and obligations are fulfilled by the
customers, the cash deposit will be returned in full. The
balance of the cash deposit can also be used to settle any
outstanding lease receivables for the corresponding lease
contract. The collected cash deposits of RMB21,310,000
(2018: RMB25,613,000) have been included in "“other long-
term payables” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

At the end of the reporting period, RMB31,177,000 of the
Group's finance lease receivables was impaired (2018: Nil).

FACTORING RECEIVABLES

The Group's factoring receivables arise from the provision
of factoring services to companies located in PRC. The
credit period granted to each customer is generally within
365 days.

Factoring receivables are secured by receivables and/or
commercial bills originally owned by the customers. These
receivables carry interest at rates ranging from 4.00% to
7.20% (2018: 4.00% to 6.50%) per annum.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI¥EE@ZERER AT

(B)

ZEBFEAREHEEERRS R
T (WER) 1EAER -

MEMERBEFPHESZEDHENE
ERNEHEBEENETESLELK
B REERNERARTFREITH
BEHEBREEREREK  ZREBEH
EEHRE HEeRSERTAIAR
FEEARETEE A KRR M R WX
HERBEEFE - SREINRE R
& AR#21,310,0007T (20184F « AR
# 25,613,000 7T) B & AR & B AR
= [ERENFTE] A -

NG AR - AR31,177,000 7T 8
AREENREHE RS EEFIED R
B (20184 : &) o

R 32 AR 7% M W R TR

R E5 [ B (R 22 BR 75 FE M SRR 2R B [ R
BARRERERE ETEEFPH
ERMR—RR365KA -

REREEWFBARKRHESHEA
) FE U R IE ok ) R E IR IR o 32
Z e IR N F-4.00% E 7.20% (2018
F 1 4.00% 2 6.50%) FFFIERE -



20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(B)

(C)

FACTORING RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The maturity profile of the factoring receivables at the end
of the reporting period is as follows:

20. FEYE R ()

(B)

R 12 AR 75 FE WORR TH ()
REREBIR - ARIE AR TS FE W IR RO B
HIERWT

2019
RMB’'000

2018
RMB’000
ARHEF T

ARBTR

With a residual maturity of: = AR EARR -
Not more than 3 months TR 31E A 15,778 65,079
Over 3 months to 6 months AN E=6EA 46,713 109,800
Over 6 months to 12 months 6MEA EZ= 1218 A 38,500 -
Overdue £ %61 Hf 159,500 159,500
260,491 334,379

At the end of the reporting period, RMB159,500,000 of the
Group's factoring receivables was impaired (2018:
RMB159,500,000).

RECEIVABLES FROM SUPPLY-CHAIN
FINANCING SERVICES

The Group's receivables from supply-chain financing
services arise from the provision of supply-chain financing
services to companies located in PRC. The credit period for
each customer is generally within 365 days.

These receivables carry interest at rates ranging from 4.75%
to 10.80% per annum (2018: 5.40% to 10.80%).

Certain receivables from supply-chain financing services,
amounting to RMB129,520,000 (2018: RMB80,170,000) are
secured by certain interests of companies and personal
guarantees.

(€

REEHIR - AR 159,500,000 7T HY
7N £ B /Y AR B R 7S E Uk FR B 2R E
(20184 : A% 159,500,0007T) °

1 FE S 0 8 IR %5 B WL RROR

7R ER [ E £ FE 22 B0 A AR A% PR R IR 2R
AT EARREHEEERE RS -
BEEPOERHR—ARB35KRA

2L IR IEL T T 4.75% 2 10.80%
B F) (2018 4F : 5.40% & 10.80%)
ite e

A

T e R E RKE W RIE
A R #129,520,0007T (2018 4F © A R
#80,170,000 7T ) AR T A &) # z M &
ANEREER -
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20.

21.

180

LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. EUYRERR @)

(C) RECEIVABLES FROM SUPPLY-CHAIN
FINANCING SERVICES (Continued)

The maturity profile of the receivables from supply-chain
financing services at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

(C) HrEdEm & AR WA (8

RS R - (R B kA% 18 WOk
HEOEEERAT

2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T

With a residual maturity of: i) B BAPR
Not more than 3 months TN 31E A 79,478 57,050
Over 3 months to 6 months 3MEALA EZ6EA 32,390 19,900
Over 6 months to 12 months AR EE121EA 17,652 3,220
129,520 80,170

At the end of the reporting period, none of the Group's
receivables from supply-chain financing services was either
past due or impaired (2018: Nil).

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering the probability of default of those companies with
financial conditions, historical loss experience, coverage by
letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance. At the end of
the reporting period, the loss given default for the remaining
balance of loan receivables was not material and has no impact

on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

RBEHR - AEENHEERER
75 1) FE U5 3R 1R B 4 38 A =XORi 18 (2018
FE)

FERMGNOR - BEREELR  EREHE
AN ERRREB&SARREQIR
o REREAHPETREIN - RHFEH
R BINEEEFTEZEONBRLTIER M
HAKENGEEMHERRLELE

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 21. b RBEE
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREBTT
Other long-term receivables H b R HAE IR 4,093 5,804
Value-added tax recoverable RN B 38,323 -
Prepayment for acquisition of a subsidiary TE TS —FEI P B & R SRIE - 354,293
Prepayment for acquisition of AU B S A
non-controlling interests S 23,868 -
Prepayment for acquisition of TR R AR A
equity investment wE 4,500 -
70,784 360,097
China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI¥EE@ZERER AT



22. INVENTORIES 22. FE

2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%ET T ARET T
Manufacturing and trading LENESH 3,660,365 3,271,853
Property development g5 305,683 249,361
3,966,048 3,521,214
(A) MANUFACTURING AND TRADING (A) HERES
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%ET ARET T
Raw materials R 1,332,697 1,401,893
Work in progress TEER 351,332 327,273
Finished goods EE AR T 1,976,336 1,542,687
3,660,365 3,271,853
(B) PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (B) MIXBRE
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T
Property under development BRAYE 305,683 249,361
The property under development is expected to be ZERPYEBANBRERAREZR
completed in more than twelve months after the end of the + @A -

reporting period.
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23.

182

CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES

23. ENEE EWERE

2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARET T

ARBT R

Contract assets EHEE
Non-current: JERED -
Concession operating right TR AR 81,571 84,651
Current: Ep
Renovation and installation works HERTETRE 201,485 258,812
Environmental engineering services IRIE T RRRTS 78,660 86,440
Concession operating right TR AR 3,882 3,882
284,027 349,134
Less: Impairment o RE (4,584) (21,855)
279,443 327,279
361,014 411,930
Contract liabilities EHEaE
Current: AEp
Renovation and installation works HERTETR 112,517 50,094
Environmental engineering services IRIE T RRRTS 7,832 22,686
Advances from customers BRI 1,604,951 1,410,214
1,725,300 1,482,994

The Group’s contract assets represent the Group's rights to
consideration for work completed but not yet billed to customers
at the end of the reporting period. The contract assets will be
transferred to trade and bills receivables when the rights become
unconditional, that is, when the Group issue progress billings to
customers based on the certified amount agreed with customers.

At the end of the reporting period, RMB4,584,000 (2018:
RMB21,855,000) was recognised as an allowance for expected
credit losses on contract assets. The Group's trading terms and
credit policy with customers are disclosed in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group's contract liabilities represent the Group's obligations
to transfer goods or services to customers for which the Group
has received consideration, or for which an amount of
consideration is due from the customers.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI¥EE@ZERER AT
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23. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(Continued)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets

at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

23. BHEE SHEBWm)

RIFEHR - WRISKEES N EERNTETRF
AT

2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFT
Not more than 1 year ML F 279,443 327,279
Over 1 year 19 E 81,571 84,651
361,014 411,930

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract BREERENEEREZHNT :

assets are as follows:

2019 2018
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFTT

it ARBT R

At 1 January »1A1H 21,855 -
Impairment losses recognised [y REY S| 7 3,052 21,855
Amounts written off as uncollectible WiE AW E RS RE (20,323) -
At 31 December W12 A31H 4,584 21,855

For the contract assets arising from renovation and installation
works and environmental engineering services, an impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision
matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates for
the measurement of the expected credit losses of the contract
assets are based on those of the trade and bills receivables as the
contract assets and the trade and bills receivables are from the
same customer bases. The provision rates of contract assets are
based on the invoice date of trade and bills receivables for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns
(i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer type and
rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit
insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

REERLZETRASLIRBTIRRBAELS
MEMEEMS  AREREHRE AHER
BRBREEETREIMAGFERRERR
1B ERNEENAMEREEENRER
TiRE SR FIELRENAMEEEEE
E o THRANEENE SRINFENRREE
KER—EXPER SNEENBRERH

BUERRANERKE S FTENEED
BEPDBAER (B - EmER 7P
BIVRFR - AREREREMEANER
R WEZAHEE - Rt ERRAAEX
IMENER - EWREEN RN RS B HA
ESERBEEMN  RARRRLBEMR NI
B R IESFFER -
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23. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23. BHEBE SHNEE®Wm

(Continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure UTHINBEAAEEEAREERAENS
on the Group's contract assets using a provision matrix: WEENEERBRER
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETFT
Expected credit loss rate TEEEEBEX 1.64% 6.33%
Gross carrying amount BRMEAAE 280,145 345,252
Expected credit losses TBEMEEEE 4,584 21,855
For the contract assets arising from concession operating right, M EEHMEENEGHNEEMS - &1
since the party to concession agreements are local government Frarihan AP BT BT#E - NEER
authorities in PRC, the Group considers the credit risk is low as at BRREBANEERB AR - AEEWHE
the end of the reporting period. The Group does not hold any BRI A EAEFD -
collateral over the balance.
24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 24. EZRUARERRE
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB‘000
ARBT T ARETT
Trade receivables B 5 e EE 2,734,678 2,036,323
Bills receivable U= 762,004 537,617
Less: Provision for impairment W R E R (237,226) (194,493)
3,259,456 2,379,447
The Group's major customers are independent distributors, civil AEEMNEFERFATRBEMNE Y DHEE - =
contractors, property developers, utility companies and ARIEFRER  EHERSER  2HFEERQ
municipalities in China. Depending on the market condition, BN THIEERPY « REBR TN « M5 R
marketing tactics and relationships with the customers, the NMEREMEER  AEERBT oEENE
Group's trading terms with its independent distributors may SR ARIREN AT EEET N AT —
change from settlement on an advance receipt basis to giving a EA%ZEANERAER(IEE) - AEE
credit period of generally one month or more, if appropriate. The WHES—RFEDHEEEFE TIZER(Z A
Group does not have a standardised and universal credit period fR o ERIFED EEE P 8= BEE R @R
granted to the non-distributor customers. The credit period of an ERME  WAEHEALTYRE(EE) -
individual non-distributor customer is considered on a case-by- HNRE - SR PAEE —RIEEA
case basis and is set out in the sales contracts, as appropriate. EMNARBRCERCHANGEE - KEET
Sales to small, new, or short-term customers are normally mAa/ NEE - e EE PR ZHERE -

expected to be settled on an advance receipt basis or shortly
after the goods delivery. No credit term period is set by the
Group for small, new and short-term customers.
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables are unsecured and interest-free.

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade and bills receivables at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and

net of loss allowance, is as follows:

24.

BESRWFEREZRE @
B 5 ENRIEREES AEEERE S -
R AR - ANEEHE 5B IE R E

REZ BTN EEEEZNRER TN
T

2019 2018

RMB’'000 RMB‘000

AR®T ARETIT

Not more than 3 months TZ R 3EA 1,385,281 1,326,856
Over 3 months to 6 months 3MEALA EZ6{EA 523,083 339,304
Over 6 months to 12 months AR EE121EA 916,406 347,898
Over 1 year to 2 years 1FNEZE2F 351,848 314,239
Over 2 years to 3 years 2FNEEIF 71,784 42,684
Over 3 years 3FME 11,054 8,466
3,259,456 2,379,447

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of the
Group's trade and bills receivables are as follows:

ALREE S RUTIA R R E N R R
ZET

2019
RMB’000
ARBT R

2018
RMB'000
ARETTE

Note

B &E

At 1 January R1A1TH 194,493 145,061
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WS E A 7 14,416 -
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 7 35,486 51,736
Amounts written off as uncollectible WA T lkEfE5E (7,169) (2,304)
At 31 December 12 8318 237,226 194,493

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on the invoice date for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region, product type, customer type and rating,
and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit
insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

AEBNEHE B RERBEEREETRE
DA EEMERRERE - BEXAARU
EEEANZTEP D RAR (Bl - &
miAE - BRPRARE - URERBERHE
AN ERRRE) WERAHREE - &aT
BERBRIRENMENGER  EREEAR
RfE AR ESARBESEMH - RREK
REEHERR TR S IR S HFEHY
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24. EFEWRERERE #)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure T &y ERAAEB(FREERETENE
on the Group's trade and bills receivables using a provision SEWFENEZEENEERBRER
matrix:

2019
Within 1to 2 to Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total

1R 1825 2Z3F 3FLE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR¥Tr AR TR AR¥ TR AR¥TR

Expected credit loss rate TEEEEEEX 0.79% 6.21% 20.07% 94.01% 6.78%
Gross carrying amount REEE 2,847,360 375,125 89,806 184,391 3,496,682
Expected credit losses TEEEEEE (22,590) (23,277) (18,022) (173,337) (237,226)

2,824,770 351,848 71,784 11,054 3,259,456

2018
Within 1to 2to Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total

15 R 1824 2E 34 IFEL “ast
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETIT ARETIT AREBTT AREBTT ARBTIT

Expected credit loss rate TEEIEEBEX 0.67% 7.62% 19.67% 94.46% 7.56%
Gross carrying amount RHEBE 2,027,713 340,168 53,135 152,924 2,573,940
Expected credit losses JEEEEEE (13,655) (25,929) (10,451)  (144,458)  (194,493)

2,014,058 314,239 42,684 8,466 2,379,447
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25.

26.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. R - #e R HAEWFIE
RECEIVABLES
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Prepayments SEENEN 1,561,497 1,057,008
Current portion of prepaid land lease TEN M E KA
payments (note) 2B (F3E) = 30,455
Value-added tax recoverable FEAEER 477,717 332,344
Corporate income tax recoverable B RSN 8,556 1,188
Deposits %24 105,707 85,743
Other receivables H i fE W TR 83,824 138,267
Loan receivables from third parties KEE=FER 100,177 170,500
2,337,478 1,815,505
Less: Provision for impairment R ORERE (88,348) (15,028)
2,249,130 1,800,477

The financial assets included in the above balances are
unsecured, interest-free and receivable on demand.

Note:

Upon application of HKFRS 16, current portion of prepaid land lease payments was

reclassified to right-of-use assets.

CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

26.

FAALEHRNSREEDBER 8K
BRI -

GG

RIERBEHBMERFE 165K - AN LHBEERD
BB ENEEREREEE -

RERRITEM

2018
RMB’000
AREF T

2019
RMB’ 000

AR®T T

Restricted cash: XRFIFEE
Guarantee deposits for banking facilities ERIRITTRENERES 1,241,777 1,057,955
Cash and cash equivalents: ReMREEFEY -
Time deposits with original maturity of TE BT 0 (R EE RS R G BARR
three months or less when acquired A=Az LAT) 454,916 8,440
Cash and bank balances IR NIRTTAER 5,907,528 5,385,396
6,362,444 5,393,836
Cash and bank deposits RE NMIBTER 7,604,221 6,451,791

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying
periods between one day and twelve months and earn interest at
the respective short-term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and restricted cash are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.

FHRRITHRSRE BRITERNENF
B R BRIV B - EHE B BIR T
—RE+ZEA T FA IR E LT BF A
RERIA B - RITAEBRRZRARSFHRN
ITHRIE R0 ER A58 RAFROIRTT »
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27. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

27. ESZREARERRE

2019
RMB’000

2018
RMB'000
ARBTFT

ARBT R

Trade payables B SRR 1,276,393 889,123

Bills payable FENEiE 4,553,141 3,388,200
5,829,534 4,277,323

The trade payables are interest-free and are normally settled on BORNFIBIRE  #EARBERIE

terms of 30 to 90 days.

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables at the

end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

90K e
RB|EHRR - AEEN B HENFTALRE
HRZAHMREONIT

2019
RMB’'000

2018
RMB’000
ARBTF

ARET R

Not more than 3 months TR 31E A 3,467,192 2,568,152
Over 3 months to 6 months 3MEALA EZ6EA 2,032,336 1,527,285
Over 6 months to 12 months AR EE121EA 255,306 132,857
Over 1 year to 2 years 1FAEE2F 36,791 13,300
Over 2 years to 3 years 2FNEE3F 10,498 11,287
Over 3 years 3FE 27,411 24,442

5,829,534 4,277,323

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

28. HttEARERETEH

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Accruals FEETE 171,923 75,422
Salaries and welfare payables B e MAER 191,177 118,856
Other payables EH e FRIE 818,692 733,204
1,181,792 927,482

The financial liabilities included in the above balances are

interest-free and repayable on demand.
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29. BORROWINGS

29. &

2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB‘000
ARBT T ARETT
Current RE
Unsecured bank loans EEPIRITER 5,841,586 5,800,738
Current portion of long-term unsecured REEEMRIRITERD
bank loans mE B 104,575 340,568
Current portion of long-term unsecured REEEMIRE SR
syndicated bank loans mEER S 5,381,133 -
Current portion of long-term secured REBFEMRITERD
bank loans MENEE D 15,605 3,186
Current portion of long-term unsecured REIERIEAE M E KA
other loans mENE S 28,330 -
Secured bank loans BEARITERK 40,090 -
11,411,319 6,144,492
Non-current FERE
Unsecured bank loans EEPIRITER 1,045,107 280,845
Unsecured syndicated loans EARIRREE R - 5,246,043
Unsecured other loans EEAEMER 28,330 -
Secured bank loans BIERIBRITER 193,624 59,678
1,267,061 5,586,566
12,678,380 11,731,058
Analysed into borrowings repayable: AREEBEEN
Within one year or on demand —F IR E K 11,411,319 6,144,492
In the second year E-FER 757,069 5,355,245
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE=FZFERFEN(RREEEMEF) 486,490 201,462
More than five years ZHRAF 23,502 29,859
12,678,380 11,731,058
Note: MsE -
(a) The effective interest rates of the Group's borrowings range from 2.38% to (a) REBERNEREFNENF2.38% £ 7.60% T
7.60% (2018: 3.22% to 5.39%) per annum. % (20184 : 3.22% £ 5.39%) °
(b) At the end of the reporting period, the secured bank loans were secured by (b) RIREIR - BEMRITERDA—FHME AR
the investment property of a subsidiary, time deposit of a subsidiary, loan WIREYE —HNBEARERFR - —HEM
receivables of a subsidiary, concession rights of a subsidiary and personal BARMEKER - —HEHBRROEFTE SR
guarantee provided by a shareholder of that subsidiary. RE—ARROEAERELER -
At 31 December 2018, the secured bank loans were secured by the M2018F 12 A31H » BEMRTERIIA—M
concession rights of a subsidiary and personal guarantee provided by a MEBA RN EERRE —BRRNEAER
shareholder of that subsidiary. VR -
(c) At the end of the reporting period, the Group's borrowings are denominated (c) R|ERR KEEUET B ARK-

in US dollar, HK dollar, Renminbi, Australian dollar and Canadian dollar are
equivalent to RMB6,460,926,000 (2018: RMB6,466,723,000),
RMB2,788,805,000 (2018: RMB2,477,101,000), RMB2,793,140,000 (2018:
RMB2,251,568,000), RMB481,169,000 (2018: RMB364,372,000), and
RMB 154,340,000 (2018: RMB171,294,000) respectively.

BITRMTAENERDBSERARYE
6,460,926,000 7T (2018 F : A R ¥ 6,466,723,000
7o)~ AR #2,788,8050007C (20184 : A R
2,477,101,0007T) ~ A ¥ 2,793,140,000 7T, (2018
&+ ARM2,251,568,0007T) + AR 481,169,000
7L (20184 © A R #364,372,0007C ) & A R #
154,340,000 7T.(20184F = AFR#5171,294,0007T) °
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30. CONVERTIBLE LOANS 30. AR ERK
At the end of the reporting period, the convertible loans were RIRERR - AR ERERABES S X
recognised as a debt component and equity component as EzmED - AR
follows:

Equity

component component Total

BEE®D EEHD st

RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T

At the date of issue REEITHH 640,113 27,605 667,718

Interest expenses FEFRX 22,655 - 22,655
Increase in interest payable JEASF) B EE N (10,728) - (10,728)
Interest paid EAFE (6,297) - (6,297)

Exchange realignment PE 5 6,852 - 6,852

652,595 27,605 680,200

Note: MisE

(a) On 6 May 2019, the Group’s wholly owned subsidiary entered into a (a) R2019F5 860 AEENEEMBRARET
convertible loan facilities agreement with ICBC International Investment REREEEEBRARR L ARBERBE R
Management Limited in the aggregate principal amount of US$100,000,000 % A€ 4% /100,000,000 T (HHEROAR
(approximately equivalent to RMB684,025,000) (the “Convertible Loans”). #3684 025,0007T) ([ATRREK]) - ZZE TR
The Convertible Loans bear interest at the rate of 3.4% plus LIBOR per B RIR A B K 3.4% IR BRTT R IR & R R 5t
annum. The Group drew down US$60,000,000 (approximately equivalent to oo 201945 22 H » 7 5 [E 42 HX 60,000,000
RMB410,415,000) on 22 May 2019 and US$40,000,000 (approximately £ (BB R A RIE410,4150007T) - 37 2019
equivalent to RMB279,489,000) on 29 November 2019. The maturity date is F11 A 29 B $2E140,000,000E L (HHERODAR
21 May 2022 and 28 November 2022, respectively. #279,489,0007T) © B HA B 9 5l /&2022F 5 A 21

H 202211 H28 1 »

(b)  The convertible loans contain two components, a debt and equity b) FIHEREXEEEHERERIMERS - WERS
components. The initial fair value of the two components was determined E’]%ﬂ AR EETRENRME fﬂlgﬁ%%ﬁ@g
based on gross proceeds at drawdown. The initial fair value less allocated c BEHED 2N DA BEME DR HHA
transaction costs of the debt component were estimated to be i‘«%}‘%—ﬁﬁ'ﬂxjﬁ HE IR #&f‘ﬂ#@  REEELA
US$55,799,000 (approximately equivalent to RMB381,681,000) and PRESFRETERA R A R EERE
US$36,982,000 (approximately equivalent to RMB258,432,000) as at the flt & /55799,000% T(H & R AR %
drawdown date of using the Monte Carlo Model and Binomial Option 381,681,0007T) % 36,982,0005 7T (IHE R LI AR
Pricing Model, taking into account the terms and conditions of the ¥ 258,432,0007T) - M AR B - BB ORKA
convertible loans. In subsequent periods, the debt component is measured BERMEEIRBHENANE - BEHHBONERSF
at amortised cost using effective interest rate method. The effective interest FERT7.70%  8R T FERE DB F KA (R
rate of the debt component is 7.70% per annum. The residual amount less =EEBDAV(E(E) /34,001,000 K7 (HHERHIARE
allocated transaction costs representing the value of the equity component 27,605,0007C) 5t A AT AR B F g e A o

of US$4,001,000(approximately equivalent to RMB27,605,000), is included in

convertible loans equity reserve.
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31. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

CPTEERTIA

2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETTE

ARBT R

Put option RH B

14,360 6,592

The Group's derivative financial instruments are managed and
the performances are evaluated on fair value basis. Any changes
in fair value was recognised in profit or loss.

The fair value of the put option has been estimated using
valuation technique with unobservable inputs. Management has
reviewed the valuation result by verifying all major inputs and
assumptions as well as assessing the reasonableness of such
valuation.

The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement to
acquire 70% equity interest in Jiangsu Yongbao during 2018.
Pursuant to the agreement, the minority shareholder has the right
to sell the remaining 30% equity interest to the Group after three
years from the date of acquisition.

AEBMZTESRMITARERRIMZARE
BEREETR LM - EAAREBEZHY
IR A RERR ©

Roh N AR BECRBGEEEARA
B ABERMAT - EEECBBRENRA
TEHABBRRR L EREEZAENE
EB (B4

AREBR2018F 7] — 10 B & ik A WE
ITERKER70% AR A HE 25 - IRIBWEE -
BREKBEME=FRARANAIEELE
FIFREY 30% A ASHE AR ©
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32.

192

DEFERRED TAX

The major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and their

movements during the current and prior years are as follows:

IEERIH

RAFREEBEFECHERBNERELENIA
BE/(BE) REZHNT

32.

Withholding
Fair value Fair value taxon
adjustments adjustments distributable Loss available
arising from Provision for Accelerated arising from profits of for offsetting
investment impairment tax acquisitions of subsidiaries against future Deferred
properties of assets depreciation subsidiaries in the PRC taxable profit income
REnx KENEAT TENEAR Glilizs
FEEH REN EH R FEER AAKERE BEERH
HERE il 4 MEERE REMEH ENNEE BEWE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
v AEBTT T ARETT ARETT ARBTT
At 1 January 2018 ROBEIA1A (81.691) 61,911 3n (48,328) (314,621) - 7,686 (374732)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHBAA - 29 194 (14,803) - - - (14,380)
Credited/{charged) to profitorloss ~ 5tA/ (&) €8
for the year (note 9) a9 (66,585) 9,516 3745 178 (48,484 - 4538 (95,528)
Exchange realignment EREE (197) - - - - - - (197)
At 31 December 2018 and RBF12A318R
1 January 2019 01951818 (148,473) 71,65 4250 (61,389) (363,105) - 12224 (484,837)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Note 37) ~ WERHIB AR (H3E37) - 1862 - (18,594) - - - (16732)
Credited/(charged) to profitorloss 3t A/(H8) €
for the year note 9) B (3E9) (110435 13,044 (102) 8% (84,933 1,587 3,69 (176,287)
Exchange realignment EXAE (2.59%) - - - - 8 - (2,514)
At 31 December 2019 RO 2R B (261,506 8562 4148 9.120) (148,038 1471 15920 (680,370
# The amount represented the deferred tax provision of RMB168,175,000 (2018: # ZEeFERANRE A BB QT 55 EL

RMB125,864,000) on the distributable profits of the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC after offsetting the realised deferred tax liabilities of
RMB83,242,000 (2018: RMB77,380,000) arising from dividends declared by
these subsidiaries to their foreign investors during the year.

Gross deferred tax assets recognised in the

B i XE o T8 B4 A R 5 168,175,000 7T (2018 4F -
AR 125,864,000 7T ) 3 4545 84 7% B BB A B 7
FEREEIMEEESRREMEENHD EERRET
TRIE & E A R#83,242,0007C (20184 : AR
77,380,0007T) °

2019 2018
RMB’000
ARHEF T

RMB’000
ARMBT T

RERE MR R AR ERLT

consolidated statement of financial position — F{IB & E %8 108,301 88,130

Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in the R4R& B AR R A FER A IR
consolidated statement of financial position ~ F{IE & (54858 (788,671) (572,967)
(680,370) (484,837)
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32.

33.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between China and
the jurisdictions of the foreign investors. The applicable rate for
the Group is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in China in respect of their earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax liabilities of RMB374,897,000 (2018: RMB350,709,000)
in respect of temporary differences relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries, amounting to RMB7,497,947,000 (2018:
RMB7,014,180,000), that would be payable on the distribution of
these retained profits as the Company controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it is probable that these profits
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represents government grants received by the
Group as financial subsidies for the construction of new factory
premises in Changchun, Daging, Hubei and Hunan and rental
income received in advance from certain of the Group's
employees for leasing the staff quarters.

The government grants are released to profit or loss over the
expected useful lives of the relevant premises by equal annual
instalments, while rental income received in advance is
recognised on the straight-line basis over the respective lease
terms.

32.

33.

EERE @)

REFRPEMESTE - ERBEKZHINE
TERINEIZEEE SRR B BN 10%H
TERFTISH - 2R EBE2008F 1 A1 BREAE
W EARBE2007F12 831 BREESHA
Fl o R BB Z NI EE L el AR A
FEIBIEL - B AR BIR T R B TEIR A
SR AEBRBEAMEA% - Bt - 5t
ZERNF BB A R 52008 F 1 A1
REMEEMNTERNREMS @ AEEEA
BRANTEIRFTSHS -

RBEER - AR R FIEHIZENE QT
R BIEER - BZE RN iR DR
AREET K - MASB Y EERZENE R
AAPKENERHEZEAEARE
7,497,947,0007C (20184 : A R ¥
7,014,180,000 7o) RRIEFRIB A E A (BR 5
K% SR &% IR 2 7) A R 374,897,000
7t (20184 + AR ¥ 350,709,0007T) °

I FE Wy 55

B SR AR BRI - ERE
HRAE - RE 1RO B TR
MM BAERE - UREAKRERE TRERES
WHHHEEE TESHEEWA -

BB E BEERR A ERFRARE
NEBEBAB AR MBALKIOESE
WARRE B EHABOERER
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34.

35.

36.

194

SHARE CAPITAL 34. IR
Shares 1% 2019 2018
Authorised: EE
20,000,000,000 (2018: 20,000,000,000) 20,000,000,000 (20184 : 20,000,000,000) f& HK$1,000,000,000 HK$1,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each BREESE LA LER 1,000,000,000 % 1t 1,000,000,000 % 7T
Issued and fully paid: ERIRERE:
3,102,418,400 (2018: 3,102,418,400) 3,102,418,400 (2018 4 : 3,102,418,400) f% HK$155,120,920 HK$155,120,920
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each FREECOSETHERMR 155,120,920 7t 155,120,920 70
Equivalent to EER RMB135,344,000 RMB135,344,000
AR 135,344,000 AR 135,344,0007C
RESERVES 35. &
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein AEEARFEERBEFENEEEERHEE
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated HERGEEREHRANZ -
statement of changes in equity.
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign BREBEEARTING EEENBRER IR
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's B NEEEP BRI RO B A RR R D A
subsidiaries which are established in PRC has been transferred to NEEREREXREINFEERES
reserve funds which are restricted for use.
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 36. ARG AERAZ

(A) SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company on
14 May 2010 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations.

No share options have been granted under the Share
Option Scheme since the adoption.

(B) SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 28 August 2018, the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) to recognise the
contributions by certain eligible persons to the Group and
to offer suitable incentives to attract and retain targeted
talent and personnel for the continual operation and future
development of the Group.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI¥EE@ZERER AT

(A) BARRESHE
R2010F5 814 8 » A E & 2R %
AEBMRINELIERBERNEER
SHLA - NRFERA—BEIE S
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RBRE IR 8% A -

(B) MfoieBEEtEl
A BIFR20184F8 A28 HIER M A% 17 42
Bhar &I ([P m seEhEr &l ) - LB ESR
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(B) SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

The total amount of the funds contributed to the Scheme
by the Company shall not exceed HK$750,000,000 and the
Board shall at its absolute discretions to determine the
amount of fund contributed to the Share Award Scheme for
each financial year of the Company.

The Company shall not make any further grant of award
which will result in the aggregate number of Shares
underlying all grants made pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme (excluding award shares that have been forfeited in
accordance with the Share Award Scheme) to exceed 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company without
shareholders’ approval. The total number of non-vested
award shares granted to a selected participant under the
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of issued shares at all time.

During the year, 22,991,000 ordinary shares of the Group on
the Stock Exchange were purchased at a total cost
(including related transaction costs) of HK$99,980,000
(equivalent to RMB85,440,000) for the Share Award Scheme
(2018: Nil).

No shares have been awarded under the Share Award
Scheme since the adoption.

36. URBAEBRNZFum
(B) KRB E (&)

AREHZTEAHENECRBNG
738 750,000,000/8 7T © MARRIESE
ERERMNBETARAESTERE
BB EBELENESSRE -

fi A8 A AR SR AR A0 B Bh =t &I #O P
BHREED (T RERERD 2R &
EOR M 2R A (D) B EBIB R 1 A
BEITIRAN 5% B ARERRIRELAE - Rl
THRERKEMNER BRET2HE
AR () 22 =t 8 P] R &Y i R BB
BREBROHER TEEBTRHEE
TR RN 1% ©

FR AEBERBXMEE
22,991,000 f% & 38 f% B 7 B% (0 22 B 51
g BRAN(BEHBXZIKAN) B
99,980,000/ t( # & BN A R #
85,440,000 7T) (2018 4F : #E) »

AL E B R R BB -
SRR RS SR BV IS -
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATION 37. EBEH
During the year, the Group entered into sale and purchase FRN - AEEFTVEE WS - WEATAF
agreements to acquire equity interests in the following B AR 2
companies:

Percentage Consideration

Acquisition date Company name of share RMB Principal activities

RE
Wis B8 NCIEE ERE®R AR® FEXH

8 April 2019 Guangdong Zhongheng 100% 20,500,000  Manufacturing and
sales of valves and

automobile accessories

2019F4 A8 H ERF1E 100% 20,500,000 HE R SHE P RITER M

27 May 2019 Foshan Lesso Municipal 100% 30,000,000  Provision of installation
Engineering Installation Co., and engineering service
Ltd. (“"Lesso Municipal”)

2019 5A278 HILMBHEHRIRELE 100% 30,000,000 FEHELE K TR

BRAR (TBEHR])

31 July 2019 Guangdong Qicheng 51% 39,218,000  Provision of
e-commerce services

2019F7HA31H  ERME 51% 39,218,000 R4 E g ARAS

2 August 2019 Heshan Linghe Electric 100% 620,386,000 Property leasing

Technology Co., Ltd.
("Heshan Linghe”)

201948 H2H BILmES EREHR 100% 620,386,000 ¥IFEME
ERAR(TEEILES ]

4 September 2019 Guangdong Yitong 95.1% 24,480,000 Manufacturing and
sales of metal pipes
20199 A4 H BR—A 95.1% 24,480,000 RERHESBEE
9 July 2019 Guangzhou KingHing 70% 490,230,000 Manufacturing and lease of
aluminium framework
201947 A9H JE )N = 70% 490,230,000* Z¢3E R FHESRAERIE

The above acquisitions allow the Group to further diversify its T ER R EE - SRR EER

businesses.

# The total consideration included cash consideration amounted to # HREBIFRSNREARE 244,851,000 7T R IAE
RMB244,851,000 and consideration settled by loan amounted to REETERNRE ARYE 245,379,0007C ° 2 EZ TR
RMB245,379,000. The loan was lent to Guangzhou King Hing before the WHERIEE TEMSE - RIEERE - REEZ
acquisition. As at the date of the acquisition, the outstanding loan was BB AEEMNREEEES  WEKREZ
deemed to have been fully settled by Guangzhou King Hing and constituted —#5 e

part of the consideration.

196 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI¥EE@ZERER AT



37. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 37. ¥Ba6tuwm

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the RUER - AEBWE FARIMA#EIE
above companies acquired at the dates of acquisitions assumed EXRBENAABENT

by the Group are as follows:

Guangdong Lesso  Guangdong Heshan  Guangdong  Guangzhou
Zhongheng Municipal Qicheng Linghe Yitong KingHing Total
BRPE BEHH BRRE BLER BR-E BNRE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTR AR%Tn ARTRT AR%Tr ARETR AR%TR
Property, plant and equipment 0¥ BERRE 528 1,754 399 372,512 6,055 546,930 928,178
Right-of-use assets FRREEE - - 587 - - 24,488 25,075
Investment properties KEmE - - - 196,638 - - 196,638
Deposits paid for purchase of land,  EE LIt - 9% - BER
property, plant and equipment REMLANES - - 101 - - - 101
Other intangible assets EMELEE - 185 41,953 - 8218 33,993 84,349
Investment in associates REENRINIRE - - 3,660 - - 5,105 8,765
Other financial assets Hip s pEE - - - - - 841 841
Deferred tax assets EXHBEE - - - - - 1,862 1,862
Inventories g 10,483 3,152 - - 3729 147,440 164,804
Contract assets ANEE - 220 - - - 6,421 6,641
Trade and bills receivables BHRNTERER 6,75 13,362 101 - 17431 248,598 286,248
Prepayments, deposits and BT ke REM
other receivables e zE 575 66,244 263 51,222 2698 131,056 252,058
Cash and bank deposits ReRBAER 2,85 15730 4,616 100 1,610 37,084 61,99%
Contract liabilities AHEE - (90) (1,587) - 872 (69,695) (72,244)
Trade and bills payables ZHRNFERER (1,920) (6,057) - - (959) (327,899) (336,431)
Other payables and accruals HipENFEREER (767) (3,184) (4.074) (86) (1,028) (97.251) (106,390)
Tax payables FEITE - (1,057) - - - 4,297) (5,354)
Borrowings — current B35 — R - (60,000) - - (4,700) (41,157) (105,857)
Lease liabilities — current HERE— T - - (341) - - (13,646) (13,987)
Borrowings — non-current B — s - - - - - (65,660) (65,640)
Lease liabilities — non-current HEAE—ERE - - (269) - - (9,900) (10,169)
Deferred tax liabilities ELHEAR - - (6,168) - - (12,426) (18,594)
Total identifiable net assets MAREERELE
at fair value (BAAERB) 18,511 30,259 39,241 620,386 32,582 541,891 1,282,870
Non-controlling interests JEim S - 259 (17,435) - (15,965) (88,953) (122,612
Goodwill arising on acquisitions WEEEEHEE 1,989 - 17412 - 7,863 37,292 64,556
Total consideration satisfied by cash  JAR &% R EAE 20,500 30,000 39,218 620,386 24,480 490,230 1,224,814
Acquisition-related cost incurred in relation to the above gttt EE AN WEMRBK AT T~E AR
acquisition is insignificant and have been excluded from the cost B GIRDKEKR AR 2N BERFEANERE
of acquisition and have been recognised directly as expense for BRARZIWET AER [EMFAEZ] A -
the year and are included in “other expenses” in profit or loss.
The aggregate fair values of the trade and bills receivables and RUIER - &5 RIEIE R B AE M EK
other receivables at the date of acquisition amounted to REHN AL EBERLE N AAREK
RMB286,248,000 and RMB252,058,000 respectively, which 286,248,000 7T & A R # 252,058,000 7T + £
approximate to the gross contractual amounts of the AEBEYFEZSHBERN A NS ERER
corresponding balances acquired by the Group. At the dates of o RKER  BEERATEIE LD

acquisitions, management considered that the contractual cash AHRETRENTEK
flows not expected to be collected were insignificant.
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 37. ¥¥E6twm)
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible ABABEHME  MEEERNBEED
for income tax purposes. AIHARR o
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition is as FRAZWENRSRESTNOT -
follows:
RMB'000
ARETT
Cash consideration paid ERNBEERE 1,224,814
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired W BB e RBEEED (61,996)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents REETHEENReRRS
included in investing activities ZEMRHFE 1,162,818

38.

198

Since the acquisitions, these subsidiaries contributed
RMB201,121,000 to the Group's revenue and recognised a loss of

RMB18,941,000 in profit or loss for the year.

Had the combinations taken place at the beginning of the year,

the Group's revenue and profit for the year would have been

RMB26,894,755,000 and RMB3,047,024,000, respectively.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

38.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any

significant contingent liabilities (2018: Nil).
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BUBBLAK » ZEHMB AR AREERAS
Bt A R #201,121,000 7T © WA ARNEE 18
N TERE B AR 18,941,000 7T °

sz B R FEPHETT  REERAFERY
AN R 5 Bl A A R 26,894,755,000 7T
& AR#E 3,047,024,000 7T, ©
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RBEPR - AEE U BITAEAKARE
(20184F - f&®) °



39. COMMITMENTS

(A) The Group had the following capital commitments at the
end of the reporting period:

Contracted, but not provided for: EHENEICE -

Property, plant and equipment and

W%~ BB R

39. &iE

(A) R|MEHR REEHEAUTEARA

=

2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREF T

AR®T T

investment properties wEME 738,811 982,063
Investment in a joint venture R—EEELENIRE 23,520 23,520
762,331 1,005,583

(B) OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS AS AT 31
DECEMBER 2018

The Group leased certain of its office premises, production
plants, warehouses and equipment under operating lease
arrangements. Leases were negotiated for terms ranging

from one to seventeen years.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

(B) A2018%F 12831 HWEEHE
AIE
AEBRBELHEETHERETH
MAE HEHE  BERSZE K
BEzANERNF—F++4F -

A2018F 12 A31H » AREERBEUT
BAFEIEER 2 AT EE A = 4 2 R R
HIEMAELBMOT :

RMB'000
ARETTE

Not more than 1 year 2145 95,461
Over 1 year to 5 years 1F A EESF 220,608
Over 5 years 5L 33,792

349,861
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

(A) THE GROUP’S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS
WITH RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR

200

Connected transactions
Transactions with companies under

the common control of a director:

Sales of goods and services

Consumption of utilities

Rental expenses

Purchase of materials

Purchase of machinery and/or
equipment

Purchase of electronic accessories
Purchase of other intangible assets

Licensing trademarks
Hotel expenses
Rental expenses paid to directors

Non-connected transactions
Advisory services from a company
under the significant influence

of directors
Purchase of goods and/or
equipment from associates
Design and maintenance services

from a joint venture

BERS
NEZREHERASZ—ESR
EHIHARINRS
HEE M MRS
HHAREE
ik
REEM R
s,
R
HEE TR
HKEEtMETEE
BTEE
B &5 B
MEELNHESAY
FBERS
NEEABATENN
—MRA R ATRER
A RS
BeENmEBERNS
5

AR BRI
BIEHY

40. AN LR Z REER

(A) ERAEEEEHATHEAS

2

2019
RMB’000
AR®BT T

Note

B EE

(i) 21,260
(i) 225
(iii)* 4,047
(iv)* 8,424
(v) 114,170
(v)* 109
(W) 553
(i) 642
(vii)¥ 3,169
(viii)* 1,839
(ix) -
(x) 168,485
(xi) 3,600

2018
RMB’000
AEHF T

8,642
1,044
4,421
13,773

124,592
69
2,678
303
4,392
2,068

1,887

3,600
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(A) THE GROUP'S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS
WITH RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR
(Continued)

Note:

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

Sale of goods and services to related companies were made with
reference to the prices and conditions offered by the Group to third-

party customers.

Utilities were provided by related companies at cost.

Rental expenses were based on mutually agreed terms.

Purchase of materials from related companies were made based on

mutually agreed terms.

Purchase of machinery, equipment and electronic accessories and
other intangible assets from related companies were made with
reference to the prices and conditions offered by the related

companies to their third-party customers.

Licensing trademarks to related companies were conducted based

on mutually agreed terms.

Hotel expenses were based on mutually agreed terms.

Properties including office premises, cafeteria, workshops,
warehouses and yacht were leased to the Group based on mutually
agreed terms.

Advisory services were provided by related companies based on

mutually agreed terms.

Purchase of goods and equipment from associates were made on
normal commercial terms negotiated on an arm’s length basis by the

parties with reference to the prevailing market prices.

Services were provided by a joint venture based on mutually agreed

terms.

These related party transactions constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules but are exempted from complying with the disclosure

requirements under the Listing Rules.

40. A TR Z REGHR @

(A) ERAEEEEHATHEAS
Z (4#)

o

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

A B A B 8 o R IRTS Ty AR SR B )

=R EPRHNBER RGBSR -

RAE R THIRAA B A R

TR B TR 5 1 M I RET &
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(B) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARITIES

REBHRRAR —LES
e OPNCIE LY 23

Balances with companies under
the common control of

40. A TR Z R &SR @)

(B) EEEAEE A LHVASER

2019
RMB’000
AR®T T

2018
RMB’000
ARHEF T

Note
B 5T

a director arising from: e :
Deposits paid for the purchases of ~ BEE#2E K SR 1E
machinery and/or equipment FIZ MR ® i) 109,205 109,415
Purchase of machinery Rk
and/or equipment B (ii) 50,033 59,192
Balances with associates arising from: RAEE& N AIHAE SRR S ¢
Purchase of goods and/or BEERK K
equipment B (i) 36,598 -
Note: 5T -

(i) The balances are included in the Group’s deposits paid for the

purchase of land, property, plant and equipment.

(i)

The balances are included in the Group's trade payables and other

payables and accruals.

(C) COMMITMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Certain of the Group's subsidiaries have entered into lease
agreements with a director and a company under the
common control of a director to lease properties for
operations, and sale and purchase agreements with a
company under the common control of a director to
purchase machinery and/or equipment for production. The
operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 was
RMB8,842,000 with lease terms of three years and the
capital commitments of RMB115,013,000 (2018:
RMB70,720,000) have been included in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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BT AREBEE L WX BER
REAZTEVIRE -

BRI AR R BNE 5 BN AN E AL &
NFBAKETER -

(i)

(C) EEREEEANLHYAFEEIE
AEEAETWEB AR AHEYEEL
ERRE—ZEER—MERZ —
ESZERINQREI L HERE XA
BEEW L KR EEEERGRE—
MERY —MNEEEHNARELE
Eipsm o FA2018F 12 A31H - AR
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 40. B AT X E R R @)
BALANCES (Continued)

(D) COMPENSATION OF THE GROUP’S KEY (D) XEBEEXEEE ASHM
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The remuneration of the Company’s directors and the ARAREENSREEEBHHFNNOT

senior management was as follows:

2019 2018

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR%T T ARETFT

Short-term employee benefits REREE R 19,971 14,335
Post-employment benefits RIRIEEH] 253 396
20,224 14,731
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41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 41. € TEAWAABHELHE
INSTRUMENTS

(A) @I AER
RBERR SESHMTANKEE

instruments at the end of the reporting period are as LUl

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

follows:

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARET T
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost: R RV BRA 2 B B E -
Loans receivables FEUfE X 20 376,286 518,892
Contract assets BHEE 23 361,014 411,930
Trade and bills receivables g oW TE R EE 24 3,259,456 2,379,447
Financial assets included in A E AL UG IE A
other receivables TREE 138,299 302,051
Other long-term receivables HAh 5= B R UK IR 21 4,093 5,804
Cash and bank deposits He MBITER 26 7,604,221 6,451,791
11,743,369 10,069,915
Financial assets at BT BB AR MEE K m
FVTOCI: HEREE
Debt instruments at BARBEFAHLMEE K
FVTOCI WEBKIA 19 564,933 255,099
Equity instruments at RARBESAEMEER S
FVTOCI RIRR AR T A 19 1,136,280 1,543,526
1,701,213 1,798,625
Financial assets at B ATEEE A B
FVTPL: EHEE
Debt instruments at BANREBERABRRN
FVTPL EBITA 19 - 47,649
Equity instruments at BRARBEABRD
FVTPL s AT E 19 56,344 53,886
Funds at FVTPL BRARBEAABRNES 19 21,926 -
78,270 101,535
13,522,852 11,970,075
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41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 41. €T AW A ABELTE @m
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A) €@mTEEH (&)
(Continued)

2019 2018
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
=2 AR¥ TR ARETIT
Financial liabilities cREE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: & ##5k K 5Bk 2 G B (&
Trade and bills payables B ZREMNFIERRE 27 5,829,534 4,277,323
Financial liabilities included in = E b~ 3B K st
other payables and accruals ERMNEHAE 28 990,615 808,626
Borrowings B 29 12,678,380 11,731,058
Convertible loans AR E R 30 652,595 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 13C 206,124 -
Other long-term payables HihREEN KA 106,093 109,546
20,463,341 16,926,553
Derivative financial instruments TEe2mIT A 31 14,360 6,592

20,477,701 16,933,145
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41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 41. ¢ TEWARABHEHE @)

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (B)
THAT ARE MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to
the valuation of financial instruments together with a

quantitative sensitivity analysis as at the end of the
reporting period:

RARBEIFENEMIANLD
REE
ATARBERReRmTAGENE
ATABEGABRBERTEHHE
DITROBEE

Significant Sensitivity of fair value to
Valuation technique unobservable input the input
ERRUEER DABEBBAYE
fHER BAHE MBI
Equity instruments at FVTOCI  Net asset value approach Net assets N/A
BRARBERARMEZEKS BEFEEL BEFE TERA
MR T A
Recent transactions approach Recent transaction prices N/A
B H% LR HER TER
Funds at FVTPL Net fund value approach Net asset values of the funds, ~ N/A
BARBEFABRNES HEeFEEES determined with reference i

to observable (quoted)

prices of underlying
investment portfolio

EeMBEFE(K2ZHH
REEANIBRRE)

Equity instruments at FVTPL Black-Scholes model and Discount rate of 19%
BARBEFABREN discounted cash flow model 19% A3 &
RATE ke — STMATRE R R &
mE R
Derivative financial instruments  Monte Carlo method and Discount rate of 12.5%
TESHIA discounted cash flow model 12.5% BhIR &

SERBENELSBRRSRERE
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1% increase in discount rate would
result in decrease in fair value by

RMB3,070,000
BB E L% ER AR BB
AR #3,070,0007T

1% decrease in discount rate would
result in increase in fair value by
RMB3,671,000

BB ET 1% S EH R EEE
AR 3,671,0007T

1% increase in discount rate would
result in increase in fair value by
RMB7,920,000

BB E 1% ER AR EEEM
AR#7,920,0007T

1% decrease in discount rate would
result in decrease in fair value by
RMB$,770,000

BRETH 1% BEH LR EERD
AR ¥ 6,770,000 7T



41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 41. €t TEMA A BETE @)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) RARBEIFENEHMIANLD
SREE @

(B) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
THAT ARE MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
(Continued)

Bz Mg mE TR Ty e A R E AT

EXmB2EESRNRETERZE

BRERITESHE -

The discount for lack of marketability represents the
amounts of premiums and discounts determined by the
Group that market participants would take into account
when pricing the investments.

BARBENEBNEE

Assets measured at fair value:

2019
Fair value hierarchy

MREERSE

Level 3 Total

E— -t B st
RMB’000 RMB‘000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR TR AR TR AR¥TR

Level 1 Level 2

Other financial assets Hihe@mEE

Debt instruments at BASEETAEM

FVTOCI 2EHKENEHTA - 564,933 - 564,933
Equity instruments at BRAREBEAHM

FVTOCI 2R T A 626,347 496,374 13,559 1,136,280
Equity instruments at BRAREBEFAER

FVTPL HPEAR T A - - 56,344 56,344
Funds at FVTPL BRARBEFABRNESD - 21,926 - 21,926

626,347 1,083,233 69,903 1,779,483

2018
Fair value hierarchy
RNABERE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

FE—H E_M E=M et

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETIT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Other financial assets HitemEE

Debt instruments at BARBE AHM

FVTOCI FHRENEFIA - 255099 - 255099
Equity instruments at BRARBETAEM

FVTOCI 2EWEHRATE 729,866 797,665 15,995 1,543,526
Debt instruments at BAREBEF AER

FVTPL WEBIE - 21,000 26,649 47,649
Equity instruments at BARBEF AR

FVTPL AR AR T A - - 53,886 53,886

729,866 1,073,764 96,530 1,900,160
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41. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 41. ¢ TEWARABHEHE @)

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
THAT ARE MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
(Continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3
during the year are as follows:

i

(B) BARBEFENEMIANLD
SEE @

ENEZRNOAR BEGREHN
T~

2019 2018
RMB’'000

RMB’000

AR®TRT ARKBTE

At 1 January »1A1H 96,530 13,577
Additions NE 2,970 113,976
Unrealised gain recognised in profit or loss R85 RFER K AR B A2 1,529 7,098
Disposal gain included in profit or loss BzEN 2z HERZE (275) -
Disposal HE (32,099) (40,000)
Exchange realignment b 5 2L 1,248 1,879
At 31 December W12A31H 69,903 96,530

Liabilities measured at fair value:

Derivative financial instruments T4 & 8T A

Level 1

RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARBTRT AR®TR

BAREEFENERE:

2019
Fair value hierarchy
AREERSE
Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ B B et
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

14,360 14,360

Derivative financial instruments T4 T A

RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT

2018
Fair value hierarchy
N EERE

Level 3 Total

Level 1 Level 2
E— =t 111 F=4 FEE

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000

- - 6,592 6,592

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and
financial liabilities (2018: Nil).
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise borrowings
and cash and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade and other receivables and trade and other
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. As the Group's exposure to these risks is kept to a minimum,
the Group has not used any derivatives and other instruments for
hedging purposes. The Group does not hold or issue derivative
financial instruments for trading purposes. The Board reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

INTEREST RATE RISK

In respect of the floating interest rate instruments, the Group is
subject to the cash flow interest rate risk, while for the fixed
interest rate instruments, the Group is subject to fair value
interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax by assuming the
floating rate borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year.

42. cREREERERBR

AEBENTIESMTABRETUNEZR
REER - ZEeRITANTIZRAETIARN
SENEEEEES - ARENBAEMAR
BERELNTREREENEE  PIE
5 & YWURIA K H At FE USRI M B 5 & A 5008
Ko Bt FEA SRR

AEBEEHMTAEENTIERRASNKE
B SNERRR - EERR MBI E SRR o
F 7R AN 55 (B AT 2 B0 % 55 L B e 5 70 (B K
FoASEYEERERNTETARREMT
BLMESHZ A - AEBEYERHHETIT
EERMTAMMEEEZA - EFECHEMNT
FEZERREENEE - ZBMmT -

A 2= ELER
FEMNETARERAEEEEBRESREN
Kk EENETASEHAEERR
NI EENERR -

TRER B RN RS MR R R 1T B
EERRRFNAEER - AFERBER
B8 - A BB AT I A 1B AT 4 0 R
KRBT -

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease)

(decrease)
in basis in profit
points before tax

EEX  BRBAUER
@, CEd)  EmO8d)
RMB*000

AR®TR

Year ended 31 December 2019 HZE2019F 12831 HIEFE 50 (52,965)
Year ended 31 December 2019 HZE2019F 12 A31BILEE (50) 52,965
Year ended 31 December 2018 HE2018F 12 A3 BHILFE 50 (50,898)
Year ended 31 December 2018 HZE2018F 12 A31BHILEE (50) 50,898
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group's main businesses are located in China and most of
the transactions are conducted in Renminbi. Most of the Group's
assets and liabilities are denominated in Renminbi, except for
certain cash and bank deposits, trade and bills receivables and
borrowings denominated in HK dollar and US dollar. The Group
has not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the Renminbi
against the relevant currencies, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the

fair value of monetary assets and loans).

42. cRiEMREEBERBER @)

S LB

AEBNTEXBOUNHE - MARIR
HHAAREETT - KAEEABLAEERA
BEAARBE - HEETRERRITER
H 5 FEMGRIA B BRI FUAE T M At
18 > AEREWE R EERERAETE -

TRETRBEHR - EMA B2 BRRE
TEOBRT  ARERTAGENEHARE
REMARERETNSENEEZFH (AR

AE =
ERMEENETNAABEEHMEDN
BB ©

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in HK$/US$ in profit
rate before tax
BT ER
EREH MRBE AT R
(FER) B OE2)
RMB‘000
% ARBT T
2019
If the RMB weakens against the US$ MARBHETRE 5 8,006
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ M AREHETHE (5) (8,006)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ M AREHBTRE 5 (35,964)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ W AREHBTAE (5) 35,964
2018
If the RMB weakens against the US$ MARBHETEE 5 14,987
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ MARBHETHE (5) (14,987)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ M AREHBTEE 5 (71,147)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ i AR H BT HE (5) 71,141
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk in
relation to its trade and bills receivables, contract assets, loan
receivables, other receivables, debt instruments at FVTOCI and
cash and bank deposits.

The concession operating right of the Group represent sewage
treatment service concession financial receivables in respect of
Build-operate-transfer (“BOT") arrangements. Since the parties
to BOT arrangements are local government authorities in the
PRC, the Group considers the credit risk is low at the end of the
reporting period. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

In relation to the Group's financial services business, the Group
has a credit team which is responsible for the evaluation of
customers’ credit ratings, financial background and repayment
abilities. The Group only provides credit to customers with
creditworthiness and collateral is normally required. The risk of
default in payment by these customers is considered not
significant.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
purchasers with an appropriate financial strength and appropriate
percentage of down payments. It also has other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual trade and bills receivables
and contract assets to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

For other receivables, an impairment analysis is performed by
management at the end of each reporting period by considering
historical settlement records, past experience and future
economic conditions. The directors of the Company believe that
there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group's
outstanding balance of other receivables.

42. SRIAMEEEEREBGE @)

FEERE

FERRERARZHFEIBITENERT
AREFPAMBETEEIMREMBEERNE

FENRE  AWEE  BIKER - Ktk
WHIE - BAREEFARMEZERENE
BTENANRE RIRTTIFRER -

AEBENRFHEEREARRE - 28NS
R(T2E - B RBR ) REFMRRTSKE
BRGNS BEKGRIA - RREHR - ER
i - RERBRREMRI NN AT B
FTREHE  BAKERREERRRE -
AEEY EG B R AR A T ME M o

ERASBNESRIREEY  AEEHEE
SEEBAENAEPNERENR MBES
NEEREN - AEBEREERFNEPER
HEER —RARKERR - ZFEPHON
RIER BRI AEK °

AEBEFABRABRAEEREBYRES
RAXNEEBD L 2 BRI ETER
$HE - TRRA E M B2 P AR ERER IR
T8 AR - LEoh - ARETEHEH
EIRERE 5 RUEHKIARRIEME K EEN
AL e 5R - AREGRE N A @ 2 B E R
MEVEEEE - ARENEERREEZ S
RHUFRER  HUEEAEEETRAR -

HREMERFEMS - EEEBBERESL
RBEDH  BERR B REBER RN S R
SHARETREDN - ARFEFERR - K
R 1B B A R MR RO R (B8R S R SR B K
BiEERR
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42.

212

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK (Continued)

The Group's debt instruments at FVTOCI comprised solely of
quoted bonds that are graded in the top investment category
and, therefore, are considered to be low credit risk investments.

Bank deposits are mainly placed with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks which are all high-credit-quality

financial institutions.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of financial assets and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
is mainly based on invoice date unless other information is
available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at the end of each reporting period. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the
exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.
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42. cRiEMREEBERBER @)

EERE @

AEBB A BEFARMEEKRENES
TAEREFRESRERFNN EHERE
B - AR AEEERRIRE -

RITERETEFRNEESREEREER
HEIRT (O RRAREREERNSRIEE) -

AEERTREATHEERZEEZOHR
T WEREBREHRNNEERREERHE
mREIRm - RAHMEEERRETEERM
AEBEERHE A REESRTENNE R SE
RIAHER B 2 R ETHEER - KE
EEZ AR SHEESFEREER -

RERBEFRERDE
TREVNENAKEEERRNEELERA
R 1E B R BRAE (BRIFBANH T U EK
AHE NN ESEMER - TRIERIAH
SEMAERE) REREHUROFRERD
BN BERTREENBERRER
METER A W EERBRALE -



42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 42. ¢ FiEKMEEEEREE @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK (Continued) FERERR @)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) BEeRRRERERSE(H)

12-month
ECLs
1218 8 Lifetime ECLs
RAEERE ERFENRAEERE

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-ER FoER F=ER P2 st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥TR ARETR ARBTR AR%TR

Loan receivables TN E X 376,286 - - - 376,286
Contract assets® ANBE? - - - 361,014 361,014
Trade and bills receivables? B oRIGEREE - - - 3,259,456 3,259,456

376,286 - - 3,620,470 3,996,756

12-month

Simplified

Stage 2 approach

FHER F R FRER Lk a0z
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARBTRT ARETRT ARETRT ARETR

Loan receivables FEUE R 518,892 - - - 518,892
Contract assets* BRBE! - - - 411,930 411,930
Trade and bills receivables* B o TIE R EE - - - 2,379,447 2,379,447
518,892 - - 2,791,377 3,310,269
# For contract assets and trade and bills receivables to which the Group # RAEEXABLCTEHERENENEENE
applies the simplified approach for impairment, information based on the SREWZELREEmMS  ERBEERENER D
provision matrix is disclosed in notes 23 and 24 to the consolidated financial PR BERERA B IS WK T 23 24

statements, respectively.
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and available funding through various sources of finances to
meet its commitments.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the end
of each of the reporting periods, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:,

42. cRiEMREEBERBER @)

REBE T E
AEBERNERBTRNRS MRS EHEY
WHEBTFRBASEAERESES -

REHRTBARBELE - AEENEHRE
HRNERABIHBERAT

Within
1 year

1R
RMB'000

ARBTR

1to 2
years
1225
RMB’000
AR¥ T

Over

2 years

2F Bk
RMB’000
AR®TR

Total

st
RMB'000
AR® T

Trade and bills payables BoENKTEBELEZE 5,829,534 - - 5,829,534

Financial liabilities included in 5t A B4 FE (T ZXIE &
other payables and accruals EErERNERAas 990,615 - - 990,615
Borrowings Bx 11,665,378 1,255,366 1,257,077 14,177,821
Convertible loans AT R E K 20,909 20,909 713,707 755,525
Lease liabilities HEBE 88,843 61,103 66,933 216,879
Other long-term payables Hih R EAE IR - 1,665 104,428 106,093
18,595,279 1,339,043 2,142,145 22,076,467

Within 1to?2 Over
1 year years 2 years Total
1R 1E26 2F Lk #Et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
Trade and bills payables B RMNRIBEREE 4,277,323 - - 4,277,323

Financial liabilities included in A i fE < 38 &

other payables and accruals EstERNE/mAE 808,626 - - 808,626
Borrowings fE 6,440,277 5,446,254 240,599 12,127,130
Other long-term payables HAth R BT IR - 15,847 93,699 109,546
11,526,226 5,462,101 334,298 17,322,625
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as going concern and
to maintain reasonable capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. In order to
optimise the debt and equity balance, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or new debts or the redemption of existing
debts. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the year.

The Group monitors capital using a net debt to equity ratio,
which is net debt divided by capital. Net debt includes
borrowings, convertible loans and lease liabilities less cash and
bank deposits. Capital represents the total equity.

The Group's strategy is to maintain the net debtto equity ratio at
a healthy level in order to support its businesses. The principal
strategies adopted by the Group include, without limitation,
reviewing future cash flow requirements and the ability to meet
debt repayment schedules when they fall due, maintaining a
reasonable level of available banking facilities and adjusting
investment plans and financing plans, if necessary, to ensure that
the Group has a reasonable level of capital to support its
business. The net debt to equity ratios, at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

42. cEiEREEBERBE @

EXRERE

REBEAEENEERIEARENEREZ
B EEEQRMEE T - ARSI
ERL RS IHHER  URERENEER

o
TARE=S =

AEBERBEEANSEHERELEARER
EHAR - RBCERMEREH  ~A5E
ARHBEXNTRROBRE  ARREREE
A BITHBRITEXNERRBES - F
N BEREANBER  BRSBELEZLE) -

AEBAER FEE BB REEER - &
LR BEBFRERUER - B FREEE
R AREEFREHEAERRE LRITE
Ko BARTHIEHERARER ©

AEBORBE RERER FREYERL TR
BEKE - UAIEER - ARERINE
ZRMEFBETRAERNRARSREFT R
X BIREBRRE S - REFATARITRE
EEEKFRABRKREE kA E (10
FE) UERASEHAEGEKFNER
SREER - RIS RRNER FRLER
LR

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%ET ARET T

Borrowings =E 12,678,380 11,731,058
Convertible loans IR E R 652,595 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 206,124 -
Less: Cash and bank deposits B B RIRITER (7,604,221) (6,451,791)
Net debt B H5 5,932,878 5,279,267
Total equity b e e 17,094,396 15,072,865
Net debt to equity ratio ERS R R 35% 35%*
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

43.

216

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

#

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach and the effect of the initial adoption is adjusted against the
opening balances as at 1 January 2019 with no adjustments to the
comparative amounts as at 31 December 2018. As a result, the Group's net
debt increased by RMB368,752,000 to RMBS5,648,019,000 and hence the
Group's gearing ratio increased from 35% to 37% on 1 January 2019 when
compared with the position as at 31 December 2018.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(A) MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(B)

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB1,689,086,000 and
RMB368,752,000, respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements (2018: Nil).

RECONCILIATIONS OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The tables below detail changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI¥EE@ZERER AT

42. cRiEREEEERBE @

EXREE @)

#

ANEEBFERACET B ERRBBM GRS E
BIZE165% - BRIRMHZEER2019F1A1H
K ER A S R E A - 20184 12 A31 AMLLEX
SEATMEAE - EERAEENERFHEILEMN
AR 368,752,000 L = A R % 5,648,019,000 7T
Fli - AEBR2019F1A1ANEEAGBRSA
2018412 A 31 AMALL B 35% EAE37% °

43. GERETRERME

(A) FEFREXRS

(B)

FN-RBEELHNE  AEEFER
BEERBEBENIERSIENS B
B A R 1,689,086,0007T K A R
368,752,000 7L (2018 4F : 4&) ©

METDELENEBEHR

TERFAARERERSAELENE
BEH(BRERASMIFRSE) - &
BRYPMELEZBERRERELGR
IR AEESRARERERADE
RBERPRERENEE -



43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 43. £ B 4£#A8 XRH T @)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(B) RECONCILIATIONS OF LIABILITIES ARISING (B) MEETHELNEBYHIR(E)
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Non-cash changes

3k b
Equity Amortisation
Effect of  component of of borrowings Foreign
adoptionof  convertible Lease  arrangement exchange Other
1 January Cashflow  HKFRS 16 loans liabilities fee  movement changes 31 December
RREH
HHRE
RHE16%  TERERN fERRH
1A18 i fhEe ) BERR -l 5 HESD A28 128318
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARMTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  AR¥Tz  ARMTR  ARBTR  AR¥TR
Borrowings &3 11,731,058 539,178 - - - 17,915 219,330 170,899 12,678,380
Lease ligbllities HERE = (92,406) 368,752 - (95.490) - 1112 24,156 206,124
Convertible loans THREH - 667,718 - (27,605) - - 6,852 5,630 652,595
Interest payable FEfTFIE 4,736 (530,490) - - - - - 551,356 25,602
Dividends payable RS - (866,871) - - - - - 866,871 -
Payables for acquisiton T AEf A}
of non-controling M
interests included in JimlES
other payables JEfi7E 19,102 (15,058) - - - = = (4,044) =
Total liabilties from BEEDH
financing activities BESH 11,754,896 (297,929) 368,752 (27,605) (95,490) 17,915 227,294 1,614.868 13,562,701

Non-cash changes

Ei3i S
Amortisation of
borrowings Foreign
arrangement exchange Other
1 January Cash flow fee movement changes 31 December
RN
1A18 HENE £ H A & 124318
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ‘ T AREFT
Borrowings B 8,319,375 3,042,012 17,407 364,264 (12,000) 11,731,058
Interest payable ERFIE 6,149 (397,996) - - 396,583 4736
Dividends payable RS - (715,436) - - 715,43 -
Payables for acquisition of SEAH M RERRIE
non-controlling interests ol et
included in other payables ERENTE - (78,898) - - 98,000 19,102
Total liabilities from financing activities B4 EEH & EAE 8,325,524 1,849,682 17,407 364,264 1,198,019 11,754,89
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43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 43. Z4B4£ 78 XM @)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(C) HERES A
BREGARESRERNAERESR
HARZENT ¢

(C) TOTAL CASH OUTFLOW FOR LEASES

The total cash outflow for leases included in the
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows:

2019
RMB'000

AR®F

Within operating activities KRN 32,949
Within investing activities WEEBA 109,425
Within financing activities BEEBA 92,406

234,780

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 44. TEHBE L TNFHE

RRFEEMBRRNFERT :

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

218

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

business
REXWE

Issued
ordinary share/
registered
share capital
BRALER/
R

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

Direct

Indirect

ARAEERELE

B

Principal activities

IREH

Starcorp Investment Holdings Ltd. BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
ERRABRERAHF ABGARES 157 100% - REAR
Great China One Holdings Limited BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
(Formerly known as "Great China
International Holdings Ltd.")
EREHRBERDA LEEBRHE 1%7 100% - RERR
(MBERERERERAF)
China Liansu Investment Limited BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
PEREREERAR ABGRARES 157 100% - REER
Liansu Group Company Limited Hong Kong HK$13,000,000 - 100% Investment holding and sale of
building materials and interior
decoration products
BEEEERAT i 13000000747 - 00%  REBRREERMRFEER
Guangdong Liansu Technology PRC HK$2,800,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic
Industrial Co., Ltd. *@ pipes and pipe fittings
FRBEMBEXARAFY HE 2,800,00000077 - 0%  RERBEZHEEREN
Heshan Lesso Industrial PRC HK$269,930,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
Development Co., Ltd. * plastic pipes and pipe fittings
BLBZELURERLRAY Gl 269,930,000/ 7T - 100% RERHERNEEREN
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44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 44. TEMB A TNFE @

(Continued)
Place of Issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary share/ equity attributable
registration and registered to the Company
business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
MY/ 2 BRTLER/ RD AR ERELE
REXLH A RA HE 553 TEEH
Lesso Technology Development PRC HK$111,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
(Wuhan) Co., Ltd. *® plastic pipes and pipe fittings
SEMBRR (R ARARY P 111,00000077 - 00%  RERBEZHEEREN
Lesso Technology Development PRC HK$115,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
(Guiyang) Co., Ltd. *® plastic pipes and pipe fittings
BENBER(BR)ERARY il 115,000,000 72 - 100% HERHERNEEREN
Nanjing Lesso Technology PRC US$26,750,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
Industrial Co., Ltd. *® plastic pipes and pipe fittings
AREBERRERERAAY i 26,750,000% 7T - 100% RERHERNEEREN
Lesso Municipal Pipe PRC US$32,790,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
(Hebei) Co., Ltd. *® plastic pipes and pipe fittings
SEMHEE (L) ARARY G 32,790,000 7T - 0%  RERBEZHEEREN
Henan Lesso Industrial Co., Ltd. *¢ PRC RMB200,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
plastic pipes and pipe fittings
AEELEEERARC i AR 20000000070 - 100% HERHERNEEREN
@ Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the laws of PRC @ RIEFEEEAM A —HIEBERE
© Registered as equity joint ventures under the laws of PRC ® BEPBEEEMAGERE
© Registered as a limited liability company under the laws of PRC @ REPBEETMA—HERAA
The above table lists the Company's subsidiaries which, in the EERE - ERAHSIARR B E D FEH
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the REENFEEASATENIBUAEERE
year or formed a substantial portion of the Group's net assets. To EFENERE D - ESRAMEFYIE MM
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the BRARNER  BeEAEENARILE -

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Annual Report 2019 44§ 219



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B ISR TR

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

R R B IR R

WREER - HIAL B BRR AN AR
Company at the end of the reporting period as follows: s

Information about the statement of financial position of the

2019
RMB’'000

AR¥FR

2018
RMB’000
ARETTE

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries B A RIHIRE 8,672,337 7,410,742
Other financial assets Emeph&E 152,763 273,532
Total non-current assets EMBEEERE 8,825,100 7,684,274
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Other receivables H b fE U FhT8 1,164,477 963,785
Other financial assets HerEE 8,363 -
Cash and bank deposits RE MIRITER 19,050 10,452
Total current assets BB EMAEE 1,191,890 974,237
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals Hih N RIBE R EETE A 596,187 5,125
Amount due to subsidiaries FERI B A e E 5,568,158 5,766,663
Borrowings B 844,480 210,836
Total current liabilities BB EERE 7,008,825 5,982,624
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFHE (5,816,935) (5,008,387)
Net assets BEFE 3,008,165 2,675,887
EQUITY s
Share capital AR AR 135,344 135,344
Reserves (note) s (M) 2,872,821 2,540,543
Total equity 1B 3,008,165 2,675,887
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 45. KR T B RO 3k (#)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: BiRE -
A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows: RARNREERENT :
Shares
held for Fair value Exchange
Share  share award revaluation fluctuation Retained
premium scheme reserve reserve profits
PR 47 52 &b
&I AREE ERKE
RGEE B B4R E e REBEF At
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
T T ARETT AREBTT ARBTFT ARBFT
At 1 January 2018 201841 A1H 1,905,618 - (14,983) (82,947) 496,175 2,303,863
Total comprehensive income 4 A% Uz
for the year s - - (21,400) 100,616 872,900 952,116
Dividends recognised as BRAREE ADIR
distributions to owners HIAZ B - - - - (715,436) (715,436)
At 31 December 2018 and 720184 12 A 31 H
1 January 2019 K2019%F1A1H 1,905,618 - (36,383) 17,669 653,639 2,540,543
Total comprehensive income 4 X2 [ Yz
for the year k] - - 31,678 5,601 1,247,310 1,284,589
Dividends recognised as RAEREE ADIR
distributions to owners KRR E - - - - (866,871) (866,871)
Transfer of fair value reserve  HERAREETA
upon the disposal of Hip 2 EW )
equity instruments at AT BigEEs
FVTOCI N BERE - - (20,274) - 20,274 -
Shares purchased for FLAR D RENETEIRE A
share award scheme 15 - (85,440) - - - (85,440)
At 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 1,905,618 (85,440) (24,979) 23,270 1,054,352 2,872,821
46. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 46. HLEFE M BE/R
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and SRAEMBEBRERN2020F3IA2ZVBEESS
authorised for issue by the Board on 27 March 2020. o IR RETES -
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
TERENERS
waryEARE

Details of the Group's investment properties at the end of the RIFEHIR  AEFEREYENFBOT -
reporting period are as follows:

Site area/ Stage of

Location Type gross floor area Lease term Group's interest completion
WEREE

2 5l BRAEE HAHE ARENER TR B
sq. ft.
EER

Lots 50, 51 & 52 in Deposited Plan 1144623, Australia IL 2,320,699 Freehold 100%  Planning stage

Lots 6-10 in Deposited Plan 801210,

Lots 163, 168-182 & 216 DP8716,

Lots 4, 5 & 6 in Deposited Plan 226294,

Lots 2 in Deposited Plan 516449,

Lots 218 & 219 in Deposited Plan 457024,

Lot 2151 in Deposited Plan 135859,

Lot 1in Deposited Plan 119616 and

Lot 7 in Deposited Plan 803359,

Augusta Street, Huntingwood East,

New South Wales

Lots 50, 51 & 52 in Deposited Plan 1144623, M IL 2,320,699 KAERE 100% BEIRER

Lots 6-10 in Deposited Plan 801210,

Lots 163, 168-182 & 216 DP8716,

Lots 4, 5 & 6 in Deposited Plan 226294,

Lots 2 in Deposited Plan 516449,

Lots 218 & 219 in Deposited Plan 457024,

Lot 2151 in Deposited Plan 135859,

Lot 1in Deposited Plan 119616 and

Lot 7 in Deposited Plan 803359,

Augusta Street, Huntingwood East,

New South Wales

79-99 St Hilliers Road, Australia 1B 298,191# Freehold 100% Under
Auburn, Cumberland, Sydney, refurbishment
New South Wales

79-99 St Hilliers Road, BN 1B 298,191¢ KAERE 100% BT LIZETH
Auburn, Cumberland, Sydney,

New South Wales

Part of lots 23 & 24, Canada IL 1,994,351 Freehold 100%  Planning stage

Markham, Concession 3,
Part 1 on Plan 65R-30576
Part of lots 23 & 24, NIEN IL 1,994,351 KAKHE 100% BARR
Markham, Concession 3,
Part 1 on Plan 65R-30576
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Site area/ Stage of
Location gross floor area Lease term Group's interest completion

WBEE,

1 2 BREHE MRS FEBENES SERRPE B
sq. ft.
EHER
5789, 5933, 5945, 5811, 5951 Canada CL 1,750,241 Freehold 100%  Planning stage
Steeles Avenue East,

Toronto, Ontario

5789, 5933, 5945, 5811, 5951 JIIEFN CL 1,750,241 KAKRE 100% £2E
Steeles Avenue East,

Toronto, Ontario

5631-5671 Steeles Avenue East, Canada CB 139,046* Freehold 100% Existing
Toronto, Ontario
5631-5671 Steeles Avenue East, nex CB 139,046 KAERE 100% BE

Toronto, Ontario

South of Longzhou West Road, China CL 221,825 Leasehold 100% Under
East of Dengdong Road, development
Longjiang town, Shunde District,

Foshan City, Guangdong

EREHLTIEERETA h CL 221,825 HEXHE 100% ER
EMEREAEERERAZXA

West of Foshan-Kaiping highway, China CL 1,392,982 Leasehold 100% Under
North of Longgao Road, development
Longjiang town, Shunde District,

Foshan City, Guangdong

ERABLUTIBERETH i cL 1,392,982 HEXE 100% BET
FRBEAR - SR

633 Heshun Road, China IL 1,879,515 Leasehold 100% Existing
Heshan Industrial Center,

Heshan City, Guangdong

EREBUMBLIEN h IL 1,879,515 HEXR 100% BE
FIEFE 6335

SHGB 889, 890, 891, 894, 895, 1317, 1318, 1319, Indonesia X 827,368 Freehold 100% Under
1321, 1322 J1 Suvarna Sutera Boulevard development
No 19 Unit B1 Wana Kerta

Sindang Jaya - Tangerang, Indonesia 15560

SHGB 889, 890, 891, 894, 895, 1317, 1318, 1319, ENE[EF CX 827,368 KAKKE 100% ERT
1321, 1322 J1 Suvarna Sutera Boulevard

No 19 Unit B1 Wana Kerta

Sindang Jaya - Tangerang, Indonesia 15560
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
TRREVEBE

As at 31 December 2019
2019412 A31H

NICEICEY Stage of
Location Type gross floor area Lease term Group's interest completion
WEEE
% # RREER HEH  ARENER THRER
sq. ft.
AR
Plot No 2, 4, 8, 9 Block 59 Myanmar CX 3,232,762 Leasehold 56% Under
Zawtika Yeik Mon Housing, development
Dagon Seikkan Township, Yangon
Plot No 2, 4,8,9 Block 59 ik X 3,232,762 REXE 56% BET
Zawtika Yeik Mon Housing,

Dagon Seikkan Township, Yangon

120-122, 202, 204, 847, 848,1413,1425-1430, Thailand CX 3,557,955 Freehold 75% Under
Tambol Bang Sao Thong, development
Amphoe Bang Sao Thong, and

375,

Tambol Bang Bo,

Amphoe Bang Bo,

Samut Prakarn Province

120-122, 202, 204, 847, 848,1413,1425-1430, RE CX 3,557,955 KAKIE 75% ERT
Tambol Bang Sao Thong,

Amphoe Bang Sao Thong, &

375,

Tambol Bang Bo,

Amphoe Bang Bo,

Samut Prakarn Province

Plot 62189674, Warsan First, Dubai United Arab CL 570,487 Freehold 100% Under
Emirates development

Plot 62189674, Warsan First, Dubsai P (R & cL 570,487 A% 100% #RT

HRE

SWC of Highway 380 & FM 26, United CX 3,347,896 Freehold 100%  Planning stage

South side of Highway 380 States

West of FM 26,

Frisco, Texas

SWC of Highway 380 & FM 26, ES CX 3,347,896 KRR 100% HHER

South side of Highway 380

West of FM 26,

Frisco, Texas
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Site area/ Stage of

Location gross floor area Lease term Group's interest completion
wEmE/
% BREER HEE  ARENER THRER
sq. ft.
AR
12071 Bellegrave Avenue, United CX 4,755,918 Freehold 100% Planning stage
Jurupa Valley, California States
12071 Bellegrave Avenue, ESG CX 4,755918 KAHERE 100% BEIRER

Jurupa Valley, California

1300 and 1504 Old Country Road, United CB 723,302* Freehold 100% Under
Westbury, Nassau County, States refurbishment
Long Island, New York

1300 and 1504 Old Country Road, 2] CB 723,302¢ KA ERE 100% EE TR
Westbury, Nassau County,

Long Island, New York

Note: CL Commercial land [EE3::E:
PR - CX  Complex land 4RE A
IL Industrial land T
CB  Commercial building EHEEF
1B Industrial building TEEZEF
# Represents gross floor area RS AT
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GLOSSARY

R

“"Board”
=

“BVI"
[RBERRES]

“China” or "PRC"
[
“Code”
=8l

"Company” or “China Lesso”

[ARRE] k[ B2

"Current Ratio”

[RE = |

"EBITDA"
[BR BT A& A ]

“FVTOCI”
[BARBEFARMEEKES]

"FVTPL"
[z A EEsT AR

"Gearing Ratio”

[BEREER]

"Group”
[REHE |

“Guangdong Liansu Machinery”
[ERE B

"HKS$"
e

"Hong Kong” or "HK"
[&%]

the board of directors of the Company
KAREFE

the British Virgin Islands
REBERARES

the People’s Republic of China, for the purpose of this report, excluding Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan

REARKNE  ARENS - X TEEESE  RFIREE

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

ERBIM 14 PrE B R ER TR

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
REIEE R E R ER AR

the ratio of current assets to current liabilities

RBEERARBRENLL R

earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation

ORRFE  BEIR - I8 S #E S AT & R

fair value through other comprehensive income

RO EEFARMEEKE

fair value through profit or loss

wmAnEEFARE

the total debts divided by the sum of total debts and total equity
BT AREMR A BTSRRI R ARRR A AN

the Company and its subsidiaries

AR REKE QT

Guangdong Liansu Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd.*, a company indirectly
wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and a connected person of the
Company as defined under the Listing Rules

BRI BEERR AT EMELEEREZEREANLRF  XTREARFH
BEBEAL(EER LMARA)

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BRZEEEE — BT

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FEEBEFNITRER
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“loT"
[ Bs6 448 |

“Listing Rules”
[ AR

“Model Code”
ESE

“"New Fortune”
By

“pE"

[PE]

“PP_R"
[PP-R]

“PVC"
[PVC]

“Quick Ratio”
[RB)LL X |

“RMB”
[AR®]

"SFO"
[F& 7 K AR RS

“Share(s)"”
[i&tn ]

"Shareholder(s)”
[B& ]

“Shunde Liansu Industrial”

(BB 2B B % |

“sq.ft.”
[FHER]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 22 FAT

Internet of things

YLds

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B X PTRE 5 B AR R

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

ETHRRAIMEI0FAEN EMBITAZESTETERR ZNRETRI

New Fortune Star Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI
New Fortune Star Limited » —FIREEE R RSN 2 AR

polyethylene
RE

polypropylene random
BERABEBRAR

polyvinyl chloride
BRRLE

the ratio of current assets less inventories to current liabilities

MBEERFEBRARBEENL X

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

REZEEEY — AR

Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong
FBEDIE 571 EFE S KRB GD

share(s) of a nominal value of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the Company

AR FIIRA A G AR E {E 0.05 8 TTEV AR D

holder(s) of the Share(s) of the Company
FiN/NEIE v EEZ=DN

Foshan Shunde Liansu Industrial Co., Ltd.*
FRILTIBE R EEGR A A

square feet

FHER

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBMERIMABRAR
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GLOSSARY

e

AR

“tonne(s)” a unit measuring weight, equal to 1,000 kilograms

[ 195 B SEHENEM - BFER1,000RT

"ys” the United States of America

ESE B ENRETE

"US$” US dollar, the lawful currency of US

EA ¥ EEZEFE¥ —ET

“Xi Xi Development” Xi Xi Development Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI
[PERE f WEZERARAR —HREBARRFSTMKIZ AR
%" per cent

[%] B At

* The English or Chinese translations in this report, where indicated, denote for

identification purposes only.

* AR E ) B (LA B -
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NR]E R

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoquan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

Mr. Lin Dewei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan
Mr. Cheung Man Yu

Ms. Lan Fang

Dr. Tao Zhigang

Mr. Cheng Dickson

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Dr. Tao Zhigang (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan
Mr. Cheung Man Yu

Mr. Cheng Dickson

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Dr. Tao Zhigang (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Luen Hei

Mr. Zuo Manlun

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)

Mr. Zuo Manlun

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Ms. Lan Fang

Dr. Tao Zhigang

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Zuo Manlun
Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
RRJER

REGISTERED OFFICE
PO Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN CHINA

Liansu Industrial Estate
Longjiang Town

Shunde District

Foshan City

Guangdong Province 528318
China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 1A, 10th Floor, Tower 2

South Seas Centre

75 Mody Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East

Kowloon, Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION
Listing:
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock code:
2128

SHARE INFORMATION
As at 31 December 2019:

Share issued 3,102,418,400 shares
HK$30,993 million

1,000 shares

Market capitalisation
Board lot size

2019 DIVIDENDS

Interim dividend HK12 cents per share
HK28 cents per share

36.8%

Proposed final dividend
Dividend payout ratio
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Annual results announcement:
27 March 2020

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS:

—  for determining the entitlement to attend and vote at annual
general meeting from 19 to 22 May 2020 (both dates inclusive)

—  for determining the entitlement to proposed final dividend from
29 May to 2 June 2020 (both dates inclusive)

2020 annual general meeting:
22 May 2020

Payment of 2019 proposed final dividend*:
on or around 11 June 2020

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
PO Box 1093

Boundary Hall, Cricket Square

Grand Cayman, KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

INVESTOR RELATIONS

iPR Ogilvy & Mather

40th Floor, China Online Centre

333 Lockhart Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2136 6185

Fax: (852) 3170 6606

Email: ir@lesso.com

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong

+ Subject to approval by the Shareholders at the 2020 annual general meeting to be
held on 22 May 2020.
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Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
PO Box 1093

Boundary Hall, Cricket Square

Grand Cayman, KY1-1102

Cayman Islands
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NRIER

SOLICITOR e

Ropes & Gray ISR BT

PRINCIPAL BANKERS FEEREBLT

Agricultural Bank of China Limited PERFRITIRODARAR]

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. BERITRDBRAF]

CTBC Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch FEEEEERITROBRAGEEDTT
DBS Bank Ltd., Hong Kong Branch ERRITAERRRIEEDTT

Foshan Shunde Rural Commercial Bank Company Limited bl B7E B R ITIR D BIR A A
Hang Seng Bank Limited BAERITAR AR

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited TR (M) BRAF]

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited R TERITIRD AR A A

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation = HERIRTT

Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch Bt E BEERITRMDBER AT EEDTT
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited FELSEZRITAR AR

WEBSITE b

http://www.lesso.com http://www.lesso.com
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Forward-looking statements

This report contains forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements include,
without limitation, statements related to revenue and earnings. The words "believe”,

P won won

“intend”, “expect”, "anticipate”, “forecast”, "estimate”,

won

predict”, “is confident”, “has
confidence” and similar expressions are also intended to represent forward-looking
statements. These forward-looking statements are not historical facts. Rather, the forward-
looking statements are based on the current beliefs, assumptions, expectations, estimates
and projections of the directors and management of China Lesso about the businesses,

industries and markets in which China Lesso operates.

These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and are
subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, some of which are beyond the Company’s
control and are difficult to predict. Consequently, actual results could differ materially from

those expressed, implied or forecasted in the forward-looking statements.

Reliance should not be placed on these forward-looking statements, which reflect only the
views of the directors and management of China Lesso as at the date of this report only.
The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking statements

to reflect events or circumstances that arise after publication of this report.
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LESSO Hx %3

Unit 1A, 10th Floor, Tower 2, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BB NBERD H R E M E 7558 PO E ZEI0BIAR
. (852)2592 1388 MIX
(852) 2592 1385 e responeile sources
wawiscog  FSC™ C007445

1 www.lesso.com
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